
 
 
A meeting of the OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 
(PERFORMANCE AND GROWTH) will be held in CIVIC SUITE, 
PATHFINDER HOUSE, ST MARY'S STREET, HUNTINGDON PE29 
3TN on WEDNESDAY, 10 JULY 2024 at 7:00 PM and you are 
requested to attend for the transaction of the following business:- 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
APOLOGIES 

 
1. MINUTES (Pages 5 - 12) 

 
To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Performance and Growth) meeting held on 5th June 2024. 

 
Contact Officer: B Buddle 
01480 388008 
 

2. MEMBERS' INTERESTS  
 

To receive from Members declarations as to disclosable pecuniary and other 
interests in relation to any Agenda item. 

 
Contact Officer: B Buddle 
01480 388008 
 

3. RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS ARISING FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS (Pages 
13 - 14) 

 
To note responses received to questions asked at previous meetings.  

 
Contact Officer: B Buddle  
01480 388008 
 

4. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 15 - 26) 
 

a) The Panel are to receive the Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 
b) Members to discuss future planning of items for the Work Programme 

 
Contact Officer: B Buddle 
01480 388008 
 
 
 



5. MARKET TOWNS PROGRAMME SUMMER UPDATE (Pages 27 - 150) 
 

The Panel is invited to comment on the Market Towns Programme Summer 
Update Report.  
 
Executive Councillor: S Wakeford 

 
Contact Officer: P Scott  
01480 388486 
 

6. HUNTINGDONSHIRE PLACE STRATEGY UPDATE (Pages 151 - 172) 
 

The Panel is to receive the Huntingdonshire Place Strategy Update Report.  
 
Executive Councillor: S Conboy 

 
Contact Officer: L Simmonite  
01480 388604 
 

7. PRODUCTIVITY PLANS (Pages 173 - 194) 
 

The Panel is invited to comment on the Productivity Plan Report.  
 
Executive Councillor: S Conboy 

 
Contact Officer: O Morley 
01480 388103 
 

8. CORPORATE PEER CHALLENGE  
 

The Panel is to receive an update on the Corporate Peer Challenge.  
 
Report to follow.  
 
Executive Councillor: S Conboy 

 
Contact Officer: M Sacks 
01480 388116 
 

2 day of July 2024 
 
Michelle Sacks 

 
Chief Executive and Head of Paid 
Service 
 

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and other Registerable and Non-
Registerable Interests. 
 
Further information on Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and other Registerable and 
Non-Registerable Interests is available in the Council’s Constitution 
 

https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/media/rftphwbw/constitution.pdf
https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/media/rftphwbw/constitution.pdf


Filming, Photography and Recording (including Live Streaming) at Council 
Meetings 
 
This meeting will be filmed for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the Council’s 
YouTube site. The whole of the meeting will be filmed, except where there are 
confidential or exempt items. If you make a representation to the meeting you will 
be deemed to have consented to being filmed. By entering the meeting you are 
also consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes. If you have any queries 
regarding the streaming of Council meetings, please contact Democratic Services 
on 01480 388169.  
 
The District Council also permits filming, recording and the taking of photographs 
at its meetings that are open to the public. Arrangements for these activities 
should operate in accordance with guidelines agreed by the Council.  
 

Please contact Mrs Beccy Buddle, Democratic Services Officer (Scrutiny), 
Tel No. 01480 388008/e-mail Beccy.Buddle@huntingdonshire.gov.uk  if you 
have a general query on any Agenda Item, wish to tender your apologies for 
absence from the meeting, or would like information on any decision taken 
by the Committee/Panel. 
Specific enquiries with regard to items on the Agenda should be directed towards 
the Contact Officer. 
Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers except 
during consideration of confidential or exempt items of business. 
 
Agenda and enclosures can be viewed on the District Council’s website. 
 

Emergency Procedure 
 

In the event of the fire alarm being sounded and on the instruction of the Meeting 
Administrator, all attendees are requested to vacate the building via the closest 

emergency exit.

https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/media/1365/filming-photography-and-recording-at-council-meetings.pdf
http://applications.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
http://applications.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1


This page is intentionally left blank



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
 MINUTES of the meeting of the OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

PANEL (PERFORMANCE AND GROWTH) held in Civic Suite, 
Pathfinder House, St Mary's Street, Huntingdon PE29 3TN on 
Wednesday, 5 June 2024. 

   
 PRESENT: Councillor C M Gleadow – Chair. 
   
  Councillors A Blackwell, S Cawley, 

S J Corney, I D Gardener, S A Howell, 
A R Jennings, R Martin, Dr M Pickering 
and D Terry. 

   
 APOLOGIES: An apology for absence from the meeting 

was submitted on behalf of Councillor 
N Wells. 

   
 IN ATTENDANCE: Councillors S W Ferguson, B A 

Mickelburgh, T Sanderson and S L 
Taylor. 

 
 
 
4. MINUTES   

 
 It was observed by Councillor Blackwell, that the abbreviations 

contained within the previous Minutes may be difficult to follow if 
read out of context with the agenda, it was clarified that this 
would be amended for future Minutes. Following which, the 
Minutes of the meetings held on 3rd April 2024, 7th May 2024 
and 22nd May 2024 were approved as a correct record and 
signed by the Chair. 
  

5. MEMBERS' INTERESTS   
 

 None declared. 
  

6. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME   
 

 The Panel received and noted the Overview and Scrutiny Work 
Programme and the current Notice of Key Executive Decisions 
(a copy of which has been appended in the Minute Book) which 
had been prepared by the Executive Leader for the period 1st 
June 2024 to 30th September 2024. 
 
Following agreement with the Panel, the order of the Agenda 
was amended to accommodate a travel commitment from 
Councillor Ferguson. 
  

Page 5 of 194

Agenda Item 1



7. CORPORATE PERFORMANCE REPORT 2023/24 QUARTER 
4   

 
 By means of a report by the Business Intelligence and 

Performance Manager (a copy of which was appended in the 
Minute Book), the Corporate Performance 2023/24 Quarter 4 
Report was presented to the Panel.  
 
In response to a question from Councillor Pickering, the Panel 
heard that the community wealth building approach contributed 
to outcomes identified in the Corporate Plan and that local 
employment and success would pay back into the local area.  
 
Councillor Pickering enquired about the amber status on the 
Market towns project, and Councillor Jennings enquired how 
Performance Indicator 18 was measured in particular detail was 
sought on the size and quality of the sample, following which 
the Panel were assured that full detail would be sought on both 
enquiries and reported back to the Panel following the meeting.  
 
Following a question from Councillor Jennings about the green 
status attributed to the Civil Parking Enforcement strategy, the 
Panel heard that as this was a multi-agency project there were 
multiple stands to be considered however this was on track and 
that a further update would follow in the next quarterly update.  
 
In response to questions from Councillor Blackwell, the Panel 
heard that due to the nature of calls received into the Council’s 
call centre, there would inevitably be some lengthy calls which 
were within acceptable bounds but that did affect the call length 
figures. The Panel heard that there had been no increase in 
complaints relating to that service and that there were no 
concerns surrounding this.  
 
Following a further question from Councillor Blackwell relating to 
staff sickness, the Panel heard that the Workforce Strategy was 
ongoing and was a multi-faceted approach. 
 
Following the discussion, it was 
 
RESOLVED 
 
that the comments of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel be 
passed to Cabinet for their consideration when making a 
decision upon the recommendations within the report.  
  

8. CORPORATE PLAN TARGETS 2024/25   
 

 By means of a report by the Business Intelligence and 
Performance Manager (a copy of which was appended in the 
Minute Book), the Corporate Plan Targets 2024/25 Report was 
presented to the Panel. 

Page 6 of 194



 
Councillor Martin expressed concern that the targets for 
Performance Indicators (PI) 11 and 12  were not ambitious 
enough, following which the Panel were advised that targets 
needed to be realistic and achievable and that the Council 
hoped to be an influencer and enabler in this field. The Panel 
was further advised that more ambitious targets would be 
applied if deemed appropriate after further investigation. 
 
Councillors Cawley and Martin queried the detail behind PIs 18 
and 19 following the introduction of both the Green Bin 
Subscription Service and the Climate Strategy along with the 
Council’s journey to net zero. The Panel were advised that the 
data from the changes to green waste disposal was still in its 
infancy but that an update on the scheme would be brought to 
the Overview and Scrutiny (Environment, Communities and 
Partnerships) in the near future.  
 
Councillor Cawley enquired what the work with the County 
Council to align work on weeds identified in PI22 looked like, 
following which the Panel were informed that a detailed answer 
would be sought and reported back to the Panel.  
 
Following a question from Councillor Jennings, relating to PIs 
13 through 15 which had all over achieved in the previous year, 
the Panel heard that these had been set with local variabilities 
in mind and that following the reduction in application backlogs, 
the funding to clear this had been reduced however work was 
still ongoing to maintain the standards set. Following a further 
question on the reasons for the continued backlog from 
Councillor Gleadow, the Panel heard that this was due to 
multiple factors including resources and the complexities of 
some applications. Councillor Martin stated that it would be 
useful to understand these reasons better to ensure that targets 
tackled this, after which the Panel were assured that the team 
were continuing to review this but that a stretch target would 
result in a continuous red status which the team would be keen 
to avoid. It was agreed that some further detail and clarification 
would be worked up and brought back to the Panel at a future 
meeting.  
  

9. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 

 RESOLVED 
  
that the press and public be excluded from the meeting 
because the business to be transacted contains exempt 
information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that 
information). 
  

Page 7 of 194



10. CCTV SHARED SERVICE AGREEMENT   
 

 The Panel gave consideration to an exempt report by the CCTV 
Manager, (a copy of which was appended in the annex to the 
Minute Book), on the CCTV Shared Service Agreement which 
was presented to the Panel. 
  
Following the discussion, it was 
  
RESOLVED 
  
that the comments of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel be 
passed to Cabinet for their consideration when making a 
decision upon the recommendations within the report. 
  

11. RE-ADMITTANCE OF PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 

 RESOLVED 
  
that the press and public be readmitted to the meeting. 
  

12. COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY GOVERNANCE 
REVIEW   

 
 By means of a report and presentation by the Chief Planning 

Officer (a copy of which was appended in the Minute Book), the 
Community Infrastructure Levy Governance Review was 
presented to the Panel.  
 
In response to a question from Councillor Gardener relating to 
rural areas, the Panel heard that CIL funding was strategic and 
that the revised approach to Community Infrastructure Levy 
(CIL) would allow for the meaningful portion of CIL to go further. 
It was clarified that the funding was available for those looking 
to unlock growth with a strategic intent or benefit, and that the 
team would look to engage with parishes to establish how CIL 
could be generated to meet their aspirations. It was noted that 
this was only one type of many funding opportunities available 
to parishes.  
 
Councillor Pickering observed that the new approach may be 
considered as the Council taking control rather than the 
parishes, following which, the Panel heard that the team had 
taken learnings from recent work in other districts and that 
although parish relationships had been identified as a risk for 
the project, the team would confident that this approach was 
consistent with high quality and best practice.  
 
Councillor Corney enquired whether a study had been 
undertaken to reassess unsuccessful applications from the last 
round of funding to ascertain whether the new scheme would 
have provided them with a different outcome. The Panel heard 

Page 8 of 194



that whilst such a study hadn’t been undertaken, but that the 
flowchart in the report demonstrated that in the context of 
previous applications some had no link to growth and therefore 
were not successful.  
 
Councillor Catmur observed that better engagement with 
parishes would be welcomed and would be helpful to develop 
parishes understanding of CIL. The Panel heard that a 
communications plan was being developed and that the team 
would attend a parish conference in October to further assist 
and advise interested parishes.  
 
In response to a question from Councillor Cawley, the Panel 
were assured that whilst there would undoubtedly be an impact 
on resources, the team would have access to an administrative 
pot of funding to assist with this. It was further observed that 
whilst there may be some time investment required in the early 
stages of applications but that this may prove more beneficial in 
the long term.  
 
Following a question from Councillor Pickering regarding CIL 
being spent in the communities where it had been generated, 
the Panel heard that the new scheme allowed for a more 
positive spread of the funding and utilising it to unlock growth 
across the district. This would include a benefit to more rural 
areas whose contribution to the CIL fund may be minor in terms 
of the district but significant in the growth of that community.  
 
Councillor Martin observed that the proposed change in 
threshold for officer approved applications rising from £50,000 
to £100,000 seemed a significant increase and expressed 
concern that as a result very few applications would be 
discussed in the democratic process. The Panel heard that due 
to rising costs, this threshold was deemed to be a reasonable 
increase and that officer time and resource also needed to be 
considered as well as the ability to make quicker and more 
efficient decisions. Councillor Martin suggested that this 
increase in threshold be reviewed in 12 months to assess it’s 
effectiveness and suitability for the long term. Following which it 
was proposed by Councillor Cawley to add an additional 
recommendation to the Cabinet report; that the increase in 
officer approved applications from £50,000 to £100,000 be 
reviewed in 12 months and a report be brought back through 
the democratic cycle to assess the effectiveness of this change. 
The Panel were in favour of proposing this recommendation for 
consideration by Cabinet.  
 
Following the discussion, it was 
 
RESOLVED 
 
that the comments of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel be 

Page 9 of 194



passed to Cabinet for their consideration when making a 
decision upon the recommendations within the report; and; 
 
that Cabinet be encouraged to add the proposed 
recommendation 7 to the report;  
 

7)  that the increase in officer approved applications 
from £50,000 to £100,000 be reviewed in 12 months and 
a report be brought back through the democratic cycle to 
assess the effectiveness of this change. 

  
  

13. FINANCE PERFORMANCE REPORT 2023/24 QUARTER 4   
 

 By means of a report by the Director of Finance and Corporate 
Resources (a copy of which was appended in the Minute Book), 
the Finance Performance 2023/24 Quarter 4 Report was 
presented to the Panel.  
 
Councillor Jennings observed that whilst he was aware, 
following the Corporate Governance Committee, the reasons for 
the large variance on the audit fees, it would be helpful if the 
auditors could highlight this in advance in future. Councillor 
Jennings further requested detail surrounding the noted 
variance of higher than expected utilities costs at One Leisure, 
following which the Panel heard that full detail would be sought 
and communicated back to the Panel.  
 
Following an enquiry by Councillor Martin, the Panel heard that 
the underspend for the previous financial year had been £1.7 
million and that some of the figures within the reserve account 
were in relation to future activities. 
 
Following the discussion, it was 
 
RESOLVED 
 
that the comments of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel be 
passed to Cabinet for their consideration when making a 
decision upon the recommendations within the report.  
  

14. TREASURY MANAGEMENT OUTTURN REPORT 2023/24   
 

 By means of a report by the Director of Finance and Resources 
(a copy of which was appended in the Minute Book), the 
Treasury Management Outturn Report 2023/24 was presented 
to the Panel.  
 
In response to questions from Councillor Blackwell, the Panel 
heard that the Council did hold loans against the Fareham site 
and that although the unit had a current book value less than 
the cost of loan, it was anticipated to rise in line with the market. 

Page 10 of 194



The Panel were further assured that the property portfolio had 
proved to be a sound long-term investment over the years and 
the book value of the Fareham site was affected by it’s current 
empty state but that there had been significant interest which 
gave the team every confidence that this would improve once 
re-let. 
 
Following the discussion, it was 
 
RESOLVED 
 
that the comments of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel be 
passed to Cabinet for their consideration when making a 
decision upon the recommendations within the report.  
 

 
 
 
 
 

Chair 
 

Page 11 of 194



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12 of 194



Overview and Scrutiny (Performance and Growth) Panel – Questions requiring a response. 

Minute 
No.  

Item Councillor Question Answer 

24/13 Finance 
Performance 
2023/24 
Quarter 4 
Report 

Cllr 
Jennings 

Request for 
further details of 
the noted 
variance of 
higher than 
expected 
utilities costs at 
One Leisure. 

That the extra utilities costs were as a result of the combined heat and power 
unit (CHP) not working at One Leisure St Ives in January and February 2024, 
this has increased use of electricity, the CHP was fixed at the end of February. 
Additional monitoring of the CHP units will be available from the new building 
management system contractor, which will help to reduce downtime in the 
future. 

24/8 Corporate 
Plan Targets 
2024/25 

Cllr 
Cawley 

PI22 – what is 
the work on 
weeds being 
undertaken? 

Awaiting response.  

 

P
age 13 of 194

A
genda Item

 3



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2024-25 
Performance and Growth Agenda Items 

Meeting Date Pre-Scrutiny Scrutiny Review Task and Finish 
Groups 

Working Groups 
10th July 2024 • Market Towns Programme – Summer 

Update 
•  

• Place Strategy Update 
• Corporate Peer Challenge 
• Productivity Plans 

 

4th September 2024 • Market Towns Programme – Autumn 
Update 

• Local Plan: Further Issues and Options 
• Local Plan: Land Availability 

Assessments 
• Local Plan: Initial Sustainability 

Appraisal 
• Local Plan: Statement of Consultation 

• Corporate Performance 
2024/25 Quarter 1 Report 

• Finance Performance 
2024/25 Quarter 1 Report 

 

Unscheduled/Pending 
Further Details 

   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 15 of 194

A
genda Item

 4



 
Environment, Communities and Partnerships Agenda Items 

Meeting Date Pre-Scrutiny Scrutiny Review Task and Finish 
Groups 

Working Groups 
11th July 2024 • Local Authority Housing Fund Round 3 • Cambridgeshire County 

Council Adults and Health 
Committee Representative 
Nomination 

• Garden Waste Subscription 
Service Update 

• Local Area Energy Plan 
• Civil Parking Enforcement 

Update 
• Community Health and Wealth 

Principles 

 

5th September 
2024 

• One Leisure PV Solar Installs 
• Huntingdonshire’s Priority Landscapes 
• Community Health and Wealth Building 

Strategy 

• Bio4All Update 
• Climate Adaption Report 
• Annual Parks and Countryside 

Delivery Report 
• HCP Update 
• Priority One Delivery Update 

Quarter 1 

 

3rd October 2024 • HDC Energy Strategy 
• Delivery of Healthy Open Spaces 

Strategy 
 

• BioDiversity Skills In 
Huntingdonshire 

• Changing Places Closure 
Report 

•  

Unscheduled/ 
Pending Further 
Details 

 • Local Lettings Plan  
• SEUK Update 

•  

 

P
age 16 of 194



Task and Finish Groups 
Performance and Growth  

Review of External Appointments to Outside Organisations 
Membership: Cllrs S Cawley, S J Corney, I D Gardener and S A Howell 
Progress:  
Summer 2022: Terms of Reference have been established. Questionnaire has been sent to all relevant boards and organisations. Regular 
meetings are established from September.  
September 2022: Evidence and information gathering underway.  
November 2022: Information gathering completed. 
February 2023: Report presented to O&S Panel and Cabinet 
March 2023: Cabinet response to the report received by the Panel.  
July 2023: Communication to be sent to all Councillors who are representatives on outside organisations to advise the new reporting 
progress.  
January 2024: Group met to discuss progress and anticipated plan to move forward. 
Next steps: Regularly review and monitor implementation of recommendations. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 17 of 194



Environment, Communities and Partnerships 

Climate Working Group 
Members: Cllrs T D Alban, J Kerr, C Lowe and D Shaw 
Lead Officer: Neil Sloper 
Progress:  
November 2022: Initial Meetings held to establish Terms of Reference for the group.  
April 2023: Regular meetings established. Evidence and information gathering to be progressed.  
Group to be involved in the Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy Development. 
January 2024: Meetings held to discuss proposed work plan for the group and to discuss HVO Fuels project 
Next Steps: Meetings to be scheduled to allow involvement in proposed works.  

 

Disabled Facilities Grants Group 
Members: TBC 
Lead Officer: Claudia Deeth 
Progress:  
February 2024: Councillors invited to express their interest in being involved with the project. 
Next Steps: Initial meeting to be scheduled to establish Terms of Reference for the group. 

 

P
age 18 of 194



Page 1 of 8 

 
 

NOTICE OF EXECUTIVE KEY DECISIONS INCLUDING THOSE TO BE CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE 
 

Prepared by:  Councillor Sarah Conboy, Executive Leader of the Council 
Date of Publication: 17 June 2024 
For Period:   1 July 2024 to 31 October 2024 

 
 

Membership of the Cabinet is as follows:- 
 

Councillor Details Councillor Contact Details 
Councillor S J Conboy Executive Leader of the Council 

and Executive Councillor for Place 
Cloudberry Cottage 
9 Earning Street 
Godmanchester 
Huntingdon PE29 2JD 
 
Tel:  01480 414900 / 07831 807208 
E-mail:  Sarah.Conboy@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 

Councillor L Davenport-Ray Executive Councillor for Climate, 
Transformation and Workforce 

73 Hogsden Leys 
St Neots 
Cambridgeshire PE19 6AD 
 
E-mail:  Lara.Davenport-Ray@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 

Councillor S Ferguson Executive Councillor for Resident 
Services and Corporate 
Performance 

 

9 Anderson Close 
St Neots 
Cambridgeshire PE19 6DN 
 
Tel:  07525 987460 
E-mail:  Stephen.Ferguson@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 

P
age 19 of 194

mailto:Sarah.Conboy@huntingdonshire.gov.uk
mailto:Lara.Davenport-Ray@huntingdonshire.gov.uk
mailto:Stephen.Ferguson@huntingdonshire.gov.uk


Page 2 of 8 

Councillor J Harvey Executive Councillor for 
Governance and Democratic 
Services 

c/o Huntingdonshire District Council 
Pathfinder House 
St Mary’s Street 
Huntingdon 
Cambridgeshire 
PE29 3TN 
 
Tel: 07941 080531 
E-mail: Jo.Harvey@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 

Councillor B Mickelburgh Executive Councillor for Finance & 
Resources 

2 Grainger Avenue 
Godmanchester 
Huntingdon  
Cambridgeshire PE29 2JT 
 
Tel:  07441 392492 
E-mail:  Brett.Mickelburgh@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 

Councillor B Pitt Executive Councillor for 
Communities, Health and Leisure 

17 Day Close 
St Neots  
Cambridgeshire PE19 6DF 
 
Tel:  07703 169273 
E-mail:  Ben.Pitt@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 

Councillor T Sanderson Deputy Executive Leader and 
Executive Councillor for Planning 

29 Burmoor Close 
Huntingdon 
Cambridgeshire PE29 6GE 
 
Tel:  01480 436822 
E-mail:  Tom.Sanderson@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 

P
age 20 of 194

mailto:Jo.Harvey@huntingdonshire.gov.uk
mailto:Brett.Mickelburgh@huntingdonshire.gov.uk
mailto:Ben.Pitt@huntingdonshire.gov.uk
mailto:Tom.Sanderson@huntingdonshire.gov.uk


Page 3 of 8 

Councillor S Taylor Executive Councillor for Open 
Spaces, Waste & Street Scene 

66 Wren Walk 
Eynesbury 
St Neots 
Cambridgeshire PE19 2GE 
 
Tel:  07858 032076 
E-mail:  Simone.Taylor@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 

Councillor S Wakeford Executive Councillor for Economy, 
Regeneration and Housing 

4 Croft Close 
Brampton 
Huntingdon 
Cambridgeshire PE28 4TJ 
 
Tel:  07762 109210 
E-mail:  Sam.Wakeford@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 

 
Notice is hereby given of: 
 

 Key decisions that will be taken by the Cabinet (or other decision maker) 
 Confidential or exempt executive decisions that will be taken in a meeting from which the public will be excluded (for whole or part). 

 
A notice/agenda together with reports and supporting documents for each meeting will be published at least five working days before the date of 
the meeting.  In order to enquire about the availability of documents and subject to any restrictions on their disclosure, copies may be requested by 
contacting the Democratic Services Team on 01480 388169 or E-mail Democratic.Services@huntingdonshire.gov.uk. 
 
Agendas may be accessed electronically at the District Council’s website. 
 
Formal notice is hereby given under The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 
2012 that, where indicated part of the meetings listed in this notice will be held in private because the agenda and reports for the meeting will 
contain confidential or exempt information under Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended) 
and that the public interest in withholding the information outweighs the public interest in disclosing it.  See the relevant paragraphs below. 
 
Any person who wishes to make representations to the decision maker about a decision which is to be made or wishes to object to an item being 
considered in private may do so by emailing Democratic.Services@huntingdonshire.gov.uk.or by contacting the Democratic Services Team. If 

P
age 21 of 194

mailto:Simone.Taylor@huntingdonshire.gov.uk
mailto:Sam.Wakeford@huntingdonshire.gov.uk
mailto:Democratic.Services@huntingdonshire.gov.uk
http://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/council-democracy/meetings-and-decision-making
mailto:Democratic.Services@huntingdonshire.gov.uk


Page 4 of 8 

representations are received at least eight working days before the date of the meeting, they will be published with the agenda together with a 
statement of the District Council’s response.  Any representations received after this time will be verbally reported and considered at the meeting. 
 
Paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended) (Reason for the report to 
be considered in private) 
 
1. Information relating to any individual 
2. Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual 
3. Information relating to the Financial and Business Affairs of any particular person (including the Authority holding that information) 
4. Information relating to any consultations or negotiations or contemplated consultations or negotiations in connection with any labour relations 

that are arising between the Authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of or office holders under the Authority 
5. Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings 
6. Information which reveals that the Authority proposes:- 

(a) To give under any announcement a notice under or by virtue of which requirements are imposed on a person; or 
(b) To make an Order or Direction under any enactment 

7. Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime. 
 
Huntingdonshire District Council 
Pathfinder House 
St Mary's Street 
Huntingdon PE29 3TN. 
 
Notes:- (i)   Additions changes from the previous Forward Plan are annotated *** 
  (ii)  Part II confidential items which will be considered in private are annotated ## and shown in italic. 
 

P
age 22 of 194



Subject/Matter 
for Decision 

Decision/ 
recommendation 

to be made by 

Date 
decision 

to be 
taken 

Documents 
Available 

How relevant Officer 
can be contacted 

Reasons 
for the 

report to be 
considered 
in private 

(paragraph 
no.) 

Relevant 
Executive 
Councillor 

Relevant 
Overview & 

Scrutiny 
Panel 

Page 5 of 8 

 
Market Towns 
Programme 
Summer Update 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
16 Jul 
2024 
 

 
 
 

 
Pamela Scott, Regeneration and 
Housing Delivery Manager  
Tel: (01480) 388486 Email: 
pamela.scott@huntingdonshire.gov.
uk  
 

 
 

 
Councillor 
S 
Wakeford - 
Executive 
Councillor 
for Jobs, 
Economy 
and 
Housing 
 

 
Performance 
& Growth 
 

 
Local Authority 
Housing Fund 
Round 3 *** 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
16 Jul 
2024 
 

 
 
 

 
Pamela Scott, Regeneration and 
Housing Delivery Manager  
Tel: (01480) 388486 Email: 
pamela.scott@huntingdonshire.gov.
uk  
 

 
 

Councillor 
S 
Wakeford - 
Executive 
Councillor 
for Jobs, 
Economy 
and 
Housing 
 
 
 

 
Environment, 
Communities 
& 
Partnerships 
 

P
age 23 of 194



Subject/Matter 
for Decision 

Decision/ 
recommendation 

to be made by 

Date 
decision 

to be 
taken 

Documents 
Available 

How relevant Officer 
can be contacted 

Reasons 
for the 

report to be 
considered 
in private 

(paragraph 
no.) 

Relevant 
Executive 
Councillor 

Relevant 
Overview & 

Scrutiny 
Panel 

Page 6 of 8 

 
Market Towns 
Autumn Update 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
10 Sep 
2024 
 

 
 
 

 
Pamela Scott, Regeneration and 
Housing Delivery Manager  
Tel: (01480) 388486 Email: 
pamela.scott@huntingdonshire.gov.
uk  
 

 
 

 
Councillor 
S 
Wakeford - 
Executive 
Councillor 
for Jobs, 
Economy 
and 
Housing 
 

 
Performance 
& Growth 
 

 
Local Plan: 
Further Issues 
and Options*** 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
10 Sep 
2024 
 

 
 
 

 
Clara Kerr, Chief Planning Officer 
Tel: (01480) 388430 Email: 
clara.kerr@huntingdonshire.gov.uk  
 

 
 

 
Councillor 
T 
Sanderson 
- Executive 
Councillor 
for 
Planning 
 

 
Performance 
& Growth 
 

P
age 24 of 194



Subject/Matter 
for Decision 

Decision/ 
recommendation 

to be made by 

Date 
decision 

to be 
taken 

Documents 
Available 

How relevant Officer 
can be contacted 

Reasons 
for the 

report to be 
considered 
in private 

(paragraph 
no.) 

Relevant 
Executive 
Councillor 

Relevant 
Overview & 

Scrutiny 
Panel 

Page 7 of 8 

 
Local Plan: 
Land Availability 
Assessments*** 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
10 Sep 
2024 
 

 
 
 

 
Clara Kerr, Chief Planning Officer 
Tel: (01480) 388430 Email: 
clara.kerr@huntingdonshire.gov.uk  
 

 
 

 
Councillor 
T 
Sanderson 
- Executive 
Councillor 
for 
Planning 
 

 
Performance 
& Growth 
 

 
Local Plan Initial 
Sustainability 
Appraisal*** 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
10 Sep 
2024 
 

 
 
 

 
Clara Kerr, Chief Planning Officer 
Tel: (01480) 388430 Email: 
clara.kerr@huntingdonshire.gov.uk  
 

 
 

 
Councillor 
T 
Sanderson 
Executive 
Councillor 
for 
Planning 
 

 
Performance 
& Growth 
 

P
age 25 of 194



Subject/Matter 
for Decision 

Decision/ 
recommendation 

to be made by 

Date 
decision 

to be 
taken 

Documents 
Available 

How relevant Officer 
can be contacted 

Reasons 
for the 

report to be 
considered 
in private 

(paragraph 
no.) 

Relevant 
Executive 
Councillor 

Relevant 
Overview & 

Scrutiny 
Panel 

Page 8 of 8 

 
Statement of 
Consultation*** 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
10 Sep 
2024 
 

 
 
 

 
Clara Kerr, Chief Planning Officer 
Tel: (01480) 388430 Email: 
clara.kerr@huntingdonshire.gov.uk  
 

 
 

 
Councillor 
T 
Sanderson 
Executive 
Councillor 
for 
Planning 
 

 
Performance 
& Growth 
 

P
age 26 of 194



 
 

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
Title/Subject Matter:  Market Towns Programme Update  
 
Meeting/Date:   Overview & Scrutiny (Performance & Growth) – 

10th July 2024  
 
Executive Portfolio:  Executive Councillor for Jobs, Economy & 

Housing 
 
Report by:   Regeneration & Housing Delivery Manager  
 
Ward(s) affected:  All  

 
 
This report provides the Summer 2024 update on the Market Towns Programme 
(MTP).  
 
The MTP is an ambitious programme of economic led interventions to renew and 
reshape our town centres and high streets in a way that promotes growth, 
improves experiences, and ensures sustainability in the future.  
 
The MTP is funded through a combination of external funding from the 
Department for Levelling Up, Housing & Communities (DLUHC), Cambridgeshire 
and Peterborough Combined Authority (CPCA), Huntingdonshire District Council 
(HDC) Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and National Highways.  
 
 
Recommendation(s): 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to comment on the attached 
Cabinet report.  

Public 
Key Decision - Yes  

  

Page 27 of 194

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
Title/Subject Matter:  Market Town’s Programme Update (MTPU) 
 
Meeting/Date:   Overview & Scrutiny (Performance & Growth)  

   10th July 2024  
 

Cabinet – 16th July 2024  
 
Executive Portfolio:   Executive Councillor for Economy, Regeneration 

& Housing 
   
 
Report by:   Regeneration & Housing Delivery Manager  
 
Ward(s) affected:  All  

 
 
Executive Summary: 
 
This report provides the Summer 2024 update on the Market Towns Programme 
(MTP).  
 
The MTP is an ambitious programme of economic led interventions to renew and 
reshape our town centres and high streets in a way that promotes growth, 
improves experiences, and ensures sustainability in the future.  
 
The MTP is funded through a combination of external funding from the 
Department for Levelling Up, Housing & Communities (DLUHC), Cambridgeshire 
and Peterborough Combined Authority (CPCA), Huntingdonshire District Council 
(HDC) Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and National Highways.  
 
 
Recommendation(s): 
 
The Cabinet is asked to: 
 

• Confirm and endorse the extension of the Shop Front Grant scheme on a 
district wide basis.  

• Delegate authority to the Corporate Director (Place) in Consultation with 
the Executive Councillor for Economy, Regeneration & Housing to 
approve and initiative delivery on new Market Town focused projects 
and/or reallocate funding within existing programme activities, utilising 
funding generated from efficiency savings and/or underspend elsewhere 
within the MTP, should such savings be realised before the end of the 
2024/25 fiscal year. 

Public 
Key Decision – No  

Page 29 of 194



 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To provide an update on activity across all strands of the Market Town 

Programme.  
 

2. RAMSEY TOWN CENTRE ENHANCEMENT 
  
2.1. The Ramsey sub programme comprises of three linked activities, which 

includes:  
 

• The pedestrianisation of a focused area within the Great Whyte area of 
Ramsey town centre, positioned between Ramsey Library building and the 
new Ramsey Town Council Civic Centre. The objective of which is to 
provide an improved local environment, more capable of hosting events 
and activities such as the town market.  
 

• The development of up to six ‘shop in a box’ small retail units in this 
pedestrianised location. The units will be used to enhance the retail and 
cultural offer to residents and visitors, complementing but not duplicating 
existing retail or service choice.  
 

• Improvements to the Mews Close car park, including resurfacing and re-
marking of bays, for the purpose of mitigating the loss of parking facilities 
within the proposed pedestrian area and providing an overall improved 
facility.  

 
2.2. The Council is working closely with Ramsey Town Council in the design 

and development of all three linked activities. Ramsey Town Council, for 
example, has expressed an interest in managing and operating the ‘Shop 
in a box’ units upon completion.  
 

2.3. In support of this, the Council has recently commissioned retail advisers to 
provide guidance to both the Council and Town Council in relation to the 
‘Shop in a box’ project. This contractor will help to develop a business plan 
for how the retail units will be marketed and managed.  

 
2.4. Furthermore, the retail contractor will work with existing local traders to 

provide training and guidance to help improve business performance and 
provide support to new or aspiring traders who may wish to occupy the 
new shop units. This element of the Ramsey programme is funded via the 
UK Shared Prosperity Fund.   
 

2.5. In terms of the wider programme focused on all activities in Ramsey, the 
Council has recently completed a feasibility and options assessment. This 
assessment has identified a variety of options in which the three projects 
can be delivered. The feasibility report is included within appendix A.  

 
2.6. The Council has consulted with Ramsey Town Council on the different 

options produced as part of this assessment and will be using this to 
develop these proposals to a more detailed stage. At which point, the 
Council and Ramsey Town Council will consult with residents and 
businesses on their views. The exact schedule for the consultation is yet 

Page 30 of 194



 

to be confirmed, however we are currently aiming to undertake this during 
Summer 2024. 

 
2.7. Subject to the completion of a successful consultation, the Council will 

target the commencement of improvements to the Mews Close car park 
by the end of 2024. The two remaining and most significant projects will 
be delivered during the 2025/2026 fiscal year. 

 
 

3. HUNTINGDON AND ST IVES PROGRAMME 
 
The Broadway, St Ives 
 
3.1. Work towards developing and initiating this scheme has accelerated 

significantly since the last reporting period. Two Traffic Regulation Orders 
(TRO) consultations have now been completed, with specific attention 
given to ensuring the views of residents and businesses have been 
considered fully.  
 

3.2. Additional investigatory work was also undertaken during May 2024 which 
required parts of the Broadway to be temporarily restricted for parking. 
These investigations have resulted in further amendments and 
improvements to the scheme design.  

 
3.3. Final approval for the scheme to be progressed was made by 

Cambridgeshire County Council on the 4th June 2024. Work on the 
scheme is now scheduled to begin during the second half of July and are 
programmed to be underway for a period of 40 days.  

 
Cattle Market Living Wall, St Ives 
 
3.4. This is a potential new project for which the Council would utilise existing 

contingency funding from within the Market Towns Programme budget as 
this ceases to become necessary to hold, to undertake exploratory work 
to consider what could be delivered to improve the aesthetics of this area 
for the benefit of the community including local businesses and the town’s 
visitor economy. Local Ward Councillors have assisted to identify an issue 
concerning existing fencing which marks the boundary between privately 
owned property and St Ives Bus station.  
 

3.5. The existing fencing (which backs onto the rear of ‘The Courtway at St 
Ives’) is made of corrugated metal, is unattractive and in poor condition. 
The location of this fencing is immediately next to the Bus Station waiting 
areas and impacts on the attractiveness of this area seen by many visitors 
upon first arrival to the town. The Council is therefore seeking to design 
and deliver either improved fencing and/or a Living Wall type facility to 
improve the local environment at this location. 

 
3.6. Council Officers will work with the Town Council and local neighbours and 

other stakeholders to develop designs which can form the basis for wider 
consultation. This work would begin during July 2024, and depending upon 

Page 31 of 194



 

specific design works could be implemented as quickly as late Autumn, if 
supported by the local community.  

 
Cromwell Museum expansion, Huntingdon 
 
3.7. The Council continues to work with Huntingdon Town Council and 

Cromwell Museum Curator concerning the expansion and improvement of 
the Cromwell Museum. As reported previously, funding has been allocated 
from the Market Town programme to the potential acquisition of a property 
by the Town Council on behalf of Cromwell Museum.  
 

3.8. The existing Museum building is constrained in terms of space for 
exhibitions and visitor facilities. The new and larger premises would be 
intended to be used as the main Cromwell Museum exhibition space with 
the existing Museum retained for educational purposes.  
 

3.9. Whilst the Market Town programme is providing funding for the purpose of 
acquiring the new premises, its conversion and refurbishment would be 
subject to securing significant funds from the Heritage Lottery Fund and 
other relevant funding programmes. Acquisition of a building would enable 
detailed proposals for this to be drawn up and place the Museum in a 
stronger position to access such funding.  

 
3.10. An agreement to purchase the new building has been reached in principle 

by the Town Council. However, before the purchase can proceed the 
District Council is providing additional support to Cromwell Museum to 
better understand the investment required to undertake interim remedial 
work required to the building in addition to the costs for full refurbishment 
and conversion, which will form the basis for any future funding 
applications.  
 

3.11. Final approval by the Town Council to proceed with the acquisition is 
subject to completion of this work. In the event that Huntingdon Town 
Council do not wish to proceed with the acquisition, the Council will seek 
to identify alternative activities within the scope of the programme which 
can be delivered within the 2024/25 fiscal year.  

 
Former Cinema premises, Huntingdon  
 
3.12. The Council has begun discussions with Huntingdon BID (Business 

Improvement District) concerning the former Huntingdon Cinema at All 
Saints passage. Huntingdon BID has expressed an interest in the property, 
which is owned by the Council, with a view to bringing it back into 
productive commercial use as a boutique style cinema with 
complementary facilities including food and drink.  
 

3.13. This enquiry is at an early stage and may not proceed beyond initial 
discussions. However especially in light of longstanding community 
interest in the future of the building, the Council considers it is helpful to 
report discussions at this point. For a project such as this to progress it 
would be necessary for Huntingdon BID or a partner, they might identify to 

Page 32 of 194



 

secure significant funding from grant or commercial sources to refurbish 
the building and to initiate operation.  

 
3.14. Whilst the Council and Huntingdon BID do not underestimate the level of 

difficulty in enabling a project such as this, if successful this would 
significantly contribute to supporting the evening economy and cultural 
activities within Huntingdon town centre. It may potentially also provide 
Huntingdon BID with a supplementary income with which to support wider 
town centre activities.  

 
4. SHOP FRONT GRANT SCHEME – ALL MARKET TOWNS 

 
4.1. The Council continues to deliver the Shop Front Grant scheme, across 

Huntingdon, St Ives, St Neots and Ramsey. The total value of the scheme 
is £260,000, of which £102,259 in grants have been awarded to date. The 
overall position on grants town by town is summarised below:  
 
 

   Huntingdon   St Ives   St Neots  Ramsey  Total   

Applications   14   11   17  4  46  

Award 
numbers   

10   9   3  2  24   

Reject 
numbers   

2  2  10  1  15  

To be 
reviewed  

2  0  4  1  7  

Grant award   £50,957   £25,040   £19,862  £6,400  £102,259   

Total cost of 
works   

£60,724   £34,575   £21,157  £9,643  £126,099   

Completions   5   6   N/A  N/A  11   

Paid Grants    £21,076   £13,962   N/A  N/A  £35,039   
 

 
 

4.2. As we are now into the last nine months of the scheme it is necessary to 
plan for the closure of the scheme and designate a final application 
deadline. This is so that we can be confident that schemes which have 
been awarded funding can be fully delivered before the CPCA funding 
deadline of 31st March 2025.  
 

4.3. The Council also wishes to make sure that we have utilised all the funds 
available by this point and delivered the maximum benefits possible. 
Consequently, now we can demonstrate successful delivery of grants in 
the market towns and a significant period of application opportunity to 
businesses in their centres in line with the original purpose of the funding, 
we have agreed with CPCA that is appropriate to launch a one-time 

Page 33 of 194



 

extension of the scheme to locations outside of the four main town centres 
on a district wide basis to conclude the scheme.  

 
4.4. This wider district scheme will be open to any independent businesses 

within the district, but outside of the town centre boundaries. A maximum 
grant award of £5,000 will be offered (to consider the wider coverage, 
potentially less prominent locations and the amount of funds remaining) – 
the maximum £10,000 award will still stand for the town centre scheme – 
subject to funds remaining. Successful awards in the scheme so far have 
shown the optimum combination of value and impact can be achieved with 
significantly smaller grant amounts than the maximum amounts.  
 

4.5. The existing scheme terms and conditions will remain the same – for 
example, applicants will still need to provide three quotes for their planned 
works, grants cannot be paid for retrospective works and monies are paid 
on inspection of the completed scheme and evidence of expenditure being 
provided.  
 

4.6. Funding will continue to be offered on a first-come first-saved basis, and 
the wider district scheme applications will be reviewed in September 2024, 
in order of when they were submitted. 

 
4.7. Both town centre and wider district schemes will be formally closed to 

applications on the 1st of September 2024. This will allow up to six months 
for all funded projects to be delivered.  

 
4.8. The extension to the scheme supports the positive feedback the Council 

has received in administering the shop front grant scheme with Huntingdon 
BID and recognising that there are businesses that are not located within 
the towns that could benefit from this funding.  

 
5. DIGITAL INFORMATION SCREENS – ALL MARKET TOWNS 

 
5.1. Work is proceeding satisfactorily toward the delivery of the Digital 

Information Screens across all four market towns. We are working with our 
contractor (Trueform) towards installation of the screens across eight 
locations during 2024.  
 

5.2. The screens will require Advertising Consent from the Planning Authority, 
and applications have now been submitted for this purpose. 
 

5.3. Agreement has been reached with Town Council partners in terms of 
connectivity for the screens and option confirmed for the town map style 
to ensure most functional / user friendly version offered. During July we 
will schedule further discussions with each Town Council and other project 
partners such as Huntingdon BID to consider and review screen content 
so that this can be sourced and provided to Trueform.  
 
6. SMARTER TOWNS – ALL MARKET TOWNS 

 
6.1. The Smarter Towns project was designed to deliver a Lorawan or low 

energy network capable of supporting connected devices and sensors. 

Page 34 of 194



 

This project has now concluded with the installation of Lorawan networks 
in key locations across the district. Sensors which have been deployed 
has included flood sensors on the River Oust to provide an early warning 
system. These networks link to a wider Cambridgeshire network which has 
been developed by Connecting Cambridgeshire.  
 

6.2. Whilst the initial pilot stage is completed, a small amount of funding is still 
available. Consequently, we are investigating ways in which to supplement 
and deploy further sensors that may support the Council’s work. For 
example, the Council currently deploy a network of footfall cameras on 
time-limited funding, the purpose of which is to help provide an indicator 
of the economic health of our town centres.  

 
6.3. As technology is constantly improving, the Council is investigating as part 

of a potential Smarter towns 2 project if replacement footfall sensors can 
be deployed via a Lorawan network more efficiently and at a lower cost. 
Should viable and lower cost options for this be identified, we will seek to 
deliver new sensors in target locations by the end of the calendar year. 
This may be on a pilot basis, should this be considered successful we will 
seek to plan in wider expansion before the project formally closes in March 
2025.   

 
 

7. ST NEOTS 
 

Priory Centre 
 
7.1. The Council’s objective in delivering the Priory Centre scheme is to enable 

a radically improved community and cultural facility, which is financially 
sustainable in the long term.  

 
7.2. Working in partnership with St Neots Town Council, developed a set of 

initial scheme proposals, which were publicly consulted on during 
December 2023. These proposals received widespread public support and 
formed the basis for a ‘detailed’ scheme which has since been produced. 
 

7.3. This detailed scheme consists of internal and external improvements, the 
latter of which is the subject of a live planning application, consisting of a 
new building on the northern end of the Centre, alongside other 
improvements, and additions such as new dormer roof units. 
 

7.4. Approximately 80% of the proposed works to the Priory Centre do not 
require formal planning consent. Work towards improving and refining 
these elements will continue up to the appointment of a contractor for the 
scheme. 

 
7.5. The procurement process for a scheme contractor has been underway 

since June 2024, beginning with the drafting of tender documentation. 
Procurement will be managed as part of a two-stage process. The first of 
which is to identify contractors with the capability to deliver the scheme, 
the second stage will be specific to the project requirements.  

 

Page 35 of 194



 

7.6. The target date for the appointment of a contractor is September, with work 
on the scheme commencing no later than October. Works are expected to 
take 12 months to complete, as previously announced. However, we will 
reinvestigate scope to shorten the closure period through efficiency 
planning, with the contractor once they are in place.  

 
 
Planning Application Status  

 
7.7. The planning application for the scheme, focusing on the north end 

extension and changes to the roof of the Priory Centre was submitted in 
March. This application has received several objections. The most notable 
of which included the following:   

 
• Historic England – impact on the conservation area and the setting to 

nearby listed buildings 
• Environmental Agency – concern highlighted regarding the level of 

reporting on surface water drainage measures into adjacent River.  
• Near Neighbour – objection to scheme on basis of loss of privacy and 

heritage impact 
• Conservation Team, Huntingdonshire District Council – objection raised 

concerning impact on conservation area and local character.  
 
7.8. A full list of consultee comments can be viewed here.  
 
7.9. Considering the objections specifically highlighted above, it has been 

agreed with the Local Planning Authority to extend the period for 
determining the planning application. This will provide additional time for 
the Project team to review the objections and to initiate a dialogue with 
those objecting. The purpose of which will be to adjust the planning 
application to meet concerns, where these are considered appropriate and 
proportionate to the proposals.  

 
7.10. Work on refining and improving those parts of the scheme which are not 

reliant on planning consent will continue throughout this period and up to 
the point a contractor is appointed. This includes, for example, agreeing a 
specification for the interior decoration and equipment provision for items 
such as audio-visual infrastructure.  

 
 
Energy Feasibility Study  
 
7.11. One of the most important objectives in developing proposals for improving 

the Priory Centre has been the building's energy efficiency and 
sustainability. The current Priory Centre is a product of its time (late 1970’s 
and early 1980’s) and is highly energy inefficient, with single pane windows 
throughout and a lack of appropriate insulation.  
 

7.12. The design proposals seek to address this by replacing all windows in the 
Centre and building thermal insulation into the building's fabric wherever 
practicable. This will be a significant improvement and will complement the 

Page 36 of 194

https://docs.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/PublicAccess_Live/SearchResult/RunThirdPartySearch?FileSystemId=PS&FOLDER1_REF=24/00515/HDC


 

Council’s Climate Strategy by supporting the agenda towards 
decarbonisation. 

 
7.13. The Council has also investigated the potential to transition to electric 

rather than gas in the kitchen equipment used at the Centre. However, as 
part of our assessment of the building and its infrastructure, we have 
identified a critical issue concerning electrical capacity to the site, which 
would prevent any significant increase in electrical usage for the building 
and its nearby area. 
 

7.14. The solution to this capacity issue would be through the development of a 
new electricity transformer in the area. This is a significant cost which we 
suggest cannot realistically be absorbed by the Priory Centre project alone 
without excessive scaling back of the project and what it can deliver for 
improvements to the structure and usability of the building. It is also 
unclear whether a transformer could be accommodated in the immediate 
area, noting the heritage constraint’s or whether this would be deliverable 
within the project schedule.  

 
7.15. Services provision in the building (e.g. plumbing) will be upgraded to 

ensure complete readiness for lower-temperature less carbon-intensive 
heating systems such as a heat pump. However, the existing conventional 
heating was recently installed (when an older broken down boiler needed 
urgent replacement prior to the building works) and is in good working 
order. This represents significant embedded carbon, and heat pump 
technology continues to improve. We have established that continued use 
of the existing boiler is practicable despite works around it. There are also 
potential opportunities for a more innovative and efficient heating solution 
at the site location than an air source heat pump that only serves the Priory 
Centre itself. 

 
7.16. To maximise the benefits we can realise against the scheme objectives 

within the current funding envelope, the Council is therefore now 
envisaging maintaining duel fuel gas and electricity supply including the 
gas boiler in the short term, transitioning into less carbon intensive 
systems ending gas use beyond that. We will investigate less carbon 
intensive heating system options in partnership with other properties within 
the Priory Quarter, including the Oast House, and also the library should 
Cambridgeshire County Council wish to partner with the Council as well.   
 

7.17. Consequently, the Council has commissioned an Energy Centre feasibility 
study for the wider site. This study will consider the optimum energy 
solutions and how these can best be delivered, including the electricity 
transformer. This report will be completed by August 2024. The report's 
findings will provide the Council and its partners with the information we 
require to make informed decisions and support funding applications to 
deliver these improvements.  

 
Old Falcon 
 
7.18. Over the past few months there has been a series of detailed surveys 

carried out on the Old Falcon and new designs are currently being 

Page 37 of 194



 

developed to bring the building back into use. The project team are 
currently finalising the programme with architects and various consultants 
and intend to carry out a public event during the summer.  
 

7.19. The Council are working well with the owner to bring forward a new 
planning application for the Old Falcon which both parties will submit in a 
joint application in the Autumn 2024. Following planning submission and 
subject to the necessary statutory approvals, the owner will then bring 
forward the new proposals. 
 

7.20. The Old Falcon project team are working closely with the wider Market 
Towns programme team to ensure a comprehensive approach for the 
Market Square. 

 
Town Centre Improvements 
 
7.21. Works are being completed in line with the overall project schedule to 

January 2025. At the outset of works, we endeavoured to prioritise the 
completion of the Market Square early for the purpose of enabling the 
Christmas lights switch-on event to proceed as normal in November 2024, 
while being clear this could not be guaranteed or relied upon.  
 

7.22. Due to an unmarked cast iron main being discovered unexpectedly within 
the Market Square, we will not be able to provide the entire Square to 
event organisers by this point. The cast iron main has not been claimed by 
any utility company and consequently we are unable to determine if it is 
live. We are therefore proceeding with caution and for safety reasons the 
mains will be excavated by hand rather than machinery, which naturally 
takes more time and will impact our ability to complete the Market Square 
works entirely by the early date of November 2024. We estimate two thirds 
of the square will be complete and usable by that point, but the remaining 
third will need to remain fenced off for ongoing works. 
 

7.23. Whilst the Town Council has determined the Christmas lights switch-on 
will not proceed in its normal way in the Market Square, they are 
developing an alternative programme of festive events spread across the 
town centre so that this important time for the community and our local 
economy can continue to be celebrated.  

 
Public Art  
 
7.24. This project is funded from the Market Towns Programme budget and is 

being delivered directly by St Neots Town Council. The role of the District 
Council in the project is to monitor project delivery by the Town Council 
and to report progress to the CPCA as the funding body.  
 

7.25. Following the completion of tender process the Town Council has engaged 
The Neotists to act as a partner in delivering the St Neots Art Project. The 
Neotists will be leading on three sections of work which will see the delivery 
of the community artwork project. The Neotists will be reporting back to a 
Town Council working group at each stage, with the Council retaining the 
sign-off of themes, designs, and the final installation.  

Page 38 of 194



 

 
7.26. The three stages are as follows: 
 

• Stage 1: Research, engagement, theme, and location development 
• Stage 2: Materials, design, and concept stage, followed by public 

engagement/consultation. 
• Stage 3: Implementation, from planning permissions through to 

manufacture and installation 
 
7.27. The Project is currently in stage 1 and the Neotists, working with a local 

company have delivered workshops with key community groups and 
residents to discuss and develop themes and locations. Public surveys 
have also been run to gather opinions, thoughts, and feedback to inform 
the nature of the artwork.  
 

7.28. Research around these themes is nearing completion and this will be 
pulled together and suggested final themes and locations brought to the 
Council. A summary of the survey results and the workshops is included 
in Appendix B and C.  
 
8. FUNDING 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 39 of 194



 

9. FINANCE UPDATE  
 

Funding source Grant secured Spend to date Balance 

1. St Neots Regeneration 

Future High Street 
Fund 

£3,748,815 £2,395,862 £1,352,953 

Community 
Infrastructure Levy 

£4,830,000 £0 £4,830,000 

CPCA £3,100,000 £150,477 £2,949,523 

National Highways £3,493,218 £2,188,261 £1,304,957 

CPCA Masterplan 
phase 1 (legacy) 

£260,000 £69,862 £190,138 

Funding totals £15,432,033 £4,804,462 £10,627,571 
 
  

Funding source Grant secured Spend to dare Balance 

2. Huntingdon & St Ives 

CPCA Masterplans 
& Accelerated 
Funding (*post 
change control 
March 2023) 

£802,150 £229,764 £567,385 

Funding totals £802,150 £229,764 £567,385 
 
 

Funding source Grant secured Spend to dare Balance 

3. Ramsey 

Local Growth Fund £1,153,525 £0 £1,153,525 

UKSP (revenue) £221,000 £31,022 £189,978 

CPCA Accelerated 
Funding (legacy) 

£295,000 £32,585 £262,415 

Funding totals £1,669,525 £63,607 £1,605,918 
 
 

Funding source Grant secured Spend to date Balance 

4. Programme total 

All funding sources £17,903,708 £5,097,833  
 
(£1,147,581 
increased 
expenditure versus 
April update). 

£12,800,874 

 

Page 40 of 194



 

10. COMMENTS OF OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
 
10.1. The comments of the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Panel will be 

included in this section prior to its consideration by the Cabinet. 
 

11. KEY IMPACTS / RISKS 
  
BUDGET MANAGEMENT RISK 
 
11.1. The projects that sit within the MTP are at various stages and therefore, 

as work progresses to detailed level, cost reliability and accuracy 
increases, the level of risk is more certain.  

 
11.2. One of the most significant elements of the MTP was the St Neots Town 

Centre Improvements. The tender process for this resulted in costs being 
confirmed at a significant cost saving compared to previous estimates. 
This has lowered the risk for this project and the programme overall 
significantly.  

 
11.3. The Priory Centre project does present an elevated risk level in cost terms 

currently. As another construction-based scheme it is likely to be affected 
by the significant inflation this sector has experienced in the two years. 
Whilst inflation has reduced, we will continue to review the state of the 
market and develop measures to reduce costs should it be necessary such 
as value engineering.  

 
PROGRAMME RESOURCE RISKS 
 
11.4. The MTP requires different skills, expertise, and external technical support 

at various stages of project delivery. The programme itself has multiple 
projects which must be managed simultaneously identifying all 
interdependences across the programme. There is significant internal and 
external stakeholder management and detailed consultation with partners 
and resident/ business groups.  

 
11.5. This could result in competing priorities across organisations that will 

require careful consideration. Mitigation: As part of the project, a detailed 
resources plan and communications strategy with stakeholders has been 
developed to ensure the management of expectations and information 
being shared promptly. The HDC’s website is regularly updated with the 
progress across the core programme sites, more time is being invested in 
engaging stakeholders, a greater presence on social media and 
revamping of the newsletter. 

 
REPUTATIONAL RISKS 
 
11.6. The MTP is a high priority for the Council, so monthly reporting, 

governance and timely decision-making are critical to ensure the 
programme is successfully delivered. A further key element is having in 
place a well-planned Communications Plan. This is monitored weekly and 
designed to be proactive, looking ahead several months for potential 

Page 41 of 194



 

issues for which communications and publicity are important tools for 
resolving.  

 
11.7. Further to this, the programme governance and reporting lines will be 

continually monitored to ensure that the key programme milestones are 
managed and achieved. A full MTP programme risk register is in place 
along with individual project risk registers. Given the size and complexity 
of the MTP it features on the Council’s Strategic Risk register, along with 
the mitigating actions. 

 
LINK TO THE CORPORATE PLAN, STRATEGIC PRIORITIES, AND/OR 
CORPORATE OBJECTIVES 
 
11.8. The delivery of the MTP is aligned with the principles and key objectives 

of the HDC Corporate Plan, specifically it links to: 
 

• Priority 2: Creating a better Huntingdonshire for future generations, 
through Forward Thinking Economic Growth 

 
 

12. CONSULTATION 
 
12.1. Within the reporting period, it should be noted that a statutory consultation 

has been undertaken in relation to the Priory Centre planning application. 
This has resulted in the Planning Application determination being 
extended to July, initially, to assess and respond to comments and 
objections which have been received. 
 

12.2. A non-statutory consultation is being planned for the end of Summer 2024. 
This is in relation to emerging project proposals concerning the Ramsey 
town centre enhancement programme.  

 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
12.3. This programme contains multiple projects where legal advice and 

guidance is required as part of project delivery. Project Staff will liaise with 
the Legal Services Manager as required to ensure appropriate legal 
oversight and advice if provided when relevant.  

 
RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.4. The MTP Project team is currently fully resourced in staffing and budget 

terms to   deliver the MTP programme as set out. 
 
EQUALITIES 
 
12.5. The Council has a statutory duty to promote equality of opportunity, 

eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and foster 
good relations in respect of nine protected characteristics: age, disability, 
gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, and sexual orientation.  

 

Page 42 of 194



 

12.6. Good planning and effective regeneration can improve environments and 
opportunities for communities experiencing disadvantage. Planning which 
does not engage with or consider the needs of local communities is 
unlikely to improve their life chances and may further entrench area-based 
disadvantage. 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL 
 
12.7. The Council has a duty to ensure we continue to promote an 

environmentally positive recovery in Huntingdonshire following the 
impacts of COVID 19. We also have a duty to deliver sustainable place 
making. In December 2021, the Council adopted a core set of 
environmental principles. In October 2022, the Council passed a Cost of 
Living and Climate Change motion that recognises that the current cost of 
living, and climate crises require joint attention to support the wellbeing of 
residents and businesses. In February 2023 Council formally recognised 
the Climate Crisis and Ecological Emergency, adopted the Council’s 
Climate Strategy underlining the organisations commitment to: 

 
• setting a positive example through its actions to be a net carbon zero 

Council by 2040 
• an enabler supporting action within our communities and across our 

partners.  
• an encourager to those that live, work, and visit Huntingdonshire to take 

climate action and reduce carbon emissions. 
 
12.8. The Council has direct control of only a tiny proportion of all the carbon 

emissions within Huntingdonshire, but we can adopt a key role to influence 
the district, demonstrating good practice whilst setting policies and 
strategies to influence businesses and communities to tackle climate 
change whilst enabling sustainable living and growth. These principles are 
embedded within the MTP. 

 
 
LIST OF APPENDICES INCLUDED 

 
Appendix A: Ramsey feasibility study stage 2 
Appendix B: St Neots public art survey 
Appendix C: St Neots public art workshop summary 
  

Page 43 of 194

https://councilanywhereorg.sharepoint.com/:b:/r/sites/HDC_Work_Programme_SLT/Shared%2520Documents/General/Enterprise%2520Programme%2520Management%2520Office/Current%2520Work%2520Programme%2520Reporting/NEW%2520Market%2520Towns%2520Regeneration%2520Project/MTP%2520PMO%2520and%2520Governance/Cabinet/Cabinet%2520Papers%25202022-23/Cabinet%2520July%25202024/Appendix%2520A%2520Ramsey%2520Town%2520Centre_Stage%25202%2520Report.pdf?csf=1&web=1&e=b8buQe
https://councilanywhereorg.sharepoint.com/:b:/r/sites/HDC_Work_Programme_SLT/Shared%2520Documents/General/Enterprise%2520Programme%2520Management%2520Office/Current%2520Work%2520Programme%2520Reporting/NEW%2520Market%2520Towns%2520Regeneration%2520Project/MTP%2520PMO%2520and%2520Governance/Cabinet/Cabinet%2520Papers%25202022-23/Cabinet%2520July%25202024/Appendix%2520B%2520Keystone_Hearbeat%2520survey%2520report.pdf?csf=1&web=1&e=IcMFYT
https://councilanywhereorg.sharepoint.com/:b:/r/sites/HDC_Work_Programme_SLT/Shared%2520Documents/General/Enterprise%2520Programme%2520Management%2520Office/Current%2520Work%2520Programme%2520Reporting/NEW%2520Market%2520Towns%2520Regeneration%2520Project/MTP%2520PMO%2520and%2520Governance/Cabinet/Cabinet%2520Papers%25202022-23/Cabinet%2520July%25202024/Appendix%2520C%2520Heartbeat%2520of%2520St%2520Neots%2520workshop%2520summary.pdf?csf=1&web=1&e=ZhKX0e


 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

• Report to Cabinet (FHSF (Future High Street Fund)) 13th February 2020 
can be found here 

 
• Report to Cabinet (FHSF) 28th July 2020 – EXEMPT. 

 
• Report to Cabinet (Market Towns Accelerated Programme) 18th March 

2020 can be found here 
 

• Report to Cabinet (FHSF) 23rd. February 2021 can be found here 
 

• Market Towns Programme Spring 2022 Update to Cabinet, 17 March 2022 
can be found here 

 
• Market Towns Programme Summer 2022 Update to Cabinet June 2022 

can be found here  
 

• Market Towns Programme Autumn 2022 Update to Cabinet September 
2022 can be found here 

 
• Market Towns Programme Winter 2022 Update to Cabinet December 

2022 can be found here 
 

• Market Towns Programme Spring 2023 Update to Cabinet March 2023 
can be found here  

 
• Market Towns Programme Autumn 2023 Update to Cabinet October 2023 

can be found here 
 

• Market Towns Programme Winter 2023 Update to Cabinet December 
2023 can be found here 
 

• Market Towns Programme Spring 2024 Update to Cabinet April 2024 can 
be found here  

 

 

CONTACT OFFICER 
 
Name/Job Title: Pamela Scott, Regeneration & Housing Delivery Manager  
Tel No:   01480 388486 
Email:   pamela.scott@huntingdonshre.gov.uk  

Page 44 of 194

http://applications.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s108511/Future%25252520High%25252520Street%25252520Fund%25252520Report.pdf
http://moderngov.huntsdc.gov.uk:8070/documents/s114878/AC19TP%25252520-%25252520Accelerated%25252520COVID-19%25252520Towns%25252520Programme.pdf
http://moderngov.huntsdc.gov.uk:8070/documents/s114574/Future%25252520High%25252520Street%25252520Fund%25252520-%25252520Public%25252520Report.pdf
http://applications.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s119797/7.%25252520Market%25252520Towns%25252520Programme%25252520-%25252520Spring%25252520Update%25252520Report.pdf
http://applications.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s120301/4.%25252520Market%25252520Towns%25252520Programme%25252520-%25252520Summer%25252520Update%25252520Report%25252520Final.pdf
https://councilanywhereorg.sharepoint.com/:w:/r/sites/HDC_Work_Programme_SLT/Shared%252520Documents/General/Enterprise%252520Programme%252520Management%252520Office/Current%252520Work%252520Programme%252520Reporting/Market%252520Towns%252520Regeneration%252520Programme/Cabinet,%252520OSC,%252520Member%252520%252520and%252520TC%252520Briefings/Cabinet,%252520Member%252520Briefings%252520MTP/Cabinet%252520September%25252022/MTP%252520Cabinet-%252520Autumn%25252022%252520Report%252520.docx?d=we0c3a35e01584f8c9141e0237acf3e3d&csf=1&web=1&e=VPRODN
https://councilanywhereorg.sharepoint.com/:w:/r/sites/HDC_Work_Programme_SLT/Shared%252520Documents/General/Enterprise%252520Programme%252520Management%252520Office/Current%252520Work%252520Programme%252520Reporting/Market%252520Towns%252520Regeneration%252520Programme/Cabinet,%252520OSC,%252520Member%252520%252520and%252520TC%252520Briefings/Cabinet,%252520Member%252520Briefings%252520MTP/Cabinet%252520December%2525202022/MTP%252520Cabinet-%252520Dec%2525202022%252520report%252520version%2525200.5%252520-%252520Final.docx?d=w9b0528f6ba51439da69dc45f705dbdf0&csf=1&web=1&e=OIktIz
https://councilanywhereorg.sharepoint.com/:w:/r/sites/HDC_Work_Programme_SLT/Shared%252520Documents/General/Enterprise%252520Programme%252520Management%252520Office/Current%252520Work%252520Programme%252520Reporting/NEW%252520Market%252520Towns%252520Regeneration%252520Project/MTP%252520PMO%252520and%252520Governance/Cabinet/Cabinet%252520Papers%2525202022-23/Cabinet%252520March%2525202023/MTP%252520Cabinet-%252520March%2525202023%252520FINAL.docx?d=w08d2197b8fec42f38e8203da552c1f35&csf=1&web=1&e=sfp7wz
https://councilanywhereorg.sharepoint.com/:w:/r/sites/HDC_Work_Programme_SLT/Shared%2520Documents/General/Enterprise%2520Programme%2520Management%2520Office/Current%2520Work%2520Programme%2520Reporting/NEW%2520Market%2520Towns%2520Regeneration%2520Project/MTP%2520PMO%2520and%2520Governance/Cabinet/Cabinet%2520Papers%25202022-23/Cabinet%2520October%252023/MTP%2520Cabinet-%2520Oct%25202023%2520FINAL%2520BUT%2520NEEDS%2520FORMATTING.docx?d=wd0f612924d0d445c870dbd97aeae6ceb&csf=1&web=1&e=G2FyWD
https://democracy.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s131508/Market%2520Towns%2520Programme%2520Winter%2520Update%2520Report.pdf
https://democracy.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s133156/7.%2520Market%2520Towns%2520Spring%2520Update%2520Report.pdf
mailto:pamela.scott@huntingdonshre.gov.uk


Ramsey Town Centre

 
Stage 2 Report

 

10.06.2024

Great Whyte Ramsey, 1905

P
age 45 of 194



2Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

1.
Introduction

P
age 46 of 194



3Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Project Information Consultant Team

Project 		  Ramsey High Street
			   Ramsey, 
			   Huntingdon 
			   PE26 1HA
	

Client		  Huntingdon District Council

			   Sam Caldbeck
			   St Mary’s St,
			   Huntingdon
			   PE29 3TN

			 
			 
			 
			 

Architects	
Project Director
Project Designer

Quantity Surveyors & Project Manager
Director

Services Engineers
Director
Senior Engineer

Structural Engineers
Director
Director
Engineer

AOC Architecture
Tom Coward
Dan Wilkins

MEA
Mike O’Hanlon

RED Engineering Design
Stas Brzeski
Jason Anderson

Simple Works
Phil Isaac
Laura Hannigan
Sinead Conneely 

Tom Coward
Director
tom.coward@theaoc.co.uk
020 7739  9950

38-50 Pritchards Road
London E2 9AP

www.theaoc.co.uk

Project Contact

P
age 47 of 194



4Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Contents

2	 1.0    INTRODUCTION
	 Project information			 
	 Project team
	 Contents	 				  

5	 2.0    BRIEFING
	 2.1	 Project Brief
	 2.2	 Project Objectives 
	 2.3	 Project Vision and Aims
	 2.4	 Project Priorities

8	 3.0    APPRAISAL
	 3.1	 Site appraisal 
	
19	 4.0    OUTLINE DESIGN -			 
		  MEWS CLOSE	
	 4.1	 Brief Analysis
	 4.2	 Concept Design

26	 5.0    OUTLINE DESIGN -			 
		  GREAT WHYTE
	 5.1	 Brief Analysis
	 5.2	 Concept Design

37	 6.0    OUTLINE DESIGN -			 
		  SHOP IN  A BOX
	 6.1	 Brief Analysis
	 6.2	 Precedents
	 6.3	 Cost Conparison
	 6.4	 Access Requirements
	 6.5	 Arrangment
	 6.6	 Form
	 6.7	 Civil Egineering
	 6.8	 Power 
	 6.9	 Construction

72	 7.0    PROJECT MANAGEMENT
	 7.1	 Construction Cost Estimate	
	 7.2	 Options Appraisal
	 7.3	 Target Programme
	 7.4	 Project Risks
	 7.5	 Next Steps
	 7.6	 Survey Summary
	 7.7	 Overview of feedback

	

P
age 48 of 194



5Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

2.
Briefing 

P
age 49 of 194



6Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

2.1 Project Brief

The initial brief and scope, as set out 
by Huntingdon District includes the 
following: 

- A feasibility study and options analysis 
concerning public realm enhancements 
(including pedestrianisation of public 
highway) and the provision of small self-
contained units located in the area to be 
pedestrianised, capable of being used as 
short-term flexible retail spaces.

Funding
Huntingdonshire District Council was 
awarded funding from the Cambridge 
and Peterborough Combined Authority 
(CPCA) for the purpose of delivering two 
linked projects in the Great Whyte area of 
Ramsey town centre.

Desired Outcome
The desired outcome from the 
implementation of these projects is an 
improved local environment, including 
the pedestrianisation of a short stretch 
of public highway, and a stronger more 
resilient local economy, enabled by 
providing an alternative and flexible 
approach to encouraging new traders 
and footfall. Whilst these projects are 
technically separate with independent 
funding streams, they are effectively a 
combined scheme. Project 2 for example, 
cannot proceed without Project 1 being 
implemented.

Project 1 (Public Realm)

This is focused on the design and delivery 
of improvements to the local town centre 
environment, in a central area called the 
Great Whyte. This project is in receipt of 
funds totalling £300,000 for the design and 
delivery of the scheme in its entirety. 

Project 1 will require the removal of removal 
of 16 car parking spaces. It is a critical 
requirement of this commission to identify 
locations for re-providing these spaces in 
nearby locations.

Project 1 Requirements

•	 Options for de-cluttering, improving 
amenities, signage, and where necessary, 
resurfacing or adjustments that will 
enable a pedestrian only zone 

•	 Ability to accommodate the weekly town 
market 

•	 Re-provide 16no. removed parking spaces

Project 2 (‘Shop in a box ‘)

Previously titled as ‘Market Produce Hub’ 
was awarded £1.1M for design and delivery 
from the CPCA via the Government’s Local 
Growth Fund.

We wish to explore options for the provision 
of a number of small flexible retail units 
of a wooden core structure, with a design 
which is bespoke to Ramsey and informed 
by the heritage and history of the town. The 
requirement is to develop a lightweight and 
flexible structure and space, which will not 
require intrusive civil engineering works, 
and which could, if required, be relocated to 
an alternative location in the future.

We envisage a small retail space which 
can be let on a very low-cost basis by 
independent traders, some of whom may be 
considering moving from online only, to a 
physical retail presence.

Project 2 Requirements
Explore feasibility of ‘Shop in a Box’ 
concept in terms of project budget and scale 
and impact on local economy.

Critical considerations: 
•	 Ease of Maintenance, Security, Design 

life 
•	 Units to have electricity  
•	 Water & Toilet facilities not considered 

necessary due to proximity of  facilities 
within the Town Council Civic Centre.

•	 Advise on size & number of units. A 
balance required to avoid ‘overcrowding’ 
the Great Whyte Area.

•	 Concept design will ideally draw on 
aspects of local history or heritage. 
There may also be opportunity to 
incorporate an element of public art.

•	 Unit size, refer to ‘Business in a Box’ 
enterprise at St Ives.

•	 Engage with local Stakeholders. 

Required Outputs

•	 Feasibility Study & Assessment for 
Project 1 and 2 

•	 Concept Design up to RIBA stage 2
•	 Up to 3 options produced, which identify 

different approaches to the design 
and layout of the pedestrian zone, 
incorporating ‘project 2’ units

•	 Revised car park plan layout plan for the 
Mews Close off street ca park, identifying 
options for increased capacity

•	 Red line plan identifying existing 
loading bays available for re-designation, 
incorporated into commission 
documentation.

•	 Options assessment
•	 Recommendations on next steps

Design & Build Budget

The combined project budget for all costs 
relating to the delivery of Projects 1 and 2 is 
£1.4M.

Amended extract from Ramsey feasibility and 
options assessment document. 

P
age 50 of 194



7Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

2.2 Project Objectives 2.3 Vision & Aims 2.4 Priorities

PROJECT AIMS 

Mews Close
Rationalise parking arrangement to 
provide additional spaces to make up 
shortfall

Great Whyte
Pedestrianisation of Great Whyte to; 
•	 improve public amenity 
•	 accommodate market and shop 

trading host local events and festivals 
•	 showcase public services

Shop in a box 
- Provision of small retail space 
- Robust sustainable construction
- Electricity services
- Access and inclusion

To be let on a very low-cost basis by 
independent traders

MAIN PRIORITIES

1. Accessible and sustainable shop 
in box - low cost retail spaces, with 
potential for relocation.

2. No net loss of car parking, with a 
focus on convenient redistribution of 16 
spaces including disabled parking bays

3. Service bay strategy

4. understood co-ordination with 
market square functions and events, to 
ensure a balanced flexible use of spaces

5. De-cluttering and enhancement of 
public space to support civic amenity

6. Optimise space layout to promote 
outdoor commercial opportunities for 
cafes and restaurants

7. Amendments to public realm to 
manage pedestrianisation, shop service 
and fire access

OBJECTIVES

Improved local environment, including;
•	 Pedestrianisation of a short stretch of 

public highway with enhanced public 
amenity

•	 Additional accessible shop units 
within public realm

•	 Re-provision of local market space
•	 Facilitate stronger more resilient local 

economy, enabled by providing an 
alternative and flexible approach to 
encouraging new traders and footfall

•	 Relocated street parking including 
disabled parking

•	 Designated service bays

P
age 51 of 194



8Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

3.
Appraisal

P
age 52 of 194



9Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

47min
30 miles

CAMBRIDGE

ST IVES

RAMSEY

24min
12 miles

28min
13 miles

PETERBOROUGH

LONDON

2hr
86 miles

3.1 Site Appraisal

Ramsey is a market town in the Huntingdon 
district of Cambridgeshire. It houses a 
population of approximately 5,700. 

Ramsey is located approximately 13 miles 
from Peterborough, 30 miles from Cambridge 
and 86 miles from central London. 

Ramsey - Location Context 

P
age 53 of 194



10Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Location Plan
1
2

3 5 8
94 6

7

Site - The Great Whyte Walled Garden Ramsey Abby Business Park Town Walk
Bury Town WalkRamsey Gliding 

Club
Ramsey Rural 
Museum

Golf Course
Cricket Ground

Site - Mews Close

12
3

4

5

6

7

8

9

P
age 54 of 194



11Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Location Plan

B1096 HIGH STREET

B
1
0
4
0
 G

R
E

A
T
 W

H
Y

T
E

H
ig

h
 L

o
d

e
 R

iv
e

r

H
ig

h
 L

o
d
e
 R

ive
r

Great Whyte 
Pedestrian area

10 min walk from blue dot

10 m
in

 w
alk fr

om
 blu

e dot

10 min walk from blue dot

Mews close 
car park

Site Boundary

P
age 55 of 194



12Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

BUSINESS

PROJECT 1
GREAT WHYTE
PEDESTRIANISATION

PROJECT 2
GREAT WHYTE
SHOP IN A BOX

CLOCK

PROJECT 1
MEWS CLOSE
CAR PARK

TOWN 
HALL

LIBRARY

Location Plan

Shops & Businesses

Site Boundary

Local Authority Buildings

KEY:

P
age 56 of 194



13Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Location Plan - Mews Close

P
age 57 of 194



14Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Site Photos - Mews Close

P
age 58 of 194



15Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Location Plan - Great Whyte

P
age 59 of 194



16Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Site Photos - Great Whyte

P
age 60 of 194



17Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Site Photos - Great Whyte

P
age 61 of 194



18Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Historic village scale

Stepping cottage roof forms

Varied retail featuresFamiliar elements across contrasting neighbours

Local Typology

P
age 62 of 194



19Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

4.
Outline Design

Mews Close Parking

P
age 63 of 194



20Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Town Centre Parking Areas

Parking study proposed measures to Mews close

- Rationalise the arrangement to add more spaces
- Remove cycle parking shelter
- Remove trolley parking shelter ownership TBC
- Remove/relocate HDC recycling centre
- Remove/relocate HDC skip blocking bay
- Convert some long stay spaces to short stay (increase space turnover)
- Implement 3 hour max stay on Great Whyte 
- Enforce time restrictions & double yellow lines on Great Whyte

Parking study Data Source document: Ramsey Parking Study 784-B030058 

Weekday occupancy Saturday occupancy

4.1 Brief Analysis

P
age 64 of 194



21Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Existing
Long stay: 22 spaces
Short stay: 39 spaces
Total: 61 spaces (5 accessible)

Option 3- Radical thinking
Long stay: 25 spaces
Short stay: 53 spaces
Total: 78 spaces (5 accessible)
17 additional
Note: 
- Accessible space ratio changed
- Bike park relocated
- Entrance and trees removed
- 2 Entrances added
- Recycling position requires testing

Option 2- Minimal change- 2 way system
Long stay: 24 spaces
Short stay: 45 spaces
Total: 69 spaces (5 Accessible)
8 additional
Note: 
- Delivery access is direct
- Recycling position requires testing
- 3 metre pinch points 
- CCTV/lamp post position critical

Option 1- Minimal change- 1 way system
Long stay: 24 spaces
Short stay: 43 spaces
Total: 67 spaces (5 Accessible)
6 additional
Note: 
- Delivery access not direct
- Recycling position requires testing
- 1 way system implemented

G
ra

s
s

PRIVATE PROPERTY

COVER

PATH

H
e

d
g

e

Parking spaces

GATE

Drain

Drain

LOADING AREA

Pot hole

Path

Bush

Path

Bush

Lamp post

Fence

Fence

2
4

0
0

4800

1
2

0
0

2400

4
8

0
0

4
8

0
0

6715

BIN

Clothes recycling 

Recycling centre sign

Lamppost

V
E

R
Y

 F
A

IN
T

 L
IN

E
S

BIKE PARK

 ZONE

Post

2400

4
8
0
0

1200

D
ra

in

Path

Lamppost
Bollard x2 CCTV

Bollard

4
8

0
0

2400

Long stay: 22 spaces
1 Accessible
21 Standard

Short stay: 39 spaces
4 Accessible
35 Standard

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14
1 15 16 17 18 19

20 21 1 2 3 4 5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

15

14

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27 28 29 30
31

32

33

34

35

1

2
3

44
0
0
6

G
ra

s
s

PRIVATE PROPERTY

COVER

PATH

H
e

d
g

e

Parking spaces

GATE

Drain

Drain

LOADING AREA

Pot hole

Path

Bush

Path

Bush

Lamp post

Fence

Fence

2400

4
8

0
0

Lamppost

2400

4
8
0
0

1200

D
ra

in

Path

Lamppost

Bollard x2CCTV

4
8

0
0

2400

2
4

0
0

4800

1
2

0
0

3
6

6
1

6000

BIKE ACCESS ZONE

3
5

2
6

3277

BIKE PARK

Post

4
3

6
0

6
0

0
0

Recycling 
moves to here

3181

7203

Option to move path 
to over here 
(creating 1 new space)

Long stay: 24 spaces
1 Accessible
23 Standard

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14
1 15 16 17 18 19

20 21 1 2 3 4 5
22 23

Short stay: 45 spaces
4 Accessible
41 Standard

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

25

14

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

33 34 35 36 37

1

2
3

4

15

26

27

28

29

30

38

39

40

41

6000

6000

31

32

3
3

8
6

G
ra

s
s

PRIVATE PROPERTY

COVER

PATH

H
e

d
g

e

Parking spaces

GATE

Drain

Drain

LOADING AREA

Pot hole

Path

Bush

Path

Bush

Lamp post

Fence

Fence

2400

4
8

0
0

Lamppost

2400

4
8
0
0

1200

D
ra

in

Path

Lamppost

Bollard x2CCTV

4
8

0
0

2400

repaint
lines

2
4

0
0

4800

1
2

0
0

4
7
3
7

6000

6
0

0
0

6
0

0
0

6000

BIKE ACCESS ZONE

6
0

0
0

5067

One way system 
introduced

BIKE PARK

Post

5
6
0
4

6
0

0
0

6
0
0
0

Recycling 
moves to here

3181

7203

Long stay: 24 spaces
1 Accessible
23 Standard

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14

1

15 16 17 18 19
20 21 1 2 3 4 5

22 23

Short stay: 43 spaces
4 Accessible
39 Standard

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

25

14

16 17 18 19 20 21 22

23 24

31 32 33 34 35

1

2
3

4

15

26 27 28 29 30

36

37

38

39

G
ra

s
s

PRIVATE PROPERTY

COVER

PATH

H
e

d
g

e

Parking spaces

GATE

Drain

Drain

LOADING AREA

Pot hole

Path

Bush

Path

Bush

Lamp post

Fence

Fence

4
8

0
0

2400

Recycling 

2400

4
8

0
0

6
0

0
0

BIKE PARK

Lamppost

Bollard x2CCTV

6
0

0
0

6
0

0
0

2400

4
8
0
0

1200

6
0
0
0

6
0

0
0

width of path decreased and 
merged with accessible bay 
access zone

6
0

0
0

6
0

0
0

New entrance 

Overhead 
power issue?

Power line post

Reduce footprint 
of grass 

Lamppost

2040

Long stay: 25 spaces
2 Accessible
23 Standard

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14

1

15 16 17 18 19

1 2 3 4 5

Short stay: 53 spaces
3 Accessible
50 Standard

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

25

14 16 17 18
19

20

21 22 23 24
31 32 33

34 35

1
2

3

15

26 27 28 29 30

36 37 38 39

2
20

40 41 42 43 44

Skip removed

45

46

47

48 49 50

21 22 23

Parking Study
Long stay: 22 spaces
Short stay: 47 spaces
Total: 69 spaces
8 additional (with notes)

1.

2.

Note:
1. Blocks access
2. Removes tree
3. Loses 1 accessible space

4.2 Concept Design

Parking study Data Source document: 
Ramsey Parking Study 784-B030058 

Parking Challenge

16 lost parking spaces
including 4 accessible bays

4 accessible bays retained on Great Whyte
(see below)

Mews close to provide min. 
12 additional spaces

TARGET 73 spaces (5 accessible)

Options Overview

P
age 65 of 194



22Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

G
ra

s
s

PRIVATE PROPERTY

COVER

PATH

H
e
d
g
e

Parking spaces

GATE

Drain

Drain

LOADING AREA

Pot hole

Path

Bush

Path

Bush

Lamp post

Fence

Fence

2
4

0
0

4800

1
2

0
0

2400

4
8

0
0

4
8

0
0

6715

BIN

Clothes recycling 

Recycling centre sign

Lamppost

V
E

R
Y

 F
A

IN
T

 L
IN

E
S

BIKE PARK

 ZONE

Post

2400

4
8
0
0

1200

D
ra

in

Path

Lamppost
Bollard x2 CCTV

Bollard

4
8

0
0

2400

Long stay: 22 spaces
1 Accessible
21 Standard

Short stay: 39 spaces
4 Accessible
35 Standard

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14
1 15 16 17 18 19

20 21 1 2 3 4 5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

15

14

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27 28 29 30
31

32

33

34

35

1

2
3

44
0
0
6

Existing Plan
Ownership Boundary

Right of  access

Right of  access

Total Spaces: 61 

P
age 66 of 194



23Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

G
ra

s
s

PRIVATE PROPERTY

COVER

PATH

H
e
d
g
e

Parking spaces

GATE

Drain

Drain

LOADING AREA

Pot hole

Path

Bush

Path

Bush

Lamp post

Fence

Fence

2400

4
8

0
0

Lamppost

2400

4
8
0
0

1200

D
ra

in

Path

Lamppost

Bollard x2CCTV

4
8

0
0

2400

repaint
lines

2
4

0
0

4800

1
2

0
0

4
7
3
7

6000

6
0

0
0

6
0

0
0

6000

BIKE ACCESS ZONE

6
0

0
0

5067

One way system 
introduced

BIKE PARK

Post

5
6
0
4

6
0

0
0

6
0
0
0

Recycling 
moves to here

3181

7203

Long stay: 24 spaces
1 Accessible
23 Standard

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14

1

15 16 17 18 19
20 21 1 2 3 4 5

22 23

Short stay: 43 spaces
4 Accessible
39 Standard

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

25

14

16 17 18 19 20 21 22

23 24

31 32 33 34 35

1

2
3

4

15

26 27 28 29 30

36

37

38

39

Option 1 - Minimal Changes 1 - way System
Ownership Boundary

Right of  access

Right of  access

Total Spaces: 67

P
age 67 of 194



24Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

G
ra

s
s

PRIVATE PROPERTY

COVER

PATH

H
e
d
g
e

Parking spaces

GATE

Drain

Drain

LOADING AREA

Pot hole

Path

Bush

Path

Bush

Lamp post

Fence

Fence

2400

4
8

0
0

Lamppost

2400

4
8
0
0

1200

D
ra

in

Path

Lamppost

Bollard x2CCTV

4
8

0
0

2400

2
4

0
0

4800

1
2

0
0

3
6

6
1

6000

BIKE ACCESS ZONE

3
5

2
6

3277

BIKE PARK

Post

4
3

6
0

6
0

0
0

Recycling 
moves to here

3181

7203

Option to move path 
to over here 
(creating 1 new space)

Long stay: 24 spaces
1 Accessible
23 Standard

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14
1 15 16 17 18 19

20 21 1 2 3 4 5
22 23

Short stay: 45 spaces
4 Accessible
41 Standard

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

25

14

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

33 34 35 36 37

1

2
3

4

15

26

27

28

29

30

38

39

40

41

6000

6000

31

32

3
3

8
6

Option 2 - Minimal Changes 2 - way System
Ownership Boundary

Right of  access

Right of  access

Access
challenge

Total Spaces: 69

P
age 68 of 194



25Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

G
ra

s
s

PRIVATE PROPERTY

COVER

PATH

H
e
d
g
e

Parking spaces

GATE

Drain

Drain

LOADING AREA

Pot hole

Path

Bush

Path

Bush

Lamp post

Fence

Fence

4
8

0
0

2400

Recycling 

2400

4
8

0
0

6
0

0
0

BIKE PARK

Lamppost

Bollard x2CCTV

6
0

0
0

6
0

0
0

2400

4
8
0
0

1200

6
0
0
0

6
0

0
0

width of path decreased and 
merged with accessible bay 
access zone

6
0

0
0

6
0

0
0

New entrance 

Overhead 
power issue?

Power line post

Reduce footprint 
of grass 

Lamppost

2040

Long stay: 25 spaces
2 Accessible
23 Standard

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14

1

15 16 17 18 19

1 2 3 4 5

Short stay: 53 spaces
3 Accessible
50 Standard

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

25

14 16 17 18
19

20

21 22 23 24
31 32 33

34 35

1
2

3

15

26 27 28 29 30

36 37 38 39

2
20

40 41 42 43 44

Skip removed

45

46

47

48 49 50

21 22 23

Option 3 - Radical thinking
Ownership Boundary

Total Spaces: 78

Right of  access

Right of  access

NEXT STEPS;

TEST VEHICLE 

TRACKING

+

ENGAGE HIGHWAYS, 

MANAGE SERVICES

confirm council ownership

check tracking

confirm
entrance

engage
neighbours

confirm
service

P
age 69 of 194



26Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

5.
Outline Design

Great Whyte pedestrianisation 

P
age 70 of 194



27Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

5.1 Spatial Analysis

1. The existing car parking provison 
dominates this section of the Great 
Whyte, limiting other uses without 
temporary closures.

2. Pedestrian functions are 
compressed into the available areas

3. Little space is available for 
extended retail functions including 
the proposed shop-in-box provision 
and existing shops opening onto the 
street.

4. The temporary local market claims 
space when it can impinging into 
public highway and parking

BUS STOP

CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

BUS STOP

CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

XMAS 
TREE

XMAS 
TREE

RETAIL PODS

1 2 3

4 5 6

7 8 9

10 11 12

1 2 3

4 5 6

RETAIL PODS

1 2 3

4 5 6
1 2 3

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

BUS STOP CLOCK

XMAS 
TREE

13 standard spaces + 4 accessible

6 Market stalls 
(3x3m each)

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9 10 11 12 13 2 3 4

1 2 3 4 5 6

Existing
Close to previous location

1.

2.
3.

4.

P
age 71 of 194



28Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Option 1
Close to previous location

Market Stall Arrangement

BUS STOP

CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

BUS STOP

CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

XMAS 
TREE

XMAS 
TREE

RETAIL PODS

1 2 3

4 5 6

7 8 9

10 11 12

1 2 3

4 5 6

RETAIL PODS

1 2 3

4 5 6
1 2 3

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

BUS STOP CLOCK

XMAS 
TREE

13 standard spaces + 4 accessible

6 Market stalls 
(3x3m each)

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9 10 11 12 13 2 3 4

1 2 3 4 5 6

5.2 Concept Design

Option 2
Extension of pods

BUS STOP

CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

BUS STOP

CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

XMAS 
TREE

XMAS 
TREE

RETAIL PODS

1 2 3

4 5 6

7 8 9

10 11 12

1 2 3

4 5 6

RETAIL PODS

1 2 3

4 5 6
1 2 3

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

BUS STOP CLOCK

XMAS 
TREE

13 standard spaces + 4 accessible

6 Market stalls 
(3x3m each)

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9 10 11 12 13 2 3 4

1 2 3 4 5 6

Accessible bays
relocated

Accessible bays
relocated

Market stalls
outside the library

New space
for Town Hall

Market stalls
distributed with 
shop in box units

P
age 72 of 194



29Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Existing
Remove all unnecessary bollards, signs, street furniture, road markings

Option 1
Pedestrianised- light touch

Ground Works

BUS STOP CLOCK

XMAS 
TREE

13 standard spaces + 4 accessible

6 Market stalls 
(3x3m each)

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

BUS STOP CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

BUS STOP

CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL

Ground works
Redeployed market stalls 
New retail pods
Existing paving 
Standard parking space
Accessible parking space

LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

1

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9 10 11 12 13 2 3 4

XMAS 
TREE

13 spaces to be reprovided:

1 2 3 4 5 6
6 at Mews Close 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7
7 further along Great Whyte highstreet

BUS STOP CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

BUS STOP

CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4
XMAS 
TREE

XMAS 
TREE

XMAS 
TREE

RETAIL PODS- LAYOUT TBC

1 2 3

4 5 6

RETAIL PODS- LAYOUT TBC

1 2 3

4 5 6

RETAIL PODS- LAYOUT TBC

1 2 3

4 5 6

1 2 3 4 5 6

RETAIL PODS

1 2 3

4 5 6

BUS STOP CLOCK

XMAS 
TREE

13 standard spaces + 4 accessible

6 Market stalls 
(3x3m each)

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

BUS STOP CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

BUS STOP

CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL

Ground works
Redeployed market stalls 
New retail pods
Existing paving 
Standard parking space
Accessible parking space

LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

1

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9 10 11 12 13 2 3 4

XMAS 
TREE

13 spaces to be reprovided:

1 2 3 4 5 6
6 at Mews Close 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7
7 further along Great Whyte highstreet

BUS STOP CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

BUS STOP

CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4
XMAS 
TREE

XMAS 
TREE

XMAS 
TREE

RETAIL PODS- LAYOUT TBC

1 2 3

4 5 6

RETAIL PODS- LAYOUT TBC

1 2 3

4 5 6

RETAIL PODS- LAYOUT TBC

1 2 3

4 5 6

1 2 3 4 5 6

RETAIL PODS

1 2 3

4 5 6

Key

BUS STOP CLOCK

XMAS 
TREE

13 standard spaces + 4 accessible

6 Market stalls 
(3x3m each)

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

BUS STOP CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

BUS STOP

CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL

Ground works
Redeployed market stalls 
New retail pods
Existing paving 
Standard parking space
Accessible parking space

LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

1

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9 10 11 12 13 2 3 4

XMAS 
TREE

13 spaces to be reprovided:

1 2 3 4 5 6
6 at Mews Close 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7
7 further along Great Whyte highstreet

BUS STOP CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

BUS STOP

CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4
XMAS 
TREE

XMAS 
TREE

XMAS 
TREE

RETAIL PODS- LAYOUT TBC

1 2 3

4 5 6

RETAIL PODS- LAYOUT TBC

1 2 3

4 5 6

RETAIL PODS- LAYOUT TBC

1 2 3

4 5 6

1 2 3 4 5 6

RETAIL PODS

1 2 3

4 5 6

BUS STOP CLOCK

XMAS 
TREE

13 standard spaces + 4 accessible

6 Market stalls 
(3x3m each)

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

BUS STOP CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

BUS STOP

CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL

Ground works
Redeployed market stalls 
New retail pods
Existing paving 
Standard parking space
Accessible parking space

LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

1

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9 10 11 12 13 2 3 4

XMAS 
TREE

13 spaces to be reprovided:

1 2 3 4 5 6
6 at Mews Close 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7
7 further along Great Whyte highstreet

BUS STOP CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

BUS STOP

CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4
XMAS 
TREE

XMAS 
TREE

XMAS 
TREE

RETAIL PODS- LAYOUT TBC

1 2 3

4 5 6

RETAIL PODS- LAYOUT TBC

1 2 3

4 5 6

RETAIL PODS- LAYOUT TBC

1 2 3

4 5 6

1 2 3 4 5 6

RETAIL PODS

1 2 3

4 5 6

Concept Design

P
age 73 of 194



30Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Option 3
Pedestrianised + new bus terminal (not taken forward)

Option 2
Making Outdoor ‘Rooms’

BUS STOP CLOCK

XMAS 
TREE

13 standard spaces + 4 accessible

6 Market stalls 
(3x3m each)

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

BUS STOP CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

BUS STOP

CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL

Ground works
Redeployed market stalls 
New retail pods
Existing paving 
Standard parking space
Accessible parking space

LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

1

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9 10 11 12 13 2 3 4

XMAS 
TREE

13 spaces to be reprovided:

1 2 3 4 5 6
6 at Mews Close 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7
7 further along Great Whyte highstreet

BUS STOP CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

BUS STOP

CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4
XMAS 
TREE

XMAS 
TREE

XMAS 
TREE

RETAIL PODS- LAYOUT TBC

1 2 3

4 5 6

RETAIL PODS- LAYOUT TBC

1 2 3

4 5 6

RETAIL PODS- LAYOUT TBC

1 2 3

4 5 6

1 2 3 4 5 6

RETAIL PODS

1 2 3

4 5 6

Key

BUS STOP CLOCK

XMAS 
TREE

13 standard spaces + 4 accessible

6 Market stalls 
(3x3m each)

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

BUS STOP CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

BUS STOP

CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL

Ground works
Redeployed market stalls 
New retail pods
Existing paving 
Standard parking space
Accessible parking space

LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

1

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9 10 11 12 13 2 3 4

XMAS 
TREE

13 spaces to be reprovided:

1 2 3 4 5 6
6 at Mews Close 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7
7 further along Great Whyte highstreet

BUS STOP CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

BUS STOP

CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4
XMAS 
TREE

XMAS 
TREE

XMAS 
TREE

RETAIL PODS- LAYOUT TBC

1 2 3

4 5 6

RETAIL PODS- LAYOUT TBC

1 2 3

4 5 6

RETAIL PODS- LAYOUT TBC

1 2 3

4 5 6

1 2 3 4 5 6

RETAIL PODS

1 2 3

4 5 6

BUS STOP CLOCK

XMAS 
TREE

13 standard spaces + 4 accessible

6 Market stalls 
(3x3m each)

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

BUS STOP CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

BUS STOP

CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL

Ground works
Redeployed market stalls 
New retail pods
Existing paving 
Standard parking space
Accessible parking space

LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

1

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9 10 11 12 13 2 3 4

XMAS 
TREE

13 spaces to be reprovided:

1 2 3 4 5 6
6 at Mews Close 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7
7 further along Great Whyte highstreet

BUS STOP CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

BUS STOP

CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4
XMAS 
TREE

XMAS 
TREE

XMAS 
TREE

RETAIL PODS- LAYOUT TBC

1 2 3

4 5 6

RETAIL PODS- LAYOUT TBC

1 2 3

4 5 6

RETAIL PODS- LAYOUT TBC

1 2 3

4 5 6

1 2 3 4 5 6

RETAIL PODS

1 2 3

4 5 6

Ground WorksConcept Design

P
age 74 of 194



31Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Existing Arrangements

Decluttering suggested through
stakeholder engagement

with ambitions for new 
integrated public amenity

Retained items
with space for new additions
(subject to cost analysis)

ELECTRICAL 

BOX
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET 

SIGN

BIN

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

ELECTRICAL 

BOX
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET 

SIGN

BIN

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

ELECTRICAL 

BOX
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET 

SIGN

BIN

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

Decluttering of street furniture

P
age 75 of 194



32Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Existing Plan

Showing site Constraints KEY

Fire Access (min. 3.7m

Access aligned with crossing

River Culvert (below ground)

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

Site Constraints

P
age 76 of 194



33Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Option 1- Light Touch

Minimal changes to the hard landscaping

- Pedestrianised
- Installed fire gates and/or bollards
- Rationalisation of parking bays
- Removal of road markings

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

Option 1 - Light TouchHard Landscape

P
age 77 of 194



34Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

Option 2 - Large Public Square

Option 2 - Large Public Square

Removal of some street block paving

- Pedestrianised
- Installed fire gates and/or bollards
- Removal of road markings
- Repaving of road to match footway paving
- Central quare created with existing road
pavers

Hard Landscape

P
age 78 of 194



35Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Option 3 - Cluster of Public Squares

Option 3 - Cluster of Public Squares

More comprehensive renewal

- Pedestrianised
- Installed fire gates and/or bollards
- Removal of road markings
- Repaving of road to match existing footway 
paving
- Creation of new paving to create squares 
outside key buildings and to support land-
scape features

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

Hard Landscape

P
age 79 of 194



36Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Existing ArrangementOverview

MARKET

LIBRARY

WC

Accessible 
bays

Car dominated 
Space

Clock
Bus

P
age 80 of 194



37Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Proposed ArrangementOverview

TOWN 
HALL
SQUARE

MARKET
SQUARE

LIBRARY

Loading
bay

Loading
bay

WC

4 Accessible 
bays

Accessible 
bays

Focussed
Market Space

Shop in Box
Concept

Clock
Cafe 
space

Bus

Additional
Parking 
Provision - 
Upto 17 spaces

SHOP UNIT
SQUARE

P
age 81 of 194



38Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

6.
Outline Design

shop in a box

P
age 82 of 194



39Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Small shop on parade
Area: 28m2

Home computer 
or dining table
Area: 2m2

Rentable one-off stall
Area: 4.2m2 

Shop room
9m2

Shop room  (St Ives)
Area: 3.9m2

Everyday stall
Area: 4.2m2

6.1 Brief Analysis

Shop in a box 

Requirements
Small retail space which can be let on 
a very low-cost basis by independent 
traders, 

Explore feasiblity of ‘Shop in a Box’ 
concept - in terms of project budget and 
scale and impact on local economy.

Critical considerations: 
•	 Ease of Maintenance
•	 Securety
•	 Design life 

•	 Units to have electricity  
•	 Water & Toilet facilities not required
•	 Size & number of units TBC
•	 Engage with local Stakeholders. 

Supporting growth of a small business

P
age 83 of 194



40Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

6.2 Precedent 

Burnt Oak Town Centre - We Made That East Street Exchnage - We Made That

Architectural Form

P
age 84 of 194



41Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Precedent 

Cabmens Shelter - London

Architectural Form

P
age 85 of 194



42Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Precedent 

Tokyo Toilet Project - Nao Tamura Tokyo Toilet Project - Tadao Ando

Architectural Form

P
age 86 of 194



43Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Peterborough market
Size: 5.9x7m

St Ives market
Size: 2.5x1.5m

Amble beach huts
Size: 3.5x3.5m

Precedent Small Scale Retail Units

P
age 87 of 194



44Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Leicester Square xmas market
Size: 4.5x2m

Burnham on sea signal box
Size: 3x3m

Lowestoft triangle market
Size: 2.5x5.5m

Precedent Small Scale Retail Units

P
age 88 of 194



45Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

2500 800800

2
0
0

5
0
0
0

2
0
0

2
1
8
7

3
5
3
5

4100

5
4
0
0

2
8
4
3

3676

4500

2
0
0
0

8
0
0

2
8
0
0

2
5
2
5

3
5
5
1

1
3
2
5

1
1
0
0

1
1
2
6

Size: 28.8m2

Precedent  Great Whyte shopfront

P
age 89 of 194



46Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Size: 3m2
Transport: Built on site
Access: 100mm step
Operation: 1 side open

Area plan

Single unit size

Precedent  Courtyard & St Ives - Retail Units

P
age 90 of 194



47Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

2500 800800

2
0
0

5
0
0
0

2
0
0

2
1
8
7

3
5
3
5

4100

5
4
0
0

2
8
4
3

3676

4500

2
0
0
0

8
0
0

2
8
0
0

2
5
2
5

3
5
5
1

1
3
2
5

1
1
0
0

1
1
2
6

Size: 12.5m2
Transport: Wheels
Access: 100mm step
Operation: Hatch in side

Precedent  Lowestoft - Retail Units

P
age 91 of 194



48Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

2500 800800

2
0
0

5
0
0
0

2
0
0

2
1
8
7

3
5
3
5

4100

5
4
0
0

2
8
4
3

3676

4500

2
0
0
0

8
0
0

2
8
0
0

2
5
2
5

3
5
5
1

1
3
2
5

1
1
0
0

1
1
2
6

Size: 9m2
Transport: Built on site
Access: Step
Operation: Hatch

Precedent  Leicester Square - Retail Units

P
age 92 of 194



49Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Size: 21.2m2
Transport: Built on site
Access: Level (open)
Operation: 2 sided Hatch

Precedent  Peterborough Market  Retail Units

P
age 93 of 194



50Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Sausage rolls
Function: Doors open only
Display: External signage
Spillout: Sauce table

Gift shop
Function: Doors open or closed
Display: 3x internal shelves
Spillout: Product display on external 
walls

Precedent  Amble - Retail Units

P
age 94 of 194



51Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Coffee shop
Function: Doors open only
Display: Internal signage
Spillout: Cafe table & chairs

Puffin cruises
Function: Doors open or closed
Display: Internal & external signage
Spillout: Signage and puffin baskets

Precedent  Amble - Retail Units

P
age 95 of 194



52Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

The boat shed
Art gallery

The sweet pod
Sweet shop

Urban pooch
Luxury dog 
accessories

Lady Milly
Bags, scarves, 
jewellery

A Touch of love
Gifts, home decor, 
seasonal goods

Edie Pebble
Vintage & handmade 
textiles

Mocha Mondo
Coffee Shop

Glamble
Cosmetics

Sea waves 
studio
Handmade 
jewellery

Lumiere
Candle shop

Lindisfarne Mead
Mead shop

Geordie Bangers
Sausage shop

Beach Hut
Beachware 
& Accessories

Puffin Cruises
Local boat crusises

Baliwood workshop
Handmade wooden 
animals

Precedent  Amble - Retail Tenants

P
age 96 of 194



53Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Ramsey’s senior lunch club
Windmill Bakery

Fruit & veg market

Precedent  

Cottage cakes and cookies

Ramsey’s existing pop-up market stalls
Great Whyte

P
age 97 of 194



54Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Artisan CyderPebble pots

Precedent  

Butterfly Legacy 
project

Willow & Wreath Florist Quiet garden

Ramsey’s existing pop-up market stalls
Great Whyte

P
age 98 of 194



55Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Timber Shed
Size: 3.6x3m
Cost: £2k

Timber market unit
Size: 3x3m
Cost: £4k

Metal food pod
Size: 3.5x2.5m
Cost: £7k

Insulated garden cabin 
Size: 3x3m
Cost: £9k

Large converted shipping container 
Size: 6x2.5m
Cost: £13k

Medium converted shipping container 
Size: 4.8x2.25m
Cost: £10k

Medium container with signage
Size: 4x2.5m
Cost: £22k

6.3 Cost Comparison Retail Units

P
age 99 of 194



56Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Level access
Retail Units

Option 1
- 2.4m ramp
- 200mm ramp height

Option 4
- No ramp
- Open underside
- Heating issue

Option 5
- Temporary ramp
- Same as option 1 but with 
a managed solution
- Single step when ramp 
not in use

Option 2
- 1.2m ramp
- 100mm ramp height
- Sunken down 100mm

Note:
- All options assume worst-case 
scenario of required 200mm step

Option 3
- No ramp
- Sunken down 200mm

Open baseSunken down + gravel drainage Consistent height stepStep scribed to site

6.4 Access Requirements

Level access
Retail Units

Option 1
- 2.4m ramp
- 200mm ramp height

Option 4
- No ramp
- Open underside
- Heating issue

Option 5
- Temporary ramp
- Same as option 1 but with 
a managed solution
- Single step when ramp 
not in use

Option 2
- 1.2m ramp
- 100mm ramp height
- Sunken down 100mm

Note:
- All options assume worst-case 
scenario of required 200mm step

Option 3
- No ramp
- Sunken down 200mm

Open baseSunken down + gravel drainage Consistent height stepStep scribed to site

Level access
Retail Units

Option 1
- 2.4m ramp
- 200mm ramp height

Option 4
- No ramp
- Open underside
- Heating issue

Option 5
- Temporary ramp
- Same as option 1 but with 
a managed solution
- Single step when ramp 
not in use

Option 2
- 1.2m ramp
- 100mm ramp height
- Sunken down 100mm

Note:
- All options assume worst-case 
scenario of required 200mm step

Option 3
- No ramp
- Sunken down 200mm

Open baseSunken down + gravel drainage Consistent height stepStep scribed to site

Managing Moisture and Surface water run off
Shop in Box units likley to need a minimum single step change in level entrance or landscape modification  for level access

P
age 100 of 194



57Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Access Requirements

Units set into ground
Shops inset to create level Access

Units on top of existing paving 
- Shop sit on top of existing paving
necessesitating ramped access

Landscaped access 
- Landscaping build up to 
shop entrance

Intrusive surface water 

drainage management 

required

Decks and ramps intrude 

into the public realm to 

manage 

wheelchair access

More significant 

landscape works can 

manage access and 

surface water run off 

subtlely 

P
age 101 of 194



58Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

6.5 Arrangement

9m2 GIA

3
0

0
0

3000

12m2 GIA

3
0

0
0

4000

13.5m2 GIA

3
0

0
0

4500

Internal Area: 9.2m2 Internal Area: 12m2 Internal Area: 13.5m2

Unit Size Test

9
m

2
 G

IA

3000

3
0

0
0

1
2

m
2

 G
IA

3000

4
0

0
0

1
3

.5
m

2
 G

IA

3000

4
5

0
0

Increased space for a range of uses including

more capacity for more access and inclusion

P
age 102 of 194



59Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

BUS STOP CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

XMAS 
TREE

RETAIL PODS

2 31

5 64

BUS STOP CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

XMAS 
TREE

RETAIL PODS

1 2 3 4 5 6

BUS STOP CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

XMAS 
TREE

RETAIL PODS

1 2

5

3

4 6

BUS STOP CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

XMAS 
TREE

RETAIL PODS

1 2 3

4 5 6

Option 1- All facing same way

Arrangement Linear Array

P
age 103 of 194



60Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

BUS STOP CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

XMAS 
TREE

RETAIL PODS

2 31

5 64

BUS STOP CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

XMAS 
TREE

RETAIL PODS

1 2 3 4 5 6

BUS STOP CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

XMAS 
TREE

RETAIL PODS

1 2

5

3

4 6

BUS STOP CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

XMAS 
TREE

RETAIL PODS

1 2 3

4 5 6

Arrangement Rotated Entrances

Option 2 - Facing different ways

P
age 104 of 194



61Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

BUS STOP CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

XMAS 
TREE

RETAIL PODS

2 31

5 64

BUS STOP CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

XMAS 
TREE

RETAIL PODS

1 2 3 4 5 6

BUS STOP CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

XMAS 
TREE

RETAIL PODS

1 2

5

3

4 6

BUS STOP CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

XMAS 
TREE

RETAIL PODS

1 2 3

4 5 6

Arrangement Terrace

Option 3 - In a Row

P
age 105 of 194



62Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

BUS STOP CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

XMAS 
TREE

RETAIL PODS

2 31

5 64

BUS STOP CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

XMAS 
TREE

RETAIL PODS

1 2 3 4 5 6

BUS STOP CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

XMAS 
TREE

RETAIL PODS

1 2

5

3

4 6

BUS STOP CLOCK

TOWN COUNCIL
LIBRARY

1

2 3 4

XMAS 
TREE

RETAIL PODS

1 2 3

4 5 6

Arrangement Pairs

Option 4 - 2 pairs, 2 alone

P
age 106 of 194



63Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

BIKE STANDSBIKE STANDS

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

BIKE STANDS BIKE STANDS

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

B
IK

E
 S

T
A

N
D

S
B

IK
E

 S
T

A
N

D
S

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

BIKE STANDSBIKE STANDS

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

BIKE STANDS BIKE STANDS

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

B
IK

E
 S

T
A

N
D

S
B

IK
E

 S
T

A
N

D
S

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

BIKE STANDSBIKE STANDS

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

BIKE STANDS BIKE STANDS

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

B
IK

E
 S

T
A

N
D

S
B

IK
E

 S
T

A
N

D
S

Option 1-Detached Units
- 6no. Individual shop units 
spread along full length

Option 2 - Semi Detached 
Units
- Three clusters of made up of 
2no. shop units each
- Bus stop build into final unit 

Option 3 - Clustered Units
- One clusters of made up of 
4no. shop units
- 2no. Individual shop units

OverviewArrangement - Design Development

P
age 107 of 194



64Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

BIKE STANDSBIKE STANDS

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

BIKE STANDS BIKE STANDS

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

B
IK

E
 S

T
A

N
D

S
B

IK
E

 S
T

A
N

D
S

Shop in Box units - Option 1 Detached Units 

P
age 108 of 194



65Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Design option

BUS STOP

CLOCK 

TOWER

Ele. Box
Ele. Box

LP

LP

Ele. BoxLP

CCTV

LP

SI

SI

Ele. Box
Ele. Box

LP

LP

Ele. BoxLP

CCTV

Opt.1B

BUS STOP

CLOCK 

TOWER

Ele. Box
Ele. Box

LP

LP

Ele. BoxLP

CCTV

LP

SI

SI

Ele. Box
Ele. Box

LP

LP

Ele. BoxLP

CCTV

Opt.1B

BUS STOP

CLOCK 

TOWER

Ele. Box
Ele. Box

LP

LP

Ele. BoxLP

CCTV

LP

SI

SI

Ele. Box
Ele. Box

LP

LP

Ele. BoxLP

CCTV

Opt.1B

Detached Units 

P
age 109 of 194



66Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

BIKE STANDSBIKE STANDS

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

BIKE STANDS BIKE STANDS

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

B
IK

E
 S

T
A

N
D

S
B

IK
E

 S
T

A
N

D
S

Shop in Box units - Option 2 Semi-detached Units 

P
age 110 of 194



67Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

CLOCK 

TOWER

Ele. Box
Ele. Box

LP

LP

Ele. BoxLP

CCTV

LP

SI

SI

BUS STOP

Ele. Box
Ele. Box

LP

LP

Ele. BoxLP

CCTV

Opt.2C

CLOCK 

TOWER

Ele. Box
Ele. Box

LP

LP

Ele. BoxLP

CCTV

LP

SI

SI

BUS STOP

Ele. Box
Ele. Box

LP

LP

Ele. BoxLP

CCTV

Opt.2C

CLOCK 

TOWER

Ele. Box
Ele. Box

LP

LP

Ele. BoxLP

CCTV

LP

SI

SI

BUS STOP

Ele. Box
Ele. Box

LP

LP

Ele. BoxLP

CCTV

Opt.2C

Design option Detached Units 

P
age 111 of 194



68Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

BIKE STANDSBIKE STANDS

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

BIKE STANDS BIKE STANDS

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

B
IK

E
 S

T
A

N
D

S
B

IK
E

 S
T

A
N

D
S

Shop in Box units - Option 3 Clustered Units 

P
age 112 of 194



69Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

P
age 113 of 194



70Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

P
age 114 of 194



71Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

P
age 115 of 194



72Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

P
age 116 of 194



73Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

P
age 117 of 194



74Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

6.6 Form Roof Forms

P
age 118 of 194



75Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

P
age 119 of 194



76Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Mick's Mugs Mick's MugsTHE GREAT WHYTE SHOP Mick's Mugs Mick's MugsTHE GREAT WHYTE SHOP

Mick's Mugs Mick's MugsTHE GREAT WHYTE SHOP

Mick's Mugs Mick's MugsTHE GREAT WHYTE SHOP

Mick's Mugs Mick's MugsTHE GREAT WHYTE SHOP

Mick's Mugs Mick's MugsTHE GREAT WHYTE SHOP

Mick's Mugs Mick's MugsTHE GREAT WHYTE SHOP

Mick's Mugs Mick's MugsTHE GREAT WHYTE SHOP

Mick's Mugs Mick's MugsTHE GREAT WHYTE SHOP

Singular Unit - Lantern roof

4 Unit cluster - Hipped roof

Singular Unit - Flat roof, planted

P
age 120 of 194



77Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

6.7 Civil Engineering

Heading One
Heading Two

Body Text

Callout text ? ?

TTIITTLLEE::  RETAINING WALL OPTION SKETCH
DDRRAAWWNN  BBYY  ((CCHHEECCKK)):: PI (LH)

PPRROOJJEECCTT::  21 WILKES STREET
SSKKEETTCCHH  NNoo::  1993-XX-SK-01

RREEVV::  P1
DDAATTEE::  02/04/24

SIMPLE WORKS, STUDIO 15.2,
ARTHAUS, 205 RICHMOND ROAD,
LONDON, E8 3NJ

Notes

1. NO DIMENSIONS TO BE SCALED FROM THIS DRAWING

2. THIS DRAWING IS TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL RELEVANT
ARCHITECTS, SERVICES AND ENGINEERS RAWINGS TOGETHER WITH THE
RELEVANT SPECIFICATION AND GENERAL NOTES

3. ANY NON STRUCTURAL ITEMS SUCH AS WATERPROOFING, CLADDING, FINISHES,
FIRE STOPPING ARE TO BE THE ARCHITECTS SPECIFICATIONS.

4. ALL PROPRIETARY PRODUCTS ARE TO BE USED AND INSTALLED STRICTLY IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE MANUFACTURERS DETAILS AND REQUIREMENTS.

5. THE STRUCTURE IS DESIGNED AND DETAILED FOR THE PERMANANT CONDITION
ONLY THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE STRUCTURE IN ITS TEMPORARY
CONDITION, ANY TEMPORARY WORKS REQUIRED DURING CONSTRUCTION AND ANY
TEMPORARY LOADS ONTO THE EXISTING AND NEW STRUCTURE WHICH SHALL BE
LESS THAN THOSE FOR WHICH IT HAS BEEN CONFIRMED OR DESIGNED
RESPECTIVELY

6. ALL WORKS UNDERTAKEN BY CONTRACTOR TO BE COMPLIANT WITH RELEVANT
AND CURRENT BUILDING CODES, REGULATIONS AND GOOD 
PRACTICES.

Approx extent of
disabled parking bay

Proposed extent
of shop unit

B
O

B
O

B
O

B
OB
O

B
O

B
O

B
OB
O

B
O

B
O

4
.2

5

4
.2

8

4
.5

0

4
.4

4

4
.3

9

IC

4
.3

8

4
.2

8

4
.3

2

B
O

B
OB

O

4
.1

4

4
.1

4

4
.6

5

4
.3

8

W
B

4
.4

0C
L 4

.3
8

4
.3

5
4
.3

0

4
.3

5

4
.2

7

W
B

C
L 4

.1
5

IC

4
.0

6

3
.9

8

4
.2

2

4
.2

7

4
3
.9

3

C
L 4

.1
4

M
H

3
.9

3

3
.7

3
C

L 3
.7

9

IC

C
L 3

.9
3

IC

3
.8

3

G
G

S
V

T
C 3
.8

9
3
.8

6

3
.9

0

4
.4

2

C
L 3

.8
5

M
H

W
M W
M

B
O

B
O

W
M

G
V

G
V

T
C

3
.9

0

3
.9

5

3
.9

5

C
L
 3

.9
0

U
CC
L
 3

.8
7

U
C

3
.9

1

3
.8

9

L 4
.2

3

M
H

4
.5

3
4
.5

4
4
.4

5

4
.3

7
4
.4

8

4
.3

7

4
.2

6
4
.3

8
4
.2

6

4
.1

5
4
.2

6
4
.11

3
.8

9

3
.9

7
3
.9

5

4
.0

1
3
.9

4

4
.2

3

4
.2

3

4
.3

6

4
.3

2
4
.0

9

3
.9

7
3
.8

8
3
.8

6

3
.7

5

3
.7

8
3
.8

6

4
.4

3
4
.3

9

4
.4

1

4
.4

3

4
.0

1

3
.9

7
3
.9

6
3
.9

53
.9

6

4
.0

6

4
.1

8

4
.4

3

4
.5

5

4
.4

4

4
.1

7

4
.0

1

3
.8

6

3
.8

6

3
.8

4

3
.8

2

3
.8

7
3
.8

63
.8

9

3
.8

9

3
.8

2

S
T
0
1

T
L

L
P

L
P

S
I

1
0
.1

6

E
L

9
.9

8

E
L 9

.5
0

E
L

1

3
.9

3

3
.8

8

3
.9

5 4
.0

2

I/R ?.?h Tactile

e

P
a
ve

d

Conc.

B
e
n
ch

R
e

t. W
a

ll

Whyte
Asphalt

Great Whyte
30mph - Asphalt

Great Whyte
30mph - Brick Setts

Great Whyte
30mph - Brick Setts

B
X B

X

P
a
ve

d

P
a
ve

d

P
a
ve

d

P
la

n
te

r

I/R 1.2h

D
C

Footway - PavedFootway - Paved

Footway - Paved

P
a
ve

d

P
a
ve

d

P
a
ve

d

Key Plan

~80 mm blocks
~40 mm bedding

~350-600 mm 
capping/sub base

Section AA

Depth to crown
not known

Assumed Typical buildups:
(not project specific)

No site investigations have been
undertaken to confirm position of
tunnels or build ups. All dimensions are
indicative and based on typical
conditions or approximate survey
information.

Approx extent of
disabled parking bay

Proposed extent
of shop unit

Section BB

Depth to crown
not known

A

A

B

B

Heading One
Heading Two

Body Text

Callout text ? ?

TTIITTLLEE::  RETAINING WALL OPTION SKETCH
DDRRAAWWNN  BBYY  ((CCHHEECCKK)):: PI (LH)

PPRROOJJEECCTT::  21 WILKES STREET
SSKKEETTCCHH  NNoo::  1993-XX-SK-01

RREEVV::  P1
DDAATTEE::  02/04/24

SIMPLE WORKS, STUDIO 15.2,
ARTHAUS, 205 RICHMOND ROAD,
LONDON, E8 3NJ

Notes

1. NO DIMENSIONS TO BE SCALED FROM THIS DRAWING

2. THIS DRAWING IS TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL RELEVANT
ARCHITECTS, SERVICES AND ENGINEERS RAWINGS TOGETHER WITH THE
RELEVANT SPECIFICATION AND GENERAL NOTES

3. ANY NON STRUCTURAL ITEMS SUCH AS WATERPROOFING, CLADDING, FINISHES,
FIRE STOPPING ARE TO BE THE ARCHITECTS SPECIFICATIONS.

4. ALL PROPRIETARY PRODUCTS ARE TO BE USED AND INSTALLED STRICTLY IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE MANUFACTURERS DETAILS AND REQUIREMENTS.

5. THE STRUCTURE IS DESIGNED AND DETAILED FOR THE PERMANANT CONDITION
ONLY THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE STRUCTURE IN ITS TEMPORARY
CONDITION, ANY TEMPORARY WORKS REQUIRED DURING CONSTRUCTION AND ANY
TEMPORARY LOADS ONTO THE EXISTING AND NEW STRUCTURE WHICH SHALL BE
LESS THAN THOSE FOR WHICH IT HAS BEEN CONFIRMED OR DESIGNED
RESPECTIVELY

6. ALL WORKS UNDERTAKEN BY CONTRACTOR TO BE COMPLIANT WITH RELEVANT
AND CURRENT BUILDING CODES, REGULATIONS AND GOOD 
PRACTICES.

Approx extent of
disabled parking bay

Proposed extent
of shop unit

B
O

B
O

B
O

B
OB
O

B
O

B
O

B
OB
O

B
O

B
O

4
.2

5

4
.2

8

4
.5

0

4
.4

4

4
.3

9

IC

4
.3

8

4
.2

8

4
.3

2

B
O

B
OB

O

4
.1

4

4
.1

4

4
.6

5

4
.3

8

W
B

4
.4

0C
L 4

.3
8

4
.3

5
4
.3

0

4
.3

5

4
.2

7

W
B

C
L 4

.1
5

IC

4
.0

6

3
.9

8

4
.2

2

4
.2

7

4
3
.9

3

C
L 4

.1
4

M
H

3
.9

3

3
.7

3
C

L 3
.7

9

IC

C
L 3

.9
3

IC

3
.8

3

G
G

S
V

T
C 3
.8

9
3
.8

6

3
.9

0

4
.4

2

C
L 3

.8
5

M
H

W
M W
M

B
O

B
O

W
M

G
V

G
V

T
C

3
.9

0

3
.9

5

3
.9

5

C
L
 3

.9
0

U
CC
L
 3

.8
7

U
C

3
.9

1

3
.8

9

L 4
.2

3

M
H

4
.5

3
4
.5

4
4
.4

5

4
.3

7
4
.4

8

4
.3

7

4
.2

6
4
.3

8
4
.2

6

4
.1

5
4
.2

6
4
.11

3
.8

9

3
.9

7
3
.9

5

4
.0

1
3
.9

4

4
.2

3

4
.2

3

4
.3

6

4
.3

2
4
.0

9

3
.9

7
3
.8

8
3
.8

6

3
.7

5

3
.7

8
3
.8

6

4
.4

3
4
.3

9

4
.4

1

4
.4

3

4
.0

1

3
.9

7
3
.9

6
3
.9

53
.9

6

4
.0

6

4
.1

8

4
.4

3

4
.5

5

4
.4

4

4
.1

7

4
.0

1

3
.8

6

3
.8

6

3
.8

4

3
.8

2

3
.8

7
3
.8

63
.8

9

3
.8

9

3
.8

2

S
T
0
1

T
L

L
P

L
P

S
I

1
0
.1

6

E
L

9
.9

8

E
L 9

.5
0

E
L

1

3
.9

3

3
.8

8

3
.9

5 4
.0

2

I/R ?.?h Tactile

e

P
a
ve

d

Conc.

B
e
n
ch

R
e

t. W
a

ll

Whyte
Asphalt

Great Whyte
30mph - Asphalt

Great Whyte
30mph - Brick Setts

Great Whyte
30mph - Brick Setts

B
X B

X

P
a
ve

d

P
a
ve

d

P
a
ve

d

P
la

n
te

r

I/R 1.2h

D
C

Footway - PavedFootway - Paved

Footway - Paved

P
a
ve

d

P
a
ve

d

P
a
ve

d

Key Plan

~80 mm blocks
~40 mm bedding

~350-600 mm 
capping/sub base

Section AA

Depth to crown
not known

Assumed Typical buildups:
(not project specific)

No site investigations have been
undertaken to confirm position of
tunnels or build ups. All dimensions are
indicative and based on typical
conditions or approximate survey
information.

Approx extent of
disabled parking bay

Proposed extent
of shop unit

Section BB

Depth to crown
not known

A

A

B

B

Line - Solid

Line - Dash Dot - Gridlines

Line - Short Dash - Below

Line - Long Dash - Above

Line - Dotted - Openings/Spatial Markers

Line - Dash Dash - Elevational information (swings etc.)

Block Concrete

EarthCut TimberSteel

Blown Insulation 2

Finished Timber

Blown Insulation 1

Stonework

SandPlaster

Demolitions

Text_14pt

Text_12pt

Text_10pt

Text_8pt

LAMP

POST

CK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

B
IK

E
 S

T
A

N
D

S
B

IK
E

 S
T

A
N

D
S

Heading One
Heading Two

Body Text

Callout text ? ?

TTIITTLLEE::  RETAINING WALL OPTION SKETCH
DDRRAAWWNN  BBYY  ((CCHHEECCKK)):: PI (LH)

PPRROOJJEECCTT::  21 WILKES STREET
SSKKEETTCCHH  NNoo::  1993-XX-SK-01

RREEVV::  P2
DDAATTEE::  24/04/24

SIMPLE WORKS, STUDIO 15.2,
ARTHAUS, 205 RICHMOND ROAD,
LONDON, E8 3NJ

Notes

1. NO DIMENSIONS TO BE SCALED FROM THIS DRAWING

2. THIS DRAWING IS TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL RELEVANT
ARCHITECTS, SERVICES AND ENGINEERS RAWINGS TOGETHER WITH THE
RELEVANT SPECIFICATION AND GENERAL NOTES

3. ANY NON STRUCTURAL ITEMS SUCH AS WATERPROOFING, CLADDING, FINISHES,
FIRE STOPPING ARE TO BE THE ARCHITECTS SPECIFICATIONS.

4. ALL PROPRIETARY PRODUCTS ARE TO BE USED AND INSTALLED STRICTLY IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE MANUFACTURERS DETAILS AND REQUIREMENTS.

5. THE STRUCTURE IS DESIGNED AND DETAILED FOR THE PERMANANT CONDITION
ONLY THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE STRUCTURE IN ITS TEMPORARY
CONDITION, ANY TEMPORARY WORKS REQUIRED DURING CONSTRUCTION AND ANY
TEMPORARY LOADS ONTO THE EXISTING AND NEW STRUCTURE WHICH SHALL BE
LESS THAN THOSE FOR WHICH IT HAS BEEN CONFIRMED OR DESIGNED
RESPECTIVELY

6. ALL WORKS UNDERTAKEN BY CONTRACTOR TO BE COMPLIANT WITH RELEVANT
AND CURRENT BUILDING CODES, REGULATIONS AND GOOD 
PRACTICES.

Approx extent of
disabled parking bay

Proposed extent
of shop unit

Key Plan

~80 mm blocks
~40 mm bedding

~350-600 mm 
capping/sub base

Section AA

Depth to crown
not known

Assumed Typical buildups:
(not project specific)

No site investigations have been
undertaken to confirm position of
tunnels or build ups. All dimensions are
indicative and based on typical
conditions or approximate survey
information.

Approx extent of
disabled parking bay

Proposed extent
of shop unit

Section BB

Depth to crown
not known

A

A

B

B

Existing roadway assumed
designed for Highway loading,
e.g. no barriers to medium (or
larger vehicles). Weight of units
to be limited to less than
Highways loading therefore net
load on tunnels will be lower

Existing roadway assumed
designed for Highway loading,
e.g. no barriers to medium (or
larger vehicles). Weight of units
to be limited to less than
Highways loading therefore net
load on tunnels will be lower

LAMP

POST

CK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

B
IK

E
 S

T
A

N
D

S
B

IK
E

 S
T

A
N

D
S

Heading One
Heading Two

Body Text

Callout text ? ?

TTIITTLLEE::  RETAINING WALL OPTION SKETCH
DDRRAAWWNN  BBYY  ((CCHHEECCKK)):: PI (LH)

PPRROOJJEECCTT::  21 WILKES STREET
SSKKEETTCCHH  NNoo::  1993-XX-SK-01

RREEVV::  P2
DDAATTEE::  24/04/24

SIMPLE WORKS, STUDIO 15.2,
ARTHAUS, 205 RICHMOND ROAD,
LONDON, E8 3NJ

Notes

1. NO DIMENSIONS TO BE SCALED FROM THIS DRAWING

2. THIS DRAWING IS TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL RELEVANT
ARCHITECTS, SERVICES AND ENGINEERS RAWINGS TOGETHER WITH THE
RELEVANT SPECIFICATION AND GENERAL NOTES

3. ANY NON STRUCTURAL ITEMS SUCH AS WATERPROOFING, CLADDING, FINISHES,
FIRE STOPPING ARE TO BE THE ARCHITECTS SPECIFICATIONS.

4. ALL PROPRIETARY PRODUCTS ARE TO BE USED AND INSTALLED STRICTLY IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE MANUFACTURERS DETAILS AND REQUIREMENTS.

5. THE STRUCTURE IS DESIGNED AND DETAILED FOR THE PERMANANT CONDITION
ONLY THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE STRUCTURE IN ITS TEMPORARY
CONDITION, ANY TEMPORARY WORKS REQUIRED DURING CONSTRUCTION AND ANY
TEMPORARY LOADS ONTO THE EXISTING AND NEW STRUCTURE WHICH SHALL BE
LESS THAN THOSE FOR WHICH IT HAS BEEN CONFIRMED OR DESIGNED
RESPECTIVELY

6. ALL WORKS UNDERTAKEN BY CONTRACTOR TO BE COMPLIANT WITH RELEVANT
AND CURRENT BUILDING CODES, REGULATIONS AND GOOD 
PRACTICES.

Approx extent of
disabled parking bay

Proposed extent
of shop unit

Key Plan

~80 mm blocks
~40 mm bedding

~350-600 mm 
capping/sub base

Section AA

Depth to crown
not known

Assumed Typical buildups:
(not project specific)

No site investigations have been
undertaken to confirm position of
tunnels or build ups. All dimensions are
indicative and based on typical
conditions or approximate survey
information.

Approx extent of
disabled parking bay

Proposed extent
of shop unit

Section BB

Depth to crown
not known

A

A

B

B

Existing roadway assumed
designed for Highway loading,
e.g. no barriers to medium (or
larger vehicles). Weight of units
to be limited to less than
Highways loading therefore net
load on tunnels will be lower

Existing roadway assumed
designed for Highway loading,
e.g. no barriers to medium (or
larger vehicles). Weight of units
to be limited to less than
Highways loading therefore net
load on tunnels will be lower

Line - Solid

Line - Dash Dot - Gridlines

Line - Short Dash - Below

Line - Long Dash - Above

Line - Dotted - Openings/Spatial Markers

Line - Dash Dash - Elevational information (swings etc.)

Block Concrete

EarthCut TimberSteel

Blown Insulation 2

Finished Timber

Blown Insulation 1

Stonework

SandPlaster

Demolitions

Text_14pt

Text_12pt

Text_10pt

Text_8pt

LAMP

POST

CK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

B
IK

E
 S

T
A

N
D

S
B

IK
E

 S
T

A
N

D
S

Heading One
Heading Two

Body Text

Callout text ? ?

TTIITTLLEE::  RETAINING WALL OPTION SKETCH
DDRRAAWWNN  BBYY  ((CCHHEECCKK)):: PI (LH)

PPRROOJJEECCTT::  21 WILKES STREET
SSKKEETTCCHH  NNoo::  1993-XX-SK-01

RREEVV::  P2
DDAATTEE::  24/04/24

SIMPLE WORKS, STUDIO 15.2,
ARTHAUS, 205 RICHMOND ROAD,
LONDON, E8 3NJ

Notes

1. NO DIMENSIONS TO BE SCALED FROM THIS DRAWING

2. THIS DRAWING IS TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL RELEVANT
ARCHITECTS, SERVICES AND ENGINEERS RAWINGS TOGETHER WITH THE
RELEVANT SPECIFICATION AND GENERAL NOTES

3. ANY NON STRUCTURAL ITEMS SUCH AS WATERPROOFING, CLADDING, FINISHES,
FIRE STOPPING ARE TO BE THE ARCHITECTS SPECIFICATIONS.

4. ALL PROPRIETARY PRODUCTS ARE TO BE USED AND INSTALLED STRICTLY IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE MANUFACTURERS DETAILS AND REQUIREMENTS.

5. THE STRUCTURE IS DESIGNED AND DETAILED FOR THE PERMANANT CONDITION
ONLY THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE STRUCTURE IN ITS TEMPORARY
CONDITION, ANY TEMPORARY WORKS REQUIRED DURING CONSTRUCTION AND ANY
TEMPORARY LOADS ONTO THE EXISTING AND NEW STRUCTURE WHICH SHALL BE
LESS THAN THOSE FOR WHICH IT HAS BEEN CONFIRMED OR DESIGNED
RESPECTIVELY

6. ALL WORKS UNDERTAKEN BY CONTRACTOR TO BE COMPLIANT WITH RELEVANT
AND CURRENT BUILDING CODES, REGULATIONS AND GOOD 
PRACTICES.

Approx extent of
disabled parking bay

Proposed extent
of shop unit

Key Plan

~80 mm blocks
~40 mm bedding

~350-600 mm 
capping/sub base

Section AA

Depth to crown
not known

Assumed Typical buildups:
(not project specific)

No site investigations have been
undertaken to confirm position of
tunnels or build ups. All dimensions are
indicative and based on typical
conditions or approximate survey
information.

Approx extent of
disabled parking bay

Proposed extent
of shop unit

Section BB

Depth to crown
not known

A

A

B

B

Existing roadway assumed
designed for Highway loading,
e.g. no barriers to medium (or
larger vehicles). Weight of units
to be limited to less than
Highways loading therefore net
load on tunnels will be lower

Existing roadway assumed
designed for Highway loading,
e.g. no barriers to medium (or
larger vehicles). Weight of units
to be limited to less than
Highways loading therefore net
load on tunnels will be lower

LAMP

POST

CK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

B
IK

E
 S

T
A

N
D

S
B

IK
E

 S
T

A
N

D
S

Heading One
Heading Two

Body Text

Callout text ? ?

TTIITTLLEE::  RETAINING WALL OPTION SKETCH
DDRRAAWWNN  BBYY  ((CCHHEECCKK)):: PI (LH)

PPRROOJJEECCTT::  21 WILKES STREET
SSKKEETTCCHH  NNoo::  1993-XX-SK-01

RREEVV::  P2
DDAATTEE::  24/04/24

SIMPLE WORKS, STUDIO 15.2,
ARTHAUS, 205 RICHMOND ROAD,
LONDON, E8 3NJ

Notes

1. NO DIMENSIONS TO BE SCALED FROM THIS DRAWING

2. THIS DRAWING IS TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL RELEVANT
ARCHITECTS, SERVICES AND ENGINEERS RAWINGS TOGETHER WITH THE
RELEVANT SPECIFICATION AND GENERAL NOTES

3. ANY NON STRUCTURAL ITEMS SUCH AS WATERPROOFING, CLADDING, FINISHES,
FIRE STOPPING ARE TO BE THE ARCHITECTS SPECIFICATIONS.

4. ALL PROPRIETARY PRODUCTS ARE TO BE USED AND INSTALLED STRICTLY IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE MANUFACTURERS DETAILS AND REQUIREMENTS.

5. THE STRUCTURE IS DESIGNED AND DETAILED FOR THE PERMANANT CONDITION
ONLY THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE STRUCTURE IN ITS TEMPORARY
CONDITION, ANY TEMPORARY WORKS REQUIRED DURING CONSTRUCTION AND ANY
TEMPORARY LOADS ONTO THE EXISTING AND NEW STRUCTURE WHICH SHALL BE
LESS THAN THOSE FOR WHICH IT HAS BEEN CONFIRMED OR DESIGNED
RESPECTIVELY

6. ALL WORKS UNDERTAKEN BY CONTRACTOR TO BE COMPLIANT WITH RELEVANT
AND CURRENT BUILDING CODES, REGULATIONS AND GOOD 
PRACTICES.

Approx extent of
disabled parking bay

Proposed extent
of shop unit

Key Plan

~80 mm blocks
~40 mm bedding

~350-600 mm 
capping/sub base

Section AA

Depth to crown
not known

Assumed Typical buildups:
(not project specific)

No site investigations have been
undertaken to confirm position of
tunnels or build ups. All dimensions are
indicative and based on typical
conditions or approximate survey
information.

Approx extent of
disabled parking bay

Proposed extent
of shop unit

Section BB

Depth to crown
not known

A

A

B

B

Existing roadway assumed
designed for Highway loading,
e.g. no barriers to medium (or
larger vehicles). Weight of units
to be limited to less than
Highways loading therefore net
load on tunnels will be lower

Existing roadway assumed
designed for Highway loading,
e.g. no barriers to medium (or
larger vehicles). Weight of units
to be limited to less than
Highways loading therefore net
load on tunnels will be lower

Heading One
Heading Two

Body Text

Callout text ? ?

TTIITTLLEE::  RETAINING WALL OPTION SKETCH
DDRRAAWWNN  BBYY  ((CCHHEECCKK)):: PI (LH)

PPRROOJJEECCTT::  21 WILKES STREET
SSKKEETTCCHH  NNoo::  1993-XX-SK-01

RREEVV::  P1
DDAATTEE::  02/04/24

SIMPLE WORKS, STUDIO 15.2,
ARTHAUS, 205 RICHMOND ROAD,
LONDON, E8 3NJ

Notes

1. NO DIMENSIONS TO BE SCALED FROM THIS DRAWING

2. THIS DRAWING IS TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL RELEVANT
ARCHITECTS, SERVICES AND ENGINEERS RAWINGS TOGETHER WITH THE
RELEVANT SPECIFICATION AND GENERAL NOTES

3. ANY NON STRUCTURAL ITEMS SUCH AS WATERPROOFING, CLADDING, FINISHES,
FIRE STOPPING ARE TO BE THE ARCHITECTS SPECIFICATIONS.

4. ALL PROPRIETARY PRODUCTS ARE TO BE USED AND INSTALLED STRICTLY IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE MANUFACTURERS DETAILS AND REQUIREMENTS.

5. THE STRUCTURE IS DESIGNED AND DETAILED FOR THE PERMANANT CONDITION
ONLY THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE STRUCTURE IN ITS TEMPORARY
CONDITION, ANY TEMPORARY WORKS REQUIRED DURING CONSTRUCTION AND ANY
TEMPORARY LOADS ONTO THE EXISTING AND NEW STRUCTURE WHICH SHALL BE
LESS THAN THOSE FOR WHICH IT HAS BEEN CONFIRMED OR DESIGNED
RESPECTIVELY

6. ALL WORKS UNDERTAKEN BY CONTRACTOR TO BE COMPLIANT WITH RELEVANT
AND CURRENT BUILDING CODES, REGULATIONS AND GOOD 
PRACTICES.

Approx extent of
disabled parking bay

Proposed extent
of shop unit

B
O

B
O

B
O

B
OB
O

B
O

B
O

B
OB
O

B
O

B
O

4
.2

5

4
.2

8

4
.5

0

4
.4

4

4
.3

9

IC

4
.3

8

4
.2

8

4
.3

2

B
O

B
OB

O

4
.1

4

4
.1

4

4
.6

5

4
.3

8

W
B

4
.4

0C
L 4

.3
8

4
.3

5
4
.3

0

4
.3

5

4
.2

7

W
B

C
L 4

.1
5

IC

4
.0

6

3
.9

8

4
.2

2

4
.2

7

4
3
.9

3

C
L 4

.1
4

M
H

3
.9

3

3
.7

3
C

L 3
.7

9

IC

C
L 3

.9
3

IC

3
.8

3

G
G

S
V

T
C 3
.8

9
3
.8

6

3
.9

0

4
.4

2

C
L 3

.8
5

M
H

W
M W
M

B
O

B
O

W
M

G
V

G
V

T
C

3
.9

0

3
.9

5

3
.9

5

C
L
 3

.9
0

U
CC
L
 3

.8
7

U
C

3
.9

1

3
.8

9

L 4
.2

3

M
H

4
.5

3
4
.5

4
4
.4

5

4
.3

7
4
.4

8

4
.3

7

4
.2

6
4
.3

8
4
.2

6

4
.1

5
4
.2

6
4
.11

3
.8

9

3
.9

7
3
.9

5

4
.0

1
3
.9

4

4
.2

3

4
.2

3

4
.3

6

4
.3

2
4
.0

9

3
.9

7
3
.8

8
3
.8

6

3
.7

5

3
.7

8
3
.8

6

4
.4

3
4
.3

9

4
.4

1

4
.4

3

4
.0

1

3
.9

7
3
.9

6
3
.9

53
.9

6

4
.0

6

4
.1

8

4
.4

3

4
.5

5

4
.4

4

4
.1

7

4
.0

1

3
.8

6

3
.8

6

3
.8

4

3
.8

2

3
.8

7
3
.8

63
.8

9

3
.8

9

3
.8

2

S
T
0
1

T
L

L
P

L
P

S
I

1
0
.1

6

E
L

9
.9

8

E
L 9

.5
0

E
L

1

3
.9

3

3
.8

8

3
.9

5 4
.0

2

I/R ?.?h Tactile

e

P
a
ve

d

Conc.

B
e
n
ch

R
e

t. W
a

ll

Whyte
Asphalt

Great Whyte
30mph - Asphalt

Great Whyte
30mph - Brick Setts

Great Whyte
30mph - Brick Setts

B
X B

X

P
a
ve

d

P
a
ve

d

P
a
ve

d

P
la

n
te

r

I/R 1.2h

D
C

Footway - PavedFootway - Paved

Footway - Paved

P
a
ve

d

P
a
ve

d

P
a
ve

d

Key Plan

~80 mm blocks
~40 mm bedding

~350-600 mm 
capping/sub base

Section AA

Depth to crown
not known

Assumed Typical buildups:
(not project specific)

No site investigations have been
undertaken to confirm position of
tunnels or build ups. All dimensions are
indicative and based on typical
conditions or approximate survey
information.

Approx extent of
disabled parking bay

Proposed extent
of shop unit

Section BB

Depth to crown
not known

A

A

B

B

4 Wheel Tipper Truck 
Load Capacity: 11. tonnes

Existing

Proposed

P
age 121 of 194



78Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Sunday market power options

Sunday market power options

Retail unit power options

Retail unit power options

Consumer unit
Cost: £85
Size: (H)277 mm x (W)321 mm x (D)120 mm 

Notes:
- 100mm diameter ground duct 
-  30 amps per unit 
(ballpark power requirement for heater/coffee machine/ lights etc)
- Solar panels- awaiting info- won’t be able to provide full power requirement
- UKPN desktop survey- 2 week lead time 

Bollard
£1300 + VAT

In-ground unit
£2700 + VAT

Pop-up unit Power meter
Cost: TBC
Size: (H)277 mm x (W)160 mm x (D)120 mm 
(half size of consumer unit)

£ £ ££ ££

6.8 Power
 

Integrated Facilities

P
age 122 of 194



79Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

1. Structural box 2. Decorated shed 3. Articulated frame

6.9 Construction Methodologies

P
age 123 of 194



80Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Construction

Precedents

1. Royal Parks Pavilion
2. My Room in the Garden
3. Natural Building Systems
4. Vidy pavilion, Lausanne

1 2

3 4

Precedents

1. Royal Parks Pavilion
2. My Room in the Garden
3. Natural Building Systems
4. Vidy pavilion, Lausanne

1 2

3 4

Precedents

1. Royal Parks Pavilion
2. My Room in the Garden
3. Natural Building Systems
4. Vidy pavilion, Lausanne

1 2

3 4

Precedents

1. Royal Parks Pavilion
2. My Room in the Garden
3. Natural Building Systems
4. Vidy pavilion, Lausanne

1 2

3 4

1. Royal Parks Pavilion

3. Natural Building Systems 4. Vidy Pavilion, Lausanne

2. My Room in the Garden

Precedents

P
age 124 of 194



81Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Structural typologies
Roof

- Assume sawn timber rafters or
fabricated into panels for ease
- Numerous options for shape formed
either with rafters or through other
method (e.g. plywood)

Bracing/panels

- Racking resistance could be provided by
wall infills 
- Alternatively bracing internally or
externally could be used, may depend on
openings, flexibility and aesthetic

Connections

- Connections could be recessed and
hidden or made into a feature;
- Could be either simple (pinned)
connections or contribute to the stability
(moment connections)

Ground connection/levelling

- Feet on columns to provide min 150
clearance above ground level
- Levelling could be carried out through
screw footing plate

Min 
150

Frame system

Structural typologies
Roof

- Assume sawn timber rafters or
fabricated into panels for ease
- Numerous options for shape formed
either with rafters or through other
method (e.g. plywood)

Bracing/panels

- Racking resistance could be provided by
wall infills 
- Alternatively bracing internally or
externally could be used, may depend on
openings, flexibility and aesthetic

Connections

- Connections could be recessed and
hidden or made into a feature;
- Could be either simple (pinned)
connections or contribute to the stability
(moment connections)

Ground connection/levelling

- Feet on columns to provide min 150
clearance above ground level
- Levelling could be carried out through
screw footing plate

Min 
150

Frame system

Construction

Structural typologies
Roof

- Assume sawn timber rafters or
fabricated into panels for ease
- Numerous options for shape formed
either with rafters or through other
method (e.g. plywood)

Bracing/panels

- Racking resistance could be provided by
wall infills 
- Alternatively bracing internally or
externally could be used, may depend on
openings, flexibility and aesthetic

Connections

- Connections could be recessed and
hidden or made into a feature;
- Could be either simple (pinned)
connections or contribute to the stability
(moment connections)

Ground connection/levelling

- Feet on columns to provide min 150
clearance above ground level
- Levelling could be carried out through
screw footing plate

Min 
150

Frame system

Structural Typologies - Frame System

P
age 125 of 194



82Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Structural typologies
Panel system Roof

- Panels could form roof although this
would limit shapes to planar options
- Alternatively could use CNC'd plywood
ribs or similar

Panels

- Panels could be CLT, SIPs or
plywood/OSB casettes 
- Racking resistance provided by panels

Zero waste

- Aim to minimise waste through reusing
cut outs and efficient panelisation
- Cut outs could be turned into furniture
for example

Ground connection/levelling

- Feet on panels to provide min 150
clearance above ground level
- Levelling could be carried out through
screw footing

Min 
150

Structural typologies
Panel system Roof

- Panels could form roof although this
would limit shapes to planar options
- Alternatively could use CNC'd plywood
ribs or similar

Panels

- Panels could be CLT, SIPs or
plywood/OSB casettes 
- Racking resistance provided by panels

Zero waste

- Aim to minimise waste through reusing
cut outs and efficient panelisation
- Cut outs could be turned into furniture
for example

Ground connection/levelling

- Feet on panels to provide min 150
clearance above ground level
- Levelling could be carried out through
screw footing

Min 
150

Structural typologies
Panel system Roof

- Panels could form roof although this
would limit shapes to planar options
- Alternatively could use CNC'd plywood
ribs or similar

Panels

- Panels could be CLT, SIPs or
plywood/OSB casettes 
- Racking resistance provided by panels

Zero waste

- Aim to minimise waste through reusing
cut outs and efficient panelisation
- Cut outs could be turned into furniture
for example

Ground connection/levelling

- Feet on panels to provide min 150
clearance above ground level
- Levelling could be carried out through
screw footing

Min 
150

Construction Structural Typologies - Panel System

P
age 126 of 194



83Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Motiv architects Vancouver garage

Construction CLT / Retail

P
age 127 of 194



84Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Construction
Joinery Workshops
CNC Workshops
Saw mills / Timber Merchants

KEY Local Trades

P
age 128 of 194



85Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Local trades
The Natural Workshop

Specialise in: 
- Wooden Gates
- Outdoor Furniture
- Product Development
- Idea Making 
- CNC Router cutting
- Laser cutting
- Laser Engraving
- Product Development
- Sheet Timber Cutting

15km from Ramsey:

Local trades
The Natural Workshop

Specialise in: 
- Wooden Gates
- Outdoor Furniture
- Product Development
- Idea Making 
- CNC Router cutting
- Laser cutting
- Laser Engraving
- Product Development
- Sheet Timber Cutting

15km from Ramsey:

Local trades
The Natural Workshop

Specialise in: 
- Wooden Gates
- Outdoor Furniture
- Product Development
- Idea Making 
- CNC Router cutting
- Laser cutting
- Laser Engraving
- Product Development
- Sheet Timber Cutting

15km from Ramsey:

The Natural Workshop Natural Building Systems

- Low Carbon cassette system for
small/medium developments

- Based on OSB/Plywood boxes with Hemp
Composite

80km from Ramsey:

Natural Building Systems

Local trades

- Low Carbon cassette system for
small/medium developments

- Based on OSB/Plywood boxes with Hemp
Composite

80km from Ramsey:

Natural Building Systems

Local trades - Low Carbon cassette system for
small/medium developments

- Based on OSB/Plywood boxes with Hemp
Composite

80km from Ramsey:

Natural Building Systems

Local trades

Construction Local Trades

P
age 129 of 194



86Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

7.
Project Management

P
age 130 of 194



87Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

7.1 Construction Cost Estimate

The current construction cost 
estimate, is outlined on the right by 
MEA. 

For clarity the costing has been 
split into 3 project elements:

1. Mews Close Car Park works

2. Great Whyte pedestrianisation & 
landscaping works

3. Shop in a box retail units.  

Value added Tax

Total of construction at 2Q24 
Professional Fees  -  12% 

Total of initial order of cost for new shop units say

3. Shop in a Box Units

Project: RAMSEY TOWN CENTRE
Issue: INITIAL ORDER OF COST ESTIMATE - RIBA STAGE 00 REV 1 - 10.05.23
Date: 9th May 2024

OPTION 1 OPTION 2 OPTION 3

3.0 £717,651 £714,021 £695,871

TOTAL OF CONSTRUCTION AT 2Q24 £717,651 £714,021 £695,871

Professional Fees 12% £86,118 £85,683 £83,505

£803,769 £799,704 £779,376

Value Added Tax Excluded Excluded Excluded

£803,769 £799,704 £779,376

TOTAL OF INITIAL ORDER OF COST FOR NEW SHOP UNITS SAY £810,000 £800,000 £780,000

New Shop Units

SUMMARY

6693 - Ramsey High Street-9.05.2024 HLOC Rev 1 10.05.23.xlsx
Page 4 of 16

Value added Tax

Total of construction at 2Q24 
Professional Fees  -  12% 

Total of initial order of cost for new shop units say

1. Mew Close

Project: RAMSEY TOWN CENTRE
Issue: INITIAL ORDER OF COST ESTIMATE - RIBA STAGE 00 REV 1 - 10.05.23
Date: 9th May 2024

OPTION 1 OPTION 2 OPTION 3

1.0 £119,307 £109,899 £172,664

TOTAL OF CONSTRUCTION AT 2Q24 £119,307 £109,899 £172,664

Professional Fees 12% £14,317 £13,188 £20,720

£133,624 £123,087 £193,383

Value Added Tax Excluded Excluded Excluded

£133,624 £123,087 £193,383

TOTAL OF INITIAL ORDER OF COST FOR WORKS TO MEWS CLOSE CAR PARK SAY £140,000 £130,000 £200,000

OPTION 1 OPTION 2 OPTION 3

2.0 £96,768 £246,019 £356,966

TOTAL OF CONSTRUCTION AT 2Q24 £96,768 £246,019 £356,966

Professional Fees 12% £11,612 £29,522 £42,836

£108,380 £275,542 £399,802

Value Added Tax Excluded Excluded Excluded

£108,380 £275,542 £399,802

TOTAL OF INITIAL ORDER OF COST FOR PAVING WORKS TO GREAT WHYTE PUBLIC SQUARE SAY £110,000 £280,000 £400,000

SUMMARY

Works to Existing Mews Close Car Park 

Paving Works to Great Whyte Public Square

6693 - Ramsey High Street-9.05.2024 HLOC Rev 1 10.05.23.xlsx
Page 3 of 16

Value added Tax

Total of construction at 2Q24 
Professional Fees  -  12% 

Total of initial order of cost for new shop units say

2. Great Whyte

Project: RAMSEY TOWN CENTRE
Issue: INITIAL ORDER OF COST ESTIMATE - RIBA STAGE 00 REV 1 - 10.05.23
Date: 9th May 2024

OPTION 1 OPTION 2 OPTION 3

1.0 £119,307 £109,899 £172,664

TOTAL OF CONSTRUCTION AT 2Q24 £119,307 £109,899 £172,664

Professional Fees 12% £14,317 £13,188 £20,720

£133,624 £123,087 £193,383

Value Added Tax Excluded Excluded Excluded

£133,624 £123,087 £193,383

TOTAL OF INITIAL ORDER OF COST FOR WORKS TO MEWS CLOSE CAR PARK SAY £140,000 £130,000 £200,000

OPTION 1 OPTION 2 OPTION 3

2.0 £96,768 £246,019 £356,966

TOTAL OF CONSTRUCTION AT 2Q24 £96,768 £246,019 £356,966

Professional Fees 12% £11,612 £29,522 £42,836

£108,380 £275,542 £399,802

Value Added Tax Excluded Excluded Excluded

£108,380 £275,542 £399,802

TOTAL OF INITIAL ORDER OF COST FOR PAVING WORKS TO GREAT WHYTE PUBLIC SQUARE SAY £110,000 £280,000 £400,000

SUMMARY

Works to Existing Mews Close Car Park 

Paving Works to Great Whyte Public Square

6693 - Ramsey High Street-9.05.2024 HLOC Rev 1 10.05.23.xlsx
Page 3 of 16

See p.23

See p.33

See p.64

See p.24

See p.34

See p.66

See p.25

See p.35

See p.68

P
age 131 of 194



88Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

7.2 Options Appraisal

Mews Close

Option 1. Light touch 1 way
Option 2. Light touch 2 way
Option 3. Radical Thinking (preferred 
option)

 Great Whyte Public Realm

Option 1. Light touch
Option 2. Large Public square
Option 3. Cluster of Public squares
(preferred option)

Shop in Box

Unit size
- 3m x 3m
- 3m x 4m 
- 3m x 4.5m (preferred option)

Unit Configuration
Option 1. Detached (preferred option)
Option 2. Semi-detached (preferred option) 
Option 2. Cluster

Access
- Units set in ground  (preferred option) 
- Units on top of paving
- Lnadscaped Access

Construction
Frame construction
Mass timber or panel construction
(no preference given)

G
ra

s
s

PRIVATE PROPERTY

COVER

PATH

H
e

d
g

e

Parking spaces

GATE

Drain

Drain

LOADING AREA

Pot hole

Path

Bush

Path

Bush

Lamp post

Fence

Fence

4
8

0
0

2400

Recycling 

2400

4
8

0
0

6
0

0
0

BIKE PARK

Lamppost

Bollard x2CCTV

6
0

0
0

6
0

0
0

2400

4
8
0
0

1200

6
0
0
0

6
0

0
0

width of path decreased and 
merged with accessible bay 
access zone

6
0

0
0

6
0

0
0

New entrance 

Overhead 
power issue?

Power line post

Reduce footprint 
of grass 

Lamppost

2040

Long stay: 25 spaces
2 Accessible
23 Standard

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14

1

15 16 17 18 19

1 2 3 4 5

Short stay: 53 spaces
3 Accessible
50 Standard

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

25

14 16 17 18
19

20

21 22 23 24
31 32 33

34 35

1
2

3

15

26 27 28 29 30

36 37 38 39

2
20

40 41 42 43 44

Skip removed

45

46

47

48 49 50

21 22 23

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

BIKE STANDSBIKE STANDS

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

BIKE STANDS BIKE STANDS

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

B
IK

E
 S

T
A

N
D

S
B

IK
E

 S
T

A
N

D
S

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

BIKE STANDSBIKE STANDS

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

BIKE STANDS BIKE STANDS

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

B
IK

E
 S

T
A

N
D

S
B

IK
E

 S
T

A
N

D
S

P
age 132 of 194



89Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

7.3 Target Programme
Project Ramsey Town Centre
Date DRAFT_240603

Year
Month

Date 3 10 17 24 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 30 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 30 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 1 8 15 22 29 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27

PHASE 1 - MEWS CLOSE CAR PARK

GPR Survey
Design 
Client Review
Highways Audit
Design -  Updates
Cost Estimates
Statutory Approvals 
RIBA STAGE 4
Site Investigations 
C4 Statutory Undertakers quotations  
Design 
Client Review
Highways Audit
Design - Updates
Tender
Design - Construction Issue
Site mobilisation / demoltion
Construction

PHASE 2 - OPTION  SELECTION & BUSINESS CASE
RIBA STAGE 2 
Business Case Reporting 
Parking Consultation 

PHASE 3 - GREAT WHYTE PEDESTRIAN WORKS 

GPR Survey
Design 
Design - Engagement Events
Client Review
Pre App Advise
Highways Audit
Design -  Updates
Cost Estimates
Statutory Approvals

Site Investigations 
C4 Statutory Undertakers quotations  
Design 
Client Review
Highways Audit
Design - Updates
Tender
Design - Construction Issue
Site mobilisation / demoltion
On Site Construction

PHASE 3 - SHOP UNITS

GPR Survey
Design 
Design - Engagement Events
Client Review
Design -  Updates
Cost Estimates
Statutory Approvals

C4 Statutory Undertakers quotations  
Design 
Client Review
Design - Updates
Tender
Design - Construction Issue
Off-Site Fabrication / Construction
Site mobilisation / demoltion
On Site Construction

OCT
2026

RIBA STAGE 4

2024
JUN JUL AUG SEP

RIBA STAGE 3

RIBA STAGE 4

OCT NOV DEC

RIBA STAGE 3

2025

RIBA STAGE 3

JAN FEB NOV DECMAR APR MAY JUNE JUL AUG SEP JAN FEB MAR APR

P
age 133 of 194



90Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

7.4 Project Risks 7.5 Next Steps

1. Risk: Budget & Construction costs

Mitigation: 
- Engagement with funders and 
stakeholders
- Cost Management with contingency

2. Risk: Impact on street parking

Mitigation: Engage with Highways 
authority and Parking Team

3. Risk: Business Case & Market 
readiness for Shop in Box spaces

Mitigation: Develop Retail team & 
Business Case

4. Risk: Statutory Permissions

Mitigation:
- Undertake Pre App review
- Stakeholder  Consultation
- Public Consultation

5. Risk: Challenging multi disciplinary 
design team approach & project 
management

Mitigation: Appoint appropriately 
skilled lead consultant to manage 
design team 

6. Risk: Security Requirements of shop 
units

Mitigation: 
- Property security
– Passive surveillance 

1. Funder and Stakeholder Approval

2. Reprofile budgets against preferred 
options

3. Confirm preferred options for 
detailed design

4. Public engagement
Retail engagement
Market trader engagement

5. Establish project for relocated car 
parking - Mews Close project plan

6. Surveys and Investigations to 
confirm viability

7. Meanwhile tests;
Public events closing highway
Cafe market square offer

8. Develop tender list for highways and 
shop unit works with local trades

9. Procure multidisciplinary design 
team;
Lead consultant
Architect
Landscape Architect
Highways Engineering
Civils and Structure
Lighting & Power
Cost & Project Management
Wayfinding & Art

10. Principal Designer
Health & Safety and Building 
Regulations

P
age 134 of 194



91Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

7.7 Overview of feedback

The following pages set out feedback 
recieved following the end of Stage 2 
presenation on 25.04.2025. 

Overview of Feedback: 

Mews Close Car Park
- Reconfiguring of Car Park required 
to facilitate development of Great 
Whyte pedestrianisation 
- Pedestrian access between Car Park 
and Great Whyte to be considered. 
24hr access required
- Review lorry access to car park / 
B&M loading requirements

Great Whyte
- Comprehensive renewal of paving 
- Allow for 2no. Accessible parking 
bay outside of Library
- Christmas Tree display should 
remain adjacent to clock
- Digital Display to be position outside 
of Ramsey Town Council Office
- Space outside Ramsey Town Council 
to be kept clear for events
- Bus shelter to align with bus doors

Shop in a Box
- Preference for Semi detached or 
standalone shop units
- Modern feel that is also in-keeping 
with the history of the town
- Consider sight line through to 
existing shops

7.6 Surveys Summary

The initial topographical survey 
was completed, Feburary 2024. 

- C2 Utlities Search

- Tree Survey

- C2 Utilities search

- GPR Survey

- CCTV Drainage Survey

- Intrusive Opening Up SurveyP
age 135 of 194



92Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Semi detached Overview 

TOWN 
HALL

LIBRARY

Loading
bay

Loading
bay

WC4 Accessible 
bays

3 Accessible 
bays

Market 
Stalls

Shop in 
a Box

Cafe 
space

2 Accessible 
bays

Additional
Parking 
Provision - 
Upto 17 spaces

Pedestrain Access Route 
(restricted hours)

Pedestrain Access Route 
(24 hours)

2 Accessible 
bays

P
age 136 of 194



93Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Next StepsOverview

TOWN 
HALL

LIBRARY

Loading
bay

Loading
bay

WC4 Accessible 
bays

3 Accessible 
bays

Market 
Stalls

Market 
Stalls

Shop in 
a Box & 
Bus Stop

Shop in 
a BoxShop in 

a Box

2 Accessible 
bays

Additional
Parking 
Provision - 
Upto 17 spaces

Pedestrain Access Route 
(restricted hours)

Pedestrain Access Route 
(24 hours)

2 Accessible 
bays

P
age 137 of 194



94Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

B
IK

E
 S

T
A

N
D

S
B

IK
E

 S
T

A
N

D
S

Market Stall

Market Stall Market Stall

Market Stall Market Stall

Market Stall

Market StallMarket Stall

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

BIKE STANDS BIKE STANDS

Market StallMarket Stall

Market Stall

& 

Christmas Tree

Market Stall

& 

Christmas Tree

Market Stall

& 

Christmas Tree

Market Stall

& 

Christmas Tree

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

Hard Landscape + Shops (Semi Detached) + Market Stalls

Landscaping  with parking

Comprehensive renewal paving

- Pedestrianised
- Installed fire gates and/or bollards
- Removal of road markings
- Repaving of road to match existing footway 
paving
- Creation of new paving to create squares 
outside key buildings and to support land-
scape features
- 2no Accessible Parking outside Library
- 4no Accessible Parking outside Butchers 
Shop
- 1no loading bay to New Road
- 1no loading bay to Little Whyte

Shop in a Box - Semi detached 
- 6no shop units housed within three building
- Bus shelter incorporated into shop unit

Market stalls
- 6no market stalls in 3 clusters

P
age 138 of 194



95Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

B
IK

E
 S

T
A

N
D

S
B

IK
E

 S
T

A
N

D
S

Market Stall

Market Stall Market Stall

Market Stall Market Stall

Market Stall

Market StallMarket Stall

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

BIKE STANDS BIKE STANDS

Market StallMarket Stall

Market Stall

& 

Christmas Tree

Market Stall

& 

Christmas Tree

Market Stall

& 

Christmas Tree

Market Stall

& 

Christmas Tree

PARKLET

TIMBER 

PLANTER

BUS STOP

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN

BROKEN INTERNET

DISPLAY

POTTED PLANTS

TIMBER 

PLANTER

SEAT

SEAT

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

BIN

MAP
ELECTRICAL 

BOX

LAMP

POST CCTV

BIKE STANDS

TOWN HISTORY 

DISPLAY BOARD

BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

UNUSED POST

BIN

BIN

TIMBER 

PLANTER

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET 

SIGN

LAMP

POST

POTTED PLANTS
POTTED PLANTS

POTTED PLANTS

STREET

SIGN

LAMP

POST

STREET

SIGN

BIN

Post

BUS STOP

LAMP

POST

LAMP

POST

Sign 

Post

ELECTRICAL BUS 

TIME SIGN
BUS TIME ANALOG

DISPLAY BOARD

LAMP

POST CCTV

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

CLOCK

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

ELECTRICAL 

BOX

Digital 

Display

Hard Landscape + Shops (detached) + Market Stalls

Landscaping  with parking

Comprehensive renewal paving

- Pedestrianised
- Installed fire gates and/or bollards
- Removal of road markings
- Repaving of road to match existing footway 
paving
- Creation of new paving to create squares 
outside key buildings and to support land-
scape features
- 2no Accessible Parking outside Library
- 4no Accessible Parking outside Butchers 
Shop
- 1no loading bay to New Road
- 1no loading bay to Little Whyte

Shop in a Box - detached units with 
Market Stalls

- 5no standalone shop units
- Bus shelter incorporated into shop unit

Market stalls
- 8no market stalls in two clusters

P
age 139 of 194



96Ramsey High Street Stage 2 Report by AOCAOC

Appendices 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS

		  A01	 MEA Initial Order of Costs

P
age 140 of 194



 

 
 

Heartbeat of St Neots | Ad and Survey results 
 
As step 2 in our community engagement campaign, our targeted Neotists ads 
captured the attention of a broader audience and directed a significant number 
of participants to complete the survey. The approach has provided invaluable 
insights and actionable feedback from the St Neots community, meaning the 
project can be both impactful and well-aligned with local needs and 
preferences.  

 
SUMMARY 
Over the course of 15 days and 3 ads, there were:  

• 145 form submissions. 
• A total of 2,601 post engagements. 
• A reach of 9,686 across all 3 ads.  

 
The Top 3 words that people have chosen to describe how they feel about St 
Neots are: 

• Community 
• Welcoming 
• Green 

 
1.‘Natural Beauty and Green Spaces’ ranked highest for what makes the town 
unique. 
2.The top type of art is Sculpture 
3.The Market Square is where most people want to see the art with a close second 
being Riverside Park. 
4.We have gathered 104 names to continue communicating with and for you to 
choose one winner from. 

 

Page 141 of 194



 

 
 

FULL SURVEY DATA SET 
 
You can access the Typeform report link here: 
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw 
 

AD AND SURVEY DETAIL 
The ad was shown on Facebook and the audience was on average 66% women and 
34.1% men. The largest volume being women in the 35 and above brackets. 
 
May 23rd to May 29th : Facebook ad V1 

• We spent £26 on a 6 day ad. 
• We had 92 link clicks. 
• Ad seen 3,249 times (reach). 
• 1,277 post engagements. 
• 14 post reactions, 2 post shares and 2 follows. 

 
Week 1 of 3 Typeform Survey Results 

1. 139 views. 
2. 83 starts. 
3. 57 submissions. 
4. That's a 68% completion rate. 
5. It's took people on average about 4 mins to complete. 

 
• Top 3 words that strike a chord with people the most were community, 

welcoming and green. 
• Natural beauty and green spaces ranked highest when it comes to what 

makes the town unique. 
• Top kind of art is Interactive. 
• And the market square is the top place people want to see the art. 
• People have been inspired by the open field question so definitely worth 

reading the responses there. 
 

________________________________ 
 

Page 142 of 194

https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw
https://umi1r2y5p11.typeform.com/report/xQeadSU9/suScA1H6D00Uezjw


 

 
 

May 31st to 6th June: Facebook ad V2 
• We spent £24.99. A little less then at the same time on the last ad. 
• We had 88 link clicks. Slightly less than the last one at the same time 
• A reach of 3,648. A higher reach than the first week 
• 1,225 post engagements. Slightly less than week 1 
• 6 Post reactions, 1 post share and 1 follow. Slightly less than week 1 
•  

 
Week 2 of 3 Typeform Survey Results 

1. There were 251 views. An increase of 112 in the previous 6 days 
2. 140 starts. An increase of 57 in the previous 6 days 
3. 95 submissions. An increase of 38 in the previous 6 days 
4. That's a 67.9% completion rate. 
5. It' again took people on average about 4 mins to complete. 

 
• The top 3 words that struck a chord with people the most were community, 

welcoming and historic. Change to the 3rd choice here. 
• Natural beauty and green spaces ranked highest when it comes to what 

makes the town unique. No change here. 
• The top kind of art so far is Mural. This has changed. Light installation is next 

and Interactive art has dropped to 3rd. 
• And the market square is the top place people want to see the art. No 

change here. 
• Still worth reading the responses to the open-field questions. 

 
________________________________ 

 
6th June to June 9th: Facebook ad V3 

• We spent £23.99. Spent more per day on the shorter time frame and a more 
targeted area. 

• We had 88 link clicks. Same as the previous one. Interesting. 
• A reach of 2,789. A lower reach but we reduced the local area we were 

targeting on this ad. 
• 99 post engagements. Slightly less but poss. because of a shorter time frame. 
• 7 Post reactions, 4 post shares and 1 follow. The shorter timeframe didn’t 

affect these figures, however. 
 

Page 143 of 194



 

 
 

Week 3 of 3 Typeform Survey Results 
1. There were 349 views. An increase of 98 in the 3 days of the ad. 
2. 200 starts. An increase of 60.. 
3. 145 submissions. An increase of 50. 
4. That's a 72.5% completion rate. 
5. It still took people on average about 4 mins to complete. 

 
• The top 3 words that struck a chord with people the most were community, 

welcoming and green. A change in 3rd position from the previous ad. 
• Natural beauty and green spaces ranked highest when it comes to what 

makes the town unique. No change here. 
• Top kind of art so far is Sculpture.  A change from the previous result 
• And the market square is the top place people want to see the art. No 

change here. 
• Still worth reading the responses to the open-field questions. 

 
________________________________ 

 
An example of the open-field responses: 
 
Has inspiration hit and there's something else you'd like to share with us about 
what might be at the heart of St Neots? 
 

• The festival and parade..brought everyone together 
• Community spirit 
• Sensory interaction for children 
• Could it have Eynesbury Giant, A monk from the priory and Paynes brewery and 

Samuel Jones Papermill to celebrate the areas around the area 
• Inclusivity and hopefulness 
• Growth, living, flowing - maybe a living sculpture like an avenue of blossom trees or 

something that depicts the flowing of the river. Many people who move here will 
say they saw the riverside and that helped the decision to stay. Part of the heart of 
this town. 

• Renewal, regeneration & change alongside tradition need to be at the heart of St 
Neots 

• An art installation that is changeable so local artists can display their work 
• More Police presence so all the good work, time and effort doesn’t get destroyed. 

Page 144 of 194



 

 
 

• The heart really should be in the market square 
• I'd love to see the local schoolchildren involved 
• Something fun and playful that people will interact with, talk about, really selfies 

with. 
• Growing young community 
• Community and family events…lots of them! 
• Please make it something that can't be easily vandalised 
• I'd love to see art fill all of the empty shop fronts, and I think we're becoming a 

foodie destination which is great! 
• I see lots of people stopping to talk to one another in town so maybe more seating  

 
 
NEXT STEPS 
This work concludes Keystone’s current involvement in the project, and we thank 
you again for asking us to support the development of this exciting transformation 
for the town. From here, we encourage you to review the survey results in full and 
choose and communicate with your survey winner. We also encourage you to 
continue to tell the story of the project, and are happy to support you with that 
through a bolt-on social email service if that is something you’d like additional 
help with. We also see Meta advertising as a great way to reach your audiences 
in the future.  

 
Follow-up report by Chantal Palmer 

Produced 10.06.24 
 

Page 145 of 194



This page is intentionally left blank



Heartbeat of St Neots workshop summary 

Workshop 1

Theme votes
History = 10
Community = 15
Creativity = 15
Innovation = 2
Entrepreneurial spirit= 4
Nature and Green spaces = 14

Theme Sketch Game
History = 5 sheets
Detailed objects | masculine colours | happy faces

Community = 6 sheets
People, houses, hearts and a loudhailer | Greens, blues and reds or a rainbow |Happy Faces

Creativity = 9 sheets
Art-related objects or an interesting starburst | Mainly rainbow colours | Happy or contemplative Faces

Innovation = 5 sheets
Either fully filled out pages or pretty minimal | Mix of places and objects | More subdued shades of 
colour

Entrepreneurial spirit = 8 sheets
Shops, crowns, business | Definitely not rainbows here | Not all happy expressions

Nature and Green spaces = 8 sheets
Lots of tree imagery | Probably the most joy in expressions | Colours as expected

Theme I like, I wish and what if
History
Ancient heritage of town | So many eras | Education side for all ages | Phases of historic growth | 
Being proud of our history | St Neots Giant | The local heritage groups visit | The stories | The rich 
heritage of the town | OS benchmarks

Community
Green spaces | Vibrant town centre | People who take action | Community events | Accessible and 
welcoming | Community activities | Bringing people together | St Neots festival | There is so much 
going on | Spirit | Huge number of people who care about the community | Pride | Sense of belonging

Creativity
Creative spirit, opportunities, networks, people | The café vibe in St Neots is great | Celebrated 
publicly and encouraged | Art groups and green spaces | Creative organisations are thriving | More 
contemporary ideas are being used | The variety of venues | Array of creative options | So many 
creative people

Innovation
Ideas and Creativity | Innovative council | Opportunity and Innovation | Neotists

Entrepreneurial spirit
Local support for artisan and small businesses | Forward thinking | Open and Happy | Drawing 
affluence and employment to the area | Networks, community, opportunity, PEOPLE | Being less 
mass produced

Page 147 of 194



Nature and Green spaces
Our biggest asset | Size and variety | Community gardens | Good for our mental health | Assets of 
community value | Health benefits | That there are so many parks | Lots of green spaces | Parks | The 
river | Facilitates Parkrun

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Workshop 2

Theme votes
History = 4
Community = 13
Creativity = 9
Innovation = 2
Entrepreneurial spirit= 1
Nature and Green spaces = 11

Theme Sketch Game
History = 5 sheets
Places, people and blood! | masculine colours | happy or thoughtful faces

Community = 6 sheets
Activities, nature, fundraising, a lovely hand | Rainbows |Happy Faces

Creativity = 2 sheets
Art-related objects | Muted colours | Silly Faces

Innovation = 4 sheets
Cogs, horse and cart, Ferris wheel, torch and computer | Range of emotions | More subdued shades 
of colour

Entrepreneurial spirit = 5 sheets
Quite a nice flame and overlapping circles | reds, greens and oranges | Mostly smiley faces

Nature and Green spaces = 6 sheets
Some nicely detailed drawings | Probably the most joy and peaceful expressions | Colours as 
expected

Theme I like, I wish and what if
History
Rebellious history | It had 52 pubs, one for every week of the year | How much history there is | The 
river and how it’s still at the heart and how it’s changed

Community
How welcoming St Neots is | There are people of all age groups | So many great community groups

Creativity
Youth art projects | Art and Soul | Pockets of excellence and ambition

Innovation
Independent mindset | Rebellion | A428 | Stephen Ferguson

Entrepreneurial spirit

Page 148 of 194



Huge range of community groups | Vibrant independents on the high street | Imaginative enterprises 
in the area | Farmers Market | Range of different cafés 

Nature and Green spaces
Our biggest asset | River and green lung | Ouse Valley way | Best river in the east | Path 
improvements

Page 149 of 194



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
Title/Subject Matter:  Huntingdonshire Place Strategy Update 
 
Meeting/Date:  Overview & Scrutiny (Performance & Growth)   

11 July 2024 
 
Executive Portfolio:  Cllr Sarah Conboy, Executive Leader, Chair of  
  The Cabinet and Executive Councillor for Place 
 
Report by:                      Neil Sloper, Assistant Director (Strategic Insights 

& Delivery) 
 
Ward(s) affected:  All 

 
 
 
Executive Summary:  
  
The report seeks comment from the panel, reflecting the progress since an 
update was last brought to panel in October 2023. This followed the adoption of 
the shared Place Strategy for Huntingdonshire, known as Huntingdonshire 
Futures, which was approved by Council in March 2023. 
 
Background 
  
Huntingdonshire Futures is a statement of shared aspirations for the future that 
seeks to improve the lives of all our residents, communities, and businesses.  The 
project is bigger than the Council in isolation. By encouraging embedded 
partnership working, the project will shape the future of Huntingdonshire over the 
next 20-30 years. The strategy consists of five journey themes; Pride in Place, 
Environment Innovation, Inclusive Economy, Health Embedded and Travel 
Transformed.  
  
Progress since October 2023 
 
Huntingdonshire Futures has continued to develop its approach since October 
2023.  
 
In Inclusive Economy, an engaged group of stakeholders has been established, 
including a Chair. The Huntingdonshire Futures team are working with the 
Economic Development team to support, including regular check-ins with the 
Technical Lead and the Chair to define mutual goals. This also allows HDC to 
provide an element of leadership, which has been requested by the group. 
Contextual measures data has been shared with the group to support decision 
making, and has been used to prioritise areas of action. The development of the 

Public 
Key Decision - No 

Page 151 of 194

Agenda Item 6



group has allowed learning and the creation of a model that can be adapted for 
other Journeys.  
 
In Health Embedded, shared priorities were agreed based on the strategy, but 
reorganisations meant the loss of the Chair, and there was a lack of availability 
from members to attend meetings. Corporate Director (People) Oliver Morley has 
taken over as Technical Lead, and has begun to drive forward with a focus on 
the development of the Community Health and Wealth Building approach. The 
Health Embedded journey will support this. The group also allows a space for 
connecting across the sector to create maximum impact.  
 
In June, a launch event for the Environmental Innovation journey was held with 
over 45 stakeholders and partners attending. Learning from the two previously 
launched journeys was used to develop a new approach – bringing together a 
broader group of stakeholders at the beginning to establish what’s already 
happening, and what they would like to see happen in Huntingdonshire. This 
focused on the “What If’s” from the strategy. The output from this event will be 
fed back to attendees and stakeholders, and used to inform a steering group so 
they are able to start with an initial direction. 
 
The Travel Transformed and Pride in Place journeys have not yet begun, and will 
likely take different shapes from the current three. The staggered programme of 
work has allowed active learning and iteration of approach, to ensure 
sustainability.  
 
In May, the Huntingdonshire Futures grant scheme, which emerged from 
engagement with Members and stakeholders on a ‘celebration of 
Huntingdonshire’, was launched. It has received 28 applications at the time of 
writing, and successful applications from the first panel meeting in June are now 
being processed.  
 
The current phase of Huntingdonshire Futures is concentrated on flexing our 
approach based on lessons learned, and looking to focus on deliverables. 
  
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Panel is invited to comment on the approach and 
progress made so far by the Huntingdonshire Futures project. The Panel’s input 
is welcomed, to help inform how the project continues to scale up its activities 
over the coming months. The Panel’s input is also welcomed on how Members 
can get involved. 

Page 152 of 194



Huntingdonshire Futures
6-month update

Overview and Scrutiny 11/7/24

P
age 153 of 194



• Background
• Hunts Futures and the Corporate 

Plan
• Highlights to date
• Looking forward
• Journey summaries
• Celebration of Huntingdonshire
• Outcomes so far

• Lessons learned
• Timeline summary
• Our goals for 2024
• Upcoming opportunities for 

involvement

Agenda

P
age 154 of 194



Background
• In 2022 Huntingdonshire District 

Council engaged in the widest 
consultation in Huntingdonshire's 
history.

• This established Huntingdonshire 
Futures, our strategy for place.

• 5 journeys were identified, 2 have 
been prioritized and launched with 
Steering Groups – Health Embedded 
and Inclusive Economy.

P
age 155 of 194



Corporate PlanHuntingdonshire Futures
HDC’s Response To 

Huntingdonshire Futures

Attracting external Partners to co-create delivery

Hunts Futures and the Corporate Plan
"Formally engage with relevant stakeholders, residents and businesses to explore how place strategy priorities are 

transformed into practical delivery."

P
age 156 of 194

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes





• Working together differently – bringing people together
• No model or playbook to work from, developing our approach
• Staged approach to manage effort, pilot, learn and develop
• Shift from consultants to support when/if needed
• Introduce resource recognising level of co-ordination and support 

HDC needs to provide upfront
• Agile – the group members have changed and will change, active 

management
• Participative – Enable and Influence, not Do
• Collaborative
• Work to identify priorities consensus based on evidence

Approach

P
age 157 of 194

Presenter Notes_1
Presentation Notes





• Launch of 
Inclusive 
Economy

• Launch of 
Health 
Embedded

July 2023Mar 2023

• Recruitment 
of full-time 
resource – 
Place 
Strategy 
Coordinator

• Engagement 
for 
Celebration 
of Hunts

Milestones to date

• Launch of 
Huntingdonshire 
Futures grants

• Launch event for 
Environmental 
Innovation

• Planning for 
Environmental 
Innovation 
launch in June

• Planning 
for Grants        
launch

Nov 2023 Feb 2024 Spring 2024 May-June 2024

P
age 158 of 194



Looking forward

• Establish 
Environmental 
Innovation        
Steering Group

• Delivery of 
Huntingdonshire 
Futures grants

• Structured 
project 
management 
and 
governance

• Planned 
outputs for 
journeys

P
age 159 of 194



Inclusive Economy
• Launched July 2023
• Established permanent Chair and engaged and 

willing group (7 meetings)
• Group invited HDC leadership to expedite
• Created relevant data sets to inform decision-

making and measure impact
• Developing model for moving into action

Partners

External attendees 
include:

CEO, Founder of CIC, 
Assistant Director at 

CPCA

Hours given: 45+

P
age 160 of 194

Presenter Notes_2
Presentation Notes





Health Embedded
• Established steering group with appointed 

chair
• Group agree priorities based on the strategy
• Loss of chair and members requiring reset
• Corporate Director (People) Oliver Morley 

replaced Paul Fox as technical lead
• Looking at opportunities to embed health in 

what we already do
Partners

External attendees: 
Director of Strategy and 
Development, Managing 

Director

Hours given: 25+

P
age 161 of 194

Presenter Notes_3
Presentation Notes





• Launch event delivered in June 2024 with broad group of stakeholders
• Developing a different approach using lessons from previous journeys
• Broad group -> prioritise -> smaller group with mandate
• Potential new model for launching a journey
• 45 stakeholders attended, 3-hour launch event
• Discussed what's already happening, ambitions for
   future looking at impact and effort, using the What If’s
   as a basis to reconnect people with the strategy
• Next step is to establish steering group

P
age 162 of 194

Presenter Notes_4
Presentation Notes





• Linking directly to UKSPF
• Secure community partners as we develop the strategy and see if it 

works well
• Different approach based on learning and realistic goals
• Longer-term – challenge group for Hunts

Partners

P
age 163 of 194



Pride in Place

• Revisit in 6 months
• Under discussion about how best to take forward
• Strong themes related to this came out in Celebration of Hunts 

engagement
• Legacy of PR and case studies from Celebration work

P
age 164 of 194



Celebration of Huntingdonshire - grants
• Purpose: Enable community action, celebrating Huntingdonshire, and 

bringing Huntingdonshire Futures to life
• Engagement: Member workshop; Town and Parish councils; 

Voluntary, Community & Social Enterprise organisations
• Huntingdonshire Futures grant scheme, connected with Community 

Chest
• Announced 25th April (Huntingdonshire Day)
• Launched May 15th

P
age 165 of 194

Presenter Notes_5
Presentation Notes





Outcomes so far
• Hunts Futures Grants co-designed by 38 external contributors 

including 18 Town, Parish and District representatives, 16 
organisations and 114 hours contributed. Also HDC Members session 
attended by 10+ Cllrs.

• Over 70 hours of time contributed from partners to shape and 
prioritise journeys in Steering Groups, representing more than 10 
external organisations.

• Introducing a data-led approach using contextual measures for each 
journey

• Development of connections and opportunities e.g. potential piloting 
in Huntingdonshire due to CPCA representation on steering groups

P
age 166 of 194



Lessons learned
Observation Key learning

Expectations of HDC’s role are 
different than originally 
envisaged

• Gave time and space to self-create but groups look to HDC 
for leadership and input

• Required role is to drive, support and signpost – not just 
convene and enable

• Requires significant capacity to deliver this

Journeys need to be given a 
problem definition and helped 
to prioritise action

• Doing this early on means they can begin to direct 
themselves

• Need to present a suggested model e.g. prioritise, data, 
determine problem/location, pilot project business case, ask 
for/identify funding opportunities

Need to be responsive to 
elements outside our control

• This takes time and energy 
• One Chair was lost suddenly and unexpectedly, work then 

had to be done to support that group

P
age 167 of 194



Summary

Inclusive Economy

Health Embedded

Celebration of Huntingdonshire

Environmental Innovation

Pride in Place

Travel Transformed

2023 2024 2025

P
age 168 of 194



Our goals for 2024
• Ensuring current journeys are supported and focused

o Inclusive Economy - undertaking activity under 3 identified priorities
o Health Embedded - supporting Community Health and Wealth strategy
o Environmental Innovation - Establish steering group using priorities from launch 

event
o Pride in Place - develop plan for journey after grant scheme delivery
o Travel Transformed - stakeholders to inform active travel work

• Enable steering groups – use our budget as appropriate
• Hunts Futures grants – demonstrating the difference funding can make, 

enabling and influencing, generating positive comms
• Revisit the ambitions of key organisations, including HDC

P
age 169 of 194



Upcoming opportunities for Member 
involvement

Previous engagement:
• Really valuable in developing Celebration of Hunts
• Members asked for a workshop
• Delivered community engagement
• Environmental Innovation launch attended by Members

Upcoming:
• Promoting grants to communities
• Will share further opportunities as they arise

P
age 170 of 194



Place strategy team

Place Strategy Coordinator - Lily Simmonite
Place Strategy senior responsible officer - Neil Sloper

Email - Place@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

Place Strategy website - letstalkhuntingdonshire.net

P
age 171 of 194

mailto:Place@huntingdonshire.gov.uk
https://letstalkhuntingdonshire.net/hub-page/the-place-strategy


T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
Title/Subject Matter:  Productivity plan 
 
Meeting/Date:   Overview and Scrutiny  10th July 2024 
   Cabinet    16th July 2024 

 
 
Executive Portfolio:  Sarah Conboy (Executive Leader) 
 
Report by:   Oliver Morley, Corporate Director (People) 
 
Ward(s) affected:  All 

 
 
Executive Summary: 
 
As part of this year’s Local Government Finance Settlement, it was announced 
that all councils would be asked to produce productivity plans. This request was 
formally made on the 16th April by Minister for Local Government Simon Hoare. 
These plans form part of the continued focus on efficiency within the public 
sector, and all local authorities have been asked to submit these plans by the 
19th July.  
 
Huntingdonshire District Council has worked hard to ensure we continue to 
deliver efficient and effective services and been subject to external scrutiny to 
review the effectiveness of this approach. Attached to this report is the 
productivity plan that we propose submitting to the department for levelling up, 
outlining our approach.  
 
Recommendation(s): 
 
The Panel is asked to comment on the attached Cabinet report and it’s 
appendices.  

Public 
Key Decision - No 

Page 173 of 194

Agenda Item 7



 

  

Page 174 of 194



 
 

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
Title/Subject Matter:  Productivity plan 
 
Meeting/Date:   Overview and Scrutiny  10th July 2024 
   Cabinet    16th July 2024 

 
 
Executive Portfolio:  Sarah Conboy (Executive Leader) 
 
Report by:   Oliver Morley, Corporate Director (People) 
 
Ward(s) affected:  All 

 
 
Executive Summary: 
 
As part of this year’s Local Government Finance Settlement, it was announced 
that all councils would be asked to produce productivity plans. This request was 
formally made on the 16th April by Minister for Local Government Simon Hoare. 
These plans form part of the continued focus on efficiency within the public 
sector, and all local authorities have been asked to submit these plans by the 
19th July.  
 
Huntingdonshire District Council has worked hard to ensure we continue to 
deliver efficient and effective services and been subject to external scrutiny to 
review the effectiveness of this approach. Attached to this report is the 
productivity plan that we propose submitting to the department for levelling up, 
outlining our approach.  
 
Recommendation(s): 
 
It is recommended that the Committee: 
 

1. Comment on and approve the Productivity plan for Huntingdonshire 
District Council which will form the Council’s submission to the department 
for Levelling Up 

2. Comment on and endorse the Council’s Continuous Improvement plan.  
 

Public 
Key Decision - No 

Page 175 of 194



 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To present the Councils proposed productivity plan for comment and feedback, prior to 

submission to the Department for Levelling Up by the deadline of the 19th July 2024.  

2. BACKGROUND TO THIS WORK  
 
2.1 Local Government is subject to the Best Value duty, and in being held accountable for the 

value for money test on its activity as part of its budget and overall management. This has 
been combined with resource challenges, and demand pressures, which have made a culture 
of continuous improvement core to the way in which local government operates both internally 
and with partners.  

2.2 As part of the Local Government Finance Settlement for 2024/25, the Government has asked 
Councils to produce and submit a “productivity plan” outlining the steps we have taken to 
monitor and improve our productivity. No formal template or detailed list of criteria has been 
provided, rather the Government are seeking a plan of “three to four pages in length, (which) 
set out what you have done in recent years, alongside your current plans, to transform your 
organisation and services”. The request includes four themes: 

2.2.1  How have you transformed the way you design and deliver services to make 
better use of resources.  

2.2.2 How you plan to take advantage or technology and make better use of date to 
improve decision making, service design and use of resources.  

2.2.3 Your plans to reduce wasteful spend within your organisation and systems.  

2.2.4 The barriers preventing progress that the Government can help to reduce or 
remove.  

2.3 The minister has been clear that “Individual plans will not be rated or scored”, and that the 
plans are being commissioned to provide an “understanding of what is happening across the 
sector”.  

2.4 As with other Councils Huntingdonshire District Council utilizes a range of frameworks, to 
monitor and oversee our efficiency and effectiveness. These include our performance 
framework, our project management methodology, our financial management and budget 
setting processes, and our overarching governance frameworks, several of which have been 
fundamentally refreshed recently, and all have been subject to independent external review 
via the LGA Peer Challenge process.  

2.5 As part of the preparation for the LGA peer challenge process the council produced a 
continuous improvement plan which summarized the activity that has taken place over recent 
years to improve the productivity of the council. This is attached as appendix 1. This 
document lays out how we have established and managed three elements.  

2.5.1 Clear prioritization  

2.5.2 Financial and performance management and benchmarking  

2.5.3 Transformation of services to boost efficiency and effectiveness. 

 
 
 

Page 176 of 194



3. PRODUCTIVITY PLAN  
 

3.1 The letter from Minister for Local Government, identified four areas that the productivity plan 
should respond to. These are broad areas, and hard to address fully in 3-4 pages. A number 
of these are also responded to within our continuous improvement plan, and it may be useful 
to read the documents alongside each other. The four questions are: namely: 

3.1.1 How you have transformed the way you design and deliver services to make better use 
of resources 

3.1.2 How you plan to take advantage of technology and make better use of data to improve 
decision making, service design and use of resources. 

3.1.3 Your plans to reduce wasteful spend within your organisation and systems. 

3.1.4 The barriers preventing progress that the Government can help to reduce or remove. 

3.2 Subject to feedback from Members, the Productivity plan will be submitted to the Department 
for Levelling Up by the deadline of the 19th July, and uploaded to our website so that residents 
can see it.  

We will review this plan as part of our commitment to develop a transformation plan within 
the municipal year, building on the work in the continuous improvement plan. It will then form 
part of the ongoing reporting of this programme. Link to the corporate plan, strategic priorities 
and/or corporate objectives 

 
3.3 The productivity plan links closely to Priority 3 of our Corporate Plan and our commitment to 

“Doing our core work well”, and ensuring we deliver efficient and effective services.  

 
4. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

 
4.1 The continuous improvement plan plays a key part in enabling us to demonstrate the 

fulfilment of our best value duty, and value for money assessment.   

 
5. LIST OF APPENDICES INCLUDED 

 
   Appendix 1 – Continuous Improvement Plan  

 Appendix 2 – Productivity Plan.  

Page 177 of 194



This page is intentionally left blank



Huntingdonshire District Council - Productivity plan 2024/25 
Purpose of this document  
This document is a response to the request from The Local Government Minister Simon Hoare, to set out what you have done in recent years, alongside 
your current plans, to transform your organisation and services. To lay out how we will monitor and assess these plans to assure yourselves and your 
residents that they will be delivered. Finally, to consider the work your council undertakes alongside other public services, such as the NHS and police. 

A number of these matters are laid out in more detail in the attached Continuous Improvement Plan and will be subject to further work as we design a 
Transformation Strategy over the next 12 months.  

Huntingdonshire District Council has fundamentally refreshed many of key internal governance frameworks over recent years. These approaches have built 
on the established work on unit costs and benchmarking to target activity on boosting productivity. Building on an established budget setting focus on 
statutory duty, and value for money, and enhanced this with: 

1. A refreshed Corporate Plan with a limited set of key objectives 
2. A refresh of the entire performance framework of the Council  
3. A refreshed project planning and service planning framework.  
4. A refreshed approach to risk and governance.  

 
1) How have you transformed the way you design and deliver services to make better use of resources? 
 
Number  What we are doing How we demonstrate this 

1.1 Continual focus on value for money, unit costs, and benchmarking 
to drive continuous improvement. 
Performance indicators are subject to monthly SLT review, and 
quarterly public scrutiny. This work will be expanded in 2024/25. 

Quarterly performance reporting. 
 
Independent benchmarking of costs versus comparator authorities.  
Metric/KPI – Unit cost reporting and performance reporting 

1.2 One Leisure Operating Model review – our leisure centre services 
support resident outcomes and contribute to holistic support as 
part of the wider health framework. We needed however to move 
a self-financing longer term sustainable model. Capital investment 
programmes are currently being developed for the budget process.  

An independent review of our long-term delivery model, alongside a review of 
staffing structure and costs, and promotion of the service, all endorsed by 
Members. See the report to committee here.  
All subject to ongoing financial and performance review. Metric/KPI – Service 
usage figures and net financial position. 

1.3 Customer Transformation and Strategy (Complex Customer 
Change) 

A programme has been scoped and resourced to review and improve the 
strategic approach to managing and preventing customer contact, and ensuring 
contact is systematically addressed in the correct location at the minimum 
possible cost. Project mandate details are here. This will be monitored as part of 
our standard public quarterly performance reporting. Metric/KPI – financial 
impact, channel shift and customer satisfaction  

P
age 179 of 194

https://democracy.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s132676/5.%20One%20Leisure%20Long%20Term%20Operating%20Model%20Cabinet%20Report.pdf
https://councilanywhereorg-my.sharepoint.com/personal/karen_sutton_huntingdonshire_gov_uk/Documents/One%20Offs/Productivity%20Plans/Project%20Mandate%20Complex%20Customer%20Change%20v0.1.docx


Number  What we are doing How we demonstrate this 
1.4 Garden Waste Subscription service – in 2024/25 the Council 

introduced a subscription fee for residents that wished to use its 
garden waste service. 
 

A core aspect of ensuring we focus on statutory duties but provide a genuine 
choice to residents. The introduction of a digital by design service to enable 
residents to sign up digitally. The rationale for the subscription service is detailed 
in this report. The supporting financials for the decision can be found here. 
Metric/KPI – budget, number of subscribers, subscription growth rate and 
renewal rate, customer satisfaction and complaint resolution 

1.5 Planning service review – capacity has been invested to support 
the review and improvement of efficiency in the planning service, 
with a focus on efficiency and unlocking growth. Building on our 
position as the 2nd highest performing planning authority in 
Cambridgeshire.  

A targeted review of the planning service, which will be supported by external 
challenge by the LGA, which will be published. All metrics remain a core part of 
public performance reporting, including the public reporting of backlog cases, 
ahead of direction to do so. Metric/KPI – unit costs, planning performance stats,, 
and the overall impact on growth and development within the area. 

1.6 New Ideas process established – Enabling services to immediately 
action improvement opportunities supported by a rolling 
transformation fund overseen by councils S151 officer.  
A budget reserve established to invest in activity to deliver ongoing 
revenue general fund benefits. 

How it works and what we have achieved is demonstrated here.  
In the 2024/25 budget £1.0m was earmarked reserve to invest in projects which 
would facilitate future revenue budget savings or income growth to develop the 
Council’s financial sustainability. Link to the Councils Medium Term Financial 
Strategy here. Metric/KPI – return on investment, project delivery of approved 
ideas, ongoing revenue benefits 

1.7 Workforce strategy – a comprehension review of the Council’s 
ability to attract, develop, and retain a talented workforce who 
truly connect with, and deliver, its priorities and values.  

A programme which will ensure we have a workforce with the capability and 
capacity to deliver the objectives of the council. Workforce Strategy report. 
Metric/KPI – time to fill vacancies, quality of hires, employee turnover rate, 
recruitment and retention rates 

 

2)  Opportunities to take advantage of advances in technology and make better use of data to inform decision making and service design. 

Number What we are doing How we demonstrate this 
2.1 We operate a 3 Council ICT shared service, which has seen 

us improve delivery and reduce costs.  
Independent review of our architecture estate. 15% financial efficiencies on pre-shared 
service position realised. We are currently undertaking an independent review of our 
shared service to identify further opportunities for improvement. Metric/KPI – 
operational efficiency, cost savings, service quality and user satisfaction. 

2.2 Use of AI/Automation to deliver transformation/link to 
OFLOG report. 
 

We are making use of Co-pilot AI licenses in the authority and have a resourced project 
to roll-out AI capability to release organisational resources. Metric/KPI – process 
efficiency performance, task automation rate, cost saving and return on investment 

2.3 Using technology and software to reduce data duplication 
and rework. This is happening across the organisation.  

Specific examples include - Implementation of recruitment processing linked to our HR 
system, removing the need for manual forms and data re-keying. Upgrade of the online 
learning and training portal, reducing the need for “in person” training sessions, 
removing the need to maintain manual records. Metric/KPI – increase in data maturity, 
data duplication reduction, processes automated, percentage of data entries requiring 
correction 

P
age 180 of 194

https://democracy.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s129498/2%20Appendix1_Cabinet%20report_180723.pdf
https://democracy.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s129502/6%20Appendix5_financial%20assumptions%20data.pdf
https://councilanywhereorg-my.sharepoint.com/personal/karen_sutton_huntingdonshire_gov_uk/Documents/One%20Offs/Productivity%20Plans/New%20Ideas%20Process%20-%20overview.docx
https://democracy.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s132394/Appendix%201%20-%202024-25%20Budget%20and%20MTFS%202025-26%20to%202028-29.pdf
https://democracy.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s134209/HDC%20Workforce%20Strategy%202024%20with%20pillar%203%20v2.pdf


Number What we are doing How we demonstrate this 
2.4 Corporate plan 2023 – 2028 Contextual Outcome 

Measures 
In addition to standardised Power BI driven performance reporting, We have developed 
an outcome focussed power BI report to show how Huntingdonshire is performing 
against a range of contextual outcome measures which allows the Council to measure 
and monitor how outcomes are changing. Supporting co-tasking with partners, and data 
informed decision making. Metric/KPI – improvement in outcomes, no. of cross sector 
projects.  

2.5 Productivity data, performance dashboard & 
benchmarking 

Quarterly performance information reported to committee. 2023/24 report can be 
viewed here. Metric/KPI – performance metrics, increase in quartile perf.  

2.6 Data sharing with partners  OPCC has funded shared work on a data portal project between HDC and Cambridgeshire 
Police. Metric/KPI – number of data driven initiatives launched, number of active data 
sharing agreements, track data sharing security incidents 

2.7 LGA Data Maturity Assessment Tool Assessment completed, and shared. A detailed action plan is underway to support AI and 
RPA opportunities. Metric/KPI – Data maturity increase.  

 

3)  Ways to reduce wasteful spend within systems, including specific consideration of expenditure on consultants and discredited staff, Equality, 
Diversity and Inclusion programmes – this does not include programmes designed to promote integration and civic pride, and counter extremism. 

Number What we are doing How we demonstrate this 
3.1 Approval process for, and monitoring the ongoing use of, 

consultants. 
The engagement of new consultants requires the prior approval of the Senior Leadership 
team, having considered the justification and affordability of these resources. A report on 
consultants currently in the organisation, including narrative, presented to SLT monthly 
for challenge. Metric/KPI – Spend actual v budgeted cost, alignment with strategic 
objectives, cost efficiency, compliance and quality delivery of services/project 

3.2 Establishment controls Establishment is reviewed as part of the annual MTFS process; vacant positions are 
removed. Recruitment for positions which are not part of the budget need SLT approval. 
Metric/KPI – Establishment control, budget variance.  

3.3 Energy utilisation Close monitoring of energy use across the Council’s facilities and prompt investigation of 
any variations in trends. Investment in energy efficiency technology e.g., replacement 
lower powered lighting and building management systems. Metric/KPI – Energy spend.  

3.4 Procurement spend controls The Council has a Code of Procurement which is part of the Constitution and must be 
followed. Refreshing social value policy. Metric/KPI – cost reduction, price variance, 
procurement cost and user satisfaction 

3.5 Budget management and review All budget managers have online access to their budgets on financial system, the 
Council’s financial accounting system and are required to review their actual income and 
expenditure against budget monthly, permitting prompt identification and investigation 
of unexpected variances. Actual and forecast figures are reported to committees every 
quarter with narrative to explain any significant variations. Income and expenditure are 
both reported, rather than simply net expenditure. The Council has a Code of Finance 

P
age 181 of 194

https://app.powerbi.com/links/NBo8QYYSkF?ctid=ce6ebe62-557b-4436-a19c-767eca2cd451&pbi_source=linkShare.
https://democracy.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s134150/8.%20Corporate%20Performance%20Report%202023-24%20Q4%20Appendix%201.pdf


Number What we are doing How we demonstrate this 
which details the income and expenditure review measures deployed and the assurance 
processes in place to capture these. Metric/KPI – forecasting accuracy, return on 
investment, spend v budget 

3.6 Medium Term Financial Strategy The Council produces a five-year financial strategy, allowing it to manage its finances 
with a longer-term perspective. Adjustments to revenue budget and service levels can be 
made in advance of financial pressures, which are more likely to be sustainable in the 
long term rather than reactionary expenditure cuts. An example of this is the 
introduction of the Garden Waste subscription service which was successfully introduced 
to cover forecast deficits in the MTFS. Metric/KPI – revenue growth, profitability, return 
on investment, project completion rate, benchmarking to industry standards 

3.7 Staff Performance and Disciplinary Policy The Council has a Code of Conduct which all staff are expected to follow, as well as 
uphold its icare (Inspiring, Collaborative, Accountable, Respectful, Enterprising) values. 
Staff who do not follow the Code of Conduct or demonstrate behaviours in line with the 
icare values will be taken through the disciplinary process and their behaviours 
investigated. This fair and open process removes the need to incur costs relating to 
discredited staff. Metric/KPI – disciplinary action rate, time to resolve and employee 
turnover rate, performance reviews 

 

4)  Barriers preventing activity that Government can help to reduce or remove  

Number Barrier Impact/HDC Mitigation 
4.1 Single year Local Government funding settlements 

preventing strategic thinking. 
The risks around short-term funding decisions are built into the Council’s risk register 
with mitigations based around forecasting and taking proactive action. This can incur 
additional costs as we plan for changes that do not occur. Metric/KPI – track project 
completion rate, staff turnover rate, number of midyear budget revisions 

4.2 Forward visibility on funding opportunities for the next 
twelve months. 

Greater and earlier visibility of funding opportunities allows for more effective planning 
and creates wider opportunities to work with partners, and potentially achieve better 
outcomes. Maintaining a local dialogue with partners can identify a wish list of needs 
that could be addressed through short notice funding. Metric/KPI – number of funding 
applications submitted, strategic initiatives launched, track time to develop funding 
proposals, number of projects completed on time and within budget 

4.3 Capital needs to be matched with Revenue. Ensure capital investment funding is wherever possible supported by revenue budget to 
support the ongoing use/maintenance of the asset. Metric/KPI – amount of capital 
spending relative to revenue 

4.4 Clarity regarding future aspirations for Planning – and 
effective Local Planning 

Clear visibility and involvement in development of development framework and clarity 
on intent, to prevent abortive work.  

 

P
age 182 of 194



1 
 

Continuous Improvement Delivery Plan 
Purpose of this plan  
This plan lays out how Huntingdonshire District Council will work with its residents, and partners, to 
maximise the impact of people, processes, and technology to fulfil our best value duty and deliver 
the objectives within our corporate plan. This will build on the organisational values, the delivery 
mechanisms of enable and influence as well as do, and the objectives in the corporate plan. It is not 
intended to serve as a restatement of the Corporate Plan in its entirety, and instead is focussed 
predominantly on delivery activity, value for money and optimising our ways of working to do this. 
The delivery of broader Council strategy is out of scope of this document, unless it impacts 
specifically on changing the mechanisms of delivery or demand. 

The headline approach of our enduring change programme is summarised by the diagram below, 
with clear priorities, being robustly managed and generating a rolling programme of change activity 
(continuous improvement). This approach recognises that change is dynamic, and constant and we 
must be able to effectively respond to changing pressures and demands, rather than be driven by a 
series of pre-ordained activities.  

 

 

Why does the Council require a continuous improvement plan? 
The Council’s Corporate risk register captures the significant risks that the Council faces around 
reduction in funding, increase in costs, or the increase in demand for services. This is matched by 
experiences elsewhere across the sector, and the launch of OFLOG and the new requirement of 
authorities to publish productivity plans. This risk is also influenced by the increasing reliance on 
local sources of funding such as business rates, meaning that a downturn in the economy both 
increases demand and decreases funding, and that our partners face similar impacts and challenges.  

 

Financial and 
Performance 

mgmt and 
benchmarking

Transformation of 
services to boost 

efficiency and 
effectiveness

Clear 
prioritisation

Page 183 of 194

https://democracy.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s132001/Appendix%20A%20Corporate%20Risks%20Register%20-%20January%20CGC.pdf
https://democracy.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/b20292/Corporate%20Plan%20Update%20Wednesday%2003-Jan-2024%2019.00%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Panel%20Performance%20and%20Gr.pdf?T=9


2 
 

Combined with our duties as a Council, and the objectives in the Council’s Corporate Plan, a 
Continuous Improvement plan therefore focusses our change objectives on a number of clear areas.  

1. A need to focus on value for money, and to deliver services as cheaply and effectively as 
possible. 

2. A need to focus on efficacy, and to deliver benefits for residents in the most effective way. 
This will involve working with and through partners and focussing on prevention which will 
require sustained focus. 

3. Ensuring the Council uses all the levers it has to contribute to the delivery of agreed 
outcomes, considering its spending and use of estate and employment practices as 
opportunities to deliver outcomes within the area. The employment of the do, enable, 
influence model of delivery, with our partners, and residents will be central to this. With 
honest reflection on the limits of our capacity and capability.  

 All of these must then be underpinned by a governance and oversight structure that ensures fast 
and efficient delivery and a clear focus on results, and corrective action where it is required. A robust 
governance framework will allow for timely escalations as well as robust decision-making and 
transparent assurance on progress and outputs/outcomes. In many ways this document serves as 
the forward-looking aspect of the Government’s request for productivity plans, showing how we will 
continue to respond to the needs of our communities within the resources we have a at our 
disposal. 

The diagram below from the Bennett institute, effectively outlines the different elements of public 
sector productivity, which link closely to the categories highlighted in this report.  

1 

 
1 Redefining public sector productivity - Bennett Institute for Public Policy (cam.ac.uk) 

Page 184 of 194

https://www.bennettinstitute.cam.ac.uk/blog/redefining-public-sector-productivity/


3 
 

What do we mean by Continuous Improvement?  

Trans formation is  defined as  “A marked change in form, nature, or appearance.” In terms  of this  
document, continuous  improvement is  defined as  reviewing the way we work –  s ome of the 
what, but largely how we do things . The way we deliver activities , plan, prioritis e and res ource in 
order to meet the objectives  of the Council. This  will cover governance, ris k, and ass urance as  
well delivery. By its  nature s ome of this  work will be internal, (whils t the large s tra tegy work will 
be by its  nature external) but will be informed by res ident needs , opportunities  to deliver 
differently through partners hip or technology, and to reframe problems , in order to meet our 
objectives  for Huntingdons hire as  a  Place, and to s upport our Growth aspira tions . 
 

Or as Dave Brailsford said when he began his stint leading the GB Olympic track cycling programme: 

“It struck me that we should think small, not big, and adopt a philosophy of continuous 
improvement through the aggregation of marginal gains. Forget about perfection; focus on 

progression and compound the improvements." 

"The whole point about our approach is that it was meant to be continuous. We learned as we went. 
You have to identify the critical success factors and ensure they are in place, and then focus your 

improvements around them." 

Background  
Within Local Authorities and within Huntingdonshire change and adaptation are normal states. The 
significant reductions in public sector spending, the increase in demand, combined with the 
changing demographic profiles of the communities that they support and the opportunities that new 
technology and the expansion of one-off funding streams has led to this process within local 
authorities commonly being referred to as “Transformation”.  

Within this comes an expectation that each Council will have a clearly articulated plan for how we 
monitor and influence the cost, speed, and quality of the services we deliver, to demonstrate Best 
Value, demonstrate strong control and appropriately respond to the internal and external factors 
that influence us. This plan is a live document and respond in an agile way to the impacts of the 
‘known unknowns’ eg: the outcome of the General Election, to continue to define and prioritise 
change and improvement for the organisation. 

This process of evolution and continuous improvement is not new and builds upon a range of 
assurance and planning frameworks that are already in existence at the Council. A number of these 
will need to evolve, and in some areas, this will need to be accelerated. This activity will be 
undertaken as part of a culture of continuous improvement of business process and ways of working 
that has been taking place over an extended period, is a core cultural aspect of the way we operate 
and is enabled by HDC’s icare values.  

This paper acknowledges the most efficient way to make sustainable improvements is to proactively 
address the root cause of the issue rather than reacting to increasing demand for services due issues 
of affordability and a reduction in funding for public services. This explains the clear focus on growth, 
with the clear evidence of the social and economic impacts of high quality work. The same holds true 
for all our services, whether they are external or internal - simply doing them quicker does not stop 
the problem from occurring. Therefore prevention, and removal of need through better design, 

Page 185 of 194



4 
 

focus on inter-dependent resident needs and prevention such as through boosting employment will 
always be more efficient than even the best transactional response.  

What is in scope for the continuous improvement plan? 
This plan clearly sets out the ways in which work will be undertaken to improve the outcomes for 
Huntingdonshire and the District Council through identified and agreed actions in the Corporate Plan 
and within Service plans (our Annual delivery plan). These areas of work can be described as tactical 
as they will be relatively short term and will change and improve the way we work. The scope of 
these can be defined as: 

• New delivery or service offers to either our HDC staff or to our residents/businesses 
• New and improved ways of working ie: being more efficient and effective with the resources 

we have available. Such as through the greater use of technology.  
• New opportunities developed, either through new and emerging technologies, and/or 

through new and emerging partnerships across the district 

There are other areas of work identified in the Corporate Plan, best described as strategic. These are 
longer term and clearly define the direction of travel that the organisation needs to take in order to 
achieve much longer terms goals. These are out of scope of this plan, until such time as the 
strategy/strategic direction is documented and approved, the resultant Action Plan has been created 
and the resources required to deliver the Action Plan has been secured. As the continuous 
improvement plan will be a live document, once the respective actions plans have been finalised the 
tactical activities can then be included in scope for delivery. Strategic activities that are therefore out 
of scope for the continuous improvement plan are for example: 

• Local Plan 
• Economic Growth Strategy 
• Commercial Investment Strategy 
• Hinchingbrooke Hospital rebuild 

Actions taken by the Council to date to transform services 
Huntingdonshire’s approach to maximising the cost, quality and speed of delivery of our activity has 
been driven by three key factors. Prioritisation, internal control and a focus on outcomes for the 
area and its people.  

Huntingdonshire faces many of the same challenges as other parts of the public sector system in 
terms of financial challenges and demand. In addition, its population is older, and more rural, and 
connectivity and housing affordability remain an increasing challenge. Evidence clearly points to the 
key role of employment, social connection and physical activity as being major planks to reduce 
demand and increase the quality of life locally. 

This has seen HDC through several iterations of service improvement over recent times, and has 
seen this focus upon: 

1. Clear prioritization 
a. Central to this has been a focus on the organisation retaining a clear focus on the 

review of which services are most valued by our residents and partners. This has 
been undertaken through consultation and engagement and reviewed over time.  

b. Check and review of the value of services, and alignment to political will, ensuring 
that the statutory, and non-statutory split of services informs financial planning at a 

Page 186 of 194

https://councilanywhereorg.sharepoint.com/:p:/s/HDC_CorporateDirectorPeople/ERA5KrIpr85Eu2g85ZiGvtUBs2TMJ4mkwjsrjyDh2ucKCg?e=CJDveV
https://councilanywhereorg-my.sharepoint.com/:x:/r/personal/oliver_morley_huntingdonshire_gov_uk/Documents/Attachments/Copy%20of%20Service%20Catalogue%202022-23%20Final%20with%20PFH%20breakdowns.xlsx?d=web91c6d653f64c519a897e324458117b&csf=1&web=1&e=HkoFcL


5 
 

political and officer level, and that we are clear with non-statutory services such as 
economic development, community support and leisure, which key Council 
outcomes they are contributing to. In addition to the focus on statutory/non-
statutory activity, we have consistently engaged with external data, to ensure non-
statutory services remain focussed on the key challenges faced by the Council and 
the sector NAO – Aileen Murphy.  

c. Long term financial planning, and ensuring that longer term challenges and reforms 
inform the pragmatic steps we take. This has required strong political leadership to 
prioritise financial sustainability for the organisation, including the introduction of 
the garden waste subscription service and the revision to the Council Tax Support 
scheme. 

d. The worked detail above has informed Council's key priorities, with a supporting 
action plan and performance framework, and that this underpins all we do.  

e. The development of strategies and the development of that into detailed action 
plans, such as via the Council’s Climate Strategy, and regular quarterly reporting on 
progress, translating Corporate Strategy into practical action. This is particularly true 
of the Place Strategy which informed the do, enable, influence model in the 
Corporate Plan, and has led to collective action and strategic shifts to better 
recognise the factors agreed in the strategy, such as the partnership response to 
maximising investment opportunities as part of UKREIF or the foundational role of 
employment in quality of life outcomes. A clear restated focus on growth as a 
significant driver of local benefit, and longer term financial independence.  

2. Financial and performance management and benchmarking 
a. Approximately 80% of the Council’s net spend is associated with core service 

activity, and corresponding support services. Performance and value for money of 
key services are therefore critical, to ensure efficacy, value for money, but also to 
keep a track on longer term trends. We have a strong financial framework, to 
support this. A refreshed Performance framework, links all operational and project 
delivery to our corporate plan, with clearly defined governance, tolerances and 
intervention points. This provides a strong evidential basis for benefits realisation. 
Unit cost activity and benchmarking is firmly embedded in several services, 
particularly in operations. Combined with a focus on our key outcomes, and how we 
are contributing to those. However, this needs to be more firmly embedded across 
the Council and there is an action in the Corporate Plan to expand this work. The 
review and implementation of a refreshed long-term operating model within our 
leisure operation, combined with active review of the services structure and 
purpose has delivered more usage, at lower cost, as part of a transformation of the 
service as a whole.  

b. HDC have fundamentally refreshed our service planning process, and project 
methodology in support of the corporate plan. Enabling full line of sight across all 
activity, and into project governance and budget bids, to address issues of project 
delivery and benefits realisation.  

c. Data maturity work to support the opportunity for greater automation and 
efficiency. 

d. Refreshed risk strategy and register to ensure an enhanced preventative agenda.  
e. We also strongly recognise the role of external review of our internal controls, such 

as external review of our governance arrangements via Peer Review and Peer 
Challenge, as well as by benchmarking and review of best practice and near misses.    

Page 187 of 194

https://councilanywhereorg.sharepoint.com/:p:/r/sites/HDC_ManagingDirector/Shared%20Documents/General/CPSB/2018/141218/FS%20Huntingdon%20Sept%2018.pptx?d=wa7288ebebb7d41668a3fe0433533c9d8&csf=1&web=1&e=43Qzad
https://councilanywhereorg.sharepoint.com/:p:/r/sites/HDC_Senior_Leadership_Team/Shared%20Documents/General/Cabinet%20away%20days/2023/17%20Oct/Cabinet%20away%20day%2017.10.pptx?d=wc8d1f584ba9343348b127ac141c88809&csf=1&web=1&e=OxvFml
https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/media/vehhxpfr/corporate-plan.pdf
https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/media/6882/climate-strategy-appendix-1-climate-strategy.pdf
https://democracy.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/ieIssueDetails.aspx?IId=65206&PlanId=0&Opt=3#AI58921
https://s3-eu-west-1.amazonaws.com/ehq-production-europe/13e832ed210d345c07b80c9a3fb430995b80dd53/original/1680597557/03335f7b7cd474bf07fd1216e3891e55_The_Place_Strategy.pdf?1680597557
https://councilanywhereorg.sharepoint.com/sites/HDC_CorporateDirectorPeople/Shared%20Documents/General/Health/Outcomes%20Framework%20-%20CI%20Cttee%2019-4-24%20v1.1.docx?web=1
https://democracy.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s131030/6.%20Performance%20Management%20Framework%20Appendix%201.pdf
https://app.powerbi.com/groups/dbb8af07-925e-4c71-b5a5-cb44932664b3/reports/d21d5512-30ed-4da7-9819-0ce0c2f56244/ReportSection910f43a794114658d1f1?experience=power-bi
https://app.powerbi.com/groups/dbb8af07-925e-4c71-b5a5-cb44932664b3/reports/d21d5512-30ed-4da7-9819-0ce0c2f56244/ReportSection910f43a794114658d1f1?experience=power-bi
https://app.powerbi.com/groups/dbb8af07-925e-4c71-b5a5-cb44932664b3/reports/29111637-0351-4a6c-9c66-59b540f2a3e5/ReportSection35ef62e2e26e0d02370a?experience=power-bi
https://app.powerbi.com/links/NBo8QYYSkF?ctid=ce6ebe62-557b-4436-a19c-767eca2cd451&pbi_source=linkShare
https://democracy.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s132676/5.%20One%20Leisure%20Long%20Term%20Operating%20Model%20Cabinet%20Report.pdf
https://democracy.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s133071/10.%20One%20Leisure%20Annual%20Performance%20Review%202023%20-%202024%20Presentation.pdf
https://councilanywhereorg.sharepoint.com/sites/HDC/SitePages/Service-Plans-2024-2025.aspx
https://councilanywhereorg.sharepoint.com/sites/HDC/SitePages/Projects.aspx
https://councilanywhereorg.sharepoint.com/sites/HDC/SitePages/Projects.aspx
https://democracy.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s131194/9.%20Risk%20Management%20Strategy%20Appendix%20A.pdf


6 
 

3. Transformation of services to boost efficiency and effectiveness 
a. Digitising of activity. The Council has over the past 6 years engaged on a programme 

of overhaul of back-office systems and a push toward digital self-service. This has 
been well evidenced by the digital service design of the new garden waste 
subscription service, with the total calls on the subject representing just over 25% of 
the rate of subscriptions.  

b. Implemented improvement activity in dedicated areas. Including a dedicated 
programme to support the further commercialisation of one leisure, with a similar 
programme in development management. Which has seen us publicly publish a list 
of backlog applications, to ensure transparency around performance.  

c. Council Tax support (CTS) scheme – a redesign of the CTS scheme in light of the 
objectives in corporate plan, resulted in a radical overhaul of the scheme, 
recognising the cost of operating the current scheme, and the contribution that 
could be made to wider outcomes by reform.  

d. Our previous transformation programme, recognised the key role that 
organisational capability and culture plays within a change programme. These 
findings were central to the commissioning of a workforce strategy and the 
allocation of a dedicated training budget to support this cultural change.  Whilst the 
digital vision remains strong, we have recognised and learnt from the cultural 
barriers to maximising digital benefits until we embed greater technical capability 
alongside the increasingly supportive continuous improvement process. Or as the 
HBR article above puts it :“Digital transformation is an ongoing process of changing 
the way you do business. It requires foundational investments in skills, projects, 
infrastructure, and, often, in cleaning up IT systems. It requires mixing people, 
machines, and business processes, with all of the messiness that entails.” 

e. A preventative approach, which focusses on enabling and influencing as much direct 
delivery in terms of community outcomes, is based on a social determinant model, 
and a focus on improving social determinants which will improve overall quality of 
life. This is strongly informing our economic development approach, with its strong 
focus on high quality local jobs. This approach is widely evidenced as being a key 
means of preventing expensive crisis demand. 

Controls and management for transforming services within HDC 
Central to the delivery of this change is the appropriate management of priority, performance and 
the realisation of associated benefits. Over the last 2 years the controls and management for change 
and continuous improvement have been reviewed, refreshed and embedded across the organisation 
and across management levels. These are regularly promoted, and all staff are supported through 
the organisational processes through regular communications, Intranet pages and key support roles.  

Service plans - creation, monitoring and review throughout the yearly cycle of work   
HDC delivers a robust annual service planning process through a service plan template to 
standardise two months in advance of the deadline date for submission, drop-in sessions and staff 
intranet page. Senior Leadership Team (SLT) members will review all the service plans (circa 23) and 
comments, question, suggest amends are fed back to managers to finalise their plans. Corporate 
services, such as HR, Finance, ICT, Communications, Improvement and Delivery, also review the 
plans in order to plan their pipeline of work for the following financial year. Service plans are 
reviewed by managers and their teams once every quarter to update the deliverable activities for 
the year and record performance.  

Page 188 of 194

https://democracy.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s132687/12.%20Garden%20Waste%20Subscription%20Service%20Update%20Report.pdf
https://app.powerbi.com/links/J5wrBORfkq?ctid=ce6ebe62-557b-4436-a19c-767eca2cd451&pbi_source=linkShare
https://councilanywhereorg.sharepoint.com/:w:/r/sites/HDC_Improvement_Delivery/Shared%20Documents/General/2.%20PORTFOLIO%20MANAGEMENT/1.%20In-flight%20and%20pipeline/8.%20OL%20programme/DRAFT%20One%20Leisure%20Programme%20Definition%2011.04.2024.docx?d=wfa3c251012de454aa14bb85a58600e49&csf=1&web=1&e=agZGRf
https://councilanywhereorg.sharepoint.com/:w:/r/sites/HDC_Improvement_Delivery/Shared%20Documents/General/2.%20PORTFOLIO%20MANAGEMENT/1.%20In-flight%20and%20pipeline/8.%20OL%20programme/DRAFT%20One%20Leisure%20Programme%20Definition%2011.04.2024.docx?d=wfa3c251012de454aa14bb85a58600e49&csf=1&web=1&e=agZGRf
https://councilanywhereorg.sharepoint.com/:b:/r/sites/HDC_Project_Management_Office/Shared%20Documents/Project%20plans/Planning%20Improvement%20Programme/Planning%20Improvement%20Plan%20v%205.0.pdf?csf=1&web=1&e=Dlmr42
https://democracy.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s131016/8.%20Council%20Tax%20Support%20Scheme%20Report.pdf
https://councilanywhereorg.sharepoint.com/:w:/s/ClearPass/EdWjXUH5N01Kic-BYPDWyDoBAj3LV0H1-ZS9OY2FbdEILw?e=yOT8LC
https://hbr.org/2018/03/why-so-many-high-profile-digital-transformations-fail
https://hbr.org/2018/03/why-so-many-high-profile-digital-transformations-fail
https://democracy.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s130414/4.%20Support%20to%20the%20Financially%20Vulnerable%20Report.pdf


7 
 

This financial year we have also introduced the consolidation of identified activities within every 
service plan into an Annual Delivery Plan. This will be updated by service managers regularly to 
provide transparency on progress against the key priorities to be delivered by their service. 

New areas of work  
All officers are encouraged to raise ideas for efficiency savings, income generation, or change 
activities to deliver the Corporate Plan and statutory changes through a light touch MS project form 
Ideas Process. The submissions are reviewed by corporate services (HR, Finance, ICT, Information 
Governance) and then presented at a Stage 1 review panel. Ideas that are approved to progress are 
offered Business Analyst support to help define a greater level of detail for the idea through a Stage 
2 proposal document. Once completed the idea is reviewed again at a Stage 2 review panel, The 
membership of the review panel is the Section 151 Officer, the Chief Operating Officer (whose 
responsibilities also include SIRO and 3C IT Intelligent Client for HDC) and the Chief Delivery 
Officer.  This approval process quickly weeds out activities for which no case exists, or which do not 
align with corporate priorities.  
  
If approved the idea is then determined whether to be delivered as part of the organisational 
portfolio of projects and programmes, with a responsibility to provide monthly highlight reports, of 
from within a service, with a requirement to update on progress once a quarter. A number of ideas 
are progressed as discovery and pilot activities to better evaluate the desirability, feasibility and 
viability of scaling to a larger project of work. 

A rolling Transformation reserve fund is utilised to cover the initial implementation costs of change 
initiatives, with clear invest to save principles used before funding is awarded. 

Portfolio control and management or projects and programmes  
Successful delivery of projects and programmes are supported by the Portfolio Management Office, 
through the use of templates contained on the staff intranet pages. A monthly meeting operates, 
Major Change Delivery Board, through their terms of reference are in place to act as a route for 
escalation of risks and issues, for assurance on progress and for key decision making eg: project 
start, project close, change requests. 

Major Change Delivery Board also commissions ad hoc reviews for projects/programmes delivered 
over 2+ years delivery in the form of a ‘health check’. This is a six-to-eight-week activity where areas 
of focus are agreed, a series of stakeholder interviews are undertaken along with a thorough review 
of the original documentation. The resultant report will then propose a number of recommended 
actions that can be undertaken by the project to ensure the expected outcomes and benefits can be 
realised by the end of the project. A pipeline of health checks is being created, based on the duration 
of the projects and programmes in the portfolio.   

Continuous improvement through a Community of Practice   
A Portfolio, Programme and Project Management Maturity Model (P3M3) self-assessment was 
undertaken in April 2023 (scheduled for completion again in May 2024). This process assessed the 
maturity of a number of key project and programme delivery elements both at an organisational 
level and project level. The responses to the self-assessment are then used to identify key areas for 
development with the aspiration to achieve the highest maturity level 5, continuous improvement. 
As a direct result a Community of Practice was introduced in January 2024 with an invitation for all 
staff to meet every four months, promote individual and team successes, share good practice and 
identify common risks and barriers in the organisation and externally.   
   

Page 189 of 194

https://councilanywhereorg.sharepoint.com/:x:/s/HDC/EaUHrRge12FHsl1EeFTJSxkBe0d853tFx4_axnelOWoadw?e=LeHPfG
https://councilanywhereorg.sharepoint.com/sites/HDC/SitePages/Ideas-process.aspx
https://councilanywhereorg.sharepoint.com/sites/HDC/SitePages/Project-Management.aspx


8 
 

An MS Teams channel for the Community of Practice has been established and colleagues from 
other local Councils have been invites to attend so cross-Council staff can share good practice and 
relevant training opportunities.   

What are the key areas of HDC work? 
Taking as a starting point the three spheres of organisational delivery, namely: Business strategy and 
organisational process, People and culture, and Technology and data, we have committed to a series 
of key actions in order to enable to us to continue to deliver continuous improvement against the 
delivery objectives of efficiency (value for money), efficacy (improvement on outcomes), and 
delivery on priorities (delivery to cost, time and quality of the organisations objectives).  

Business strategy and organisational process 
Key action 1 – To improve the robustness of our key efficiency metrics, in the form of unit cost data, 
informed by strengthened benchmarking data, to ensure we can track the impact and benefits of 
change activity, and to target intervention where necessary.  

Key action 2 – To agree the future service design process with specific regard to technology driven 
processes, as part of the renewal of shared service agreement. 

Key action 3 – To deliver the customer change programme, and to deliver a long-term strategy for 
our customer contact.  

Key action 4 – To deliver the Councils Community Health and Wealth Building Strategy and Economic 
Growth Strategy, to define clear requirements from service delivery moving forward. 

Key action 5 – To continue the ongoing development of our investment portfolio of projects and 
programmes eg: annual P3M3 assessment, PMO role out and improved controls and reporting. 

Key action 6 – (New) To better align the activity of support services, by producing a corporate 
support charter, to outline how support services will work with operational teams. With a particular 
focus on expectations and the improved use of information through the integration of data to 
minimise rekeying, and to provide a single view of the truth across finance, people and performance, 
to drive they business and strengthen our control environment.  

Key action 7 – To implement all actions within the peer review of our Audit function, and the actions 
identified within the areas Corporate Peer Challenge.  

People and culture 

Key action 7 – To deliver the workforce strategy and supporting action plan to ensure a clear plan for 
organisational competencies and supporting training plan.  

Key action 8 – (New) To review the current performance and reward framework in light of the 
completion of the workforce strategy, and the recognition of they increasing number of calls on 
service managers time, if we wish them to innovate their services. We will continue to group, and 
allocate time for task completion as we have piloted with the compliance task list previously. 
Ensuring the efficient management of key tasks.  

Technology and data 
Key action 9 – To review and update the objectives and delivery plan for the Council’s draft digital 
strategy. 

Page 190 of 194



9 
 

Key action 10 - To undertake further data maturity activity, to ensure we are best placed to make 
use of analytics and automation opportunities.  

Key action 11 – To undertake a pilot to develop a business case for realising the opportunities of the 
use of Artificial Intelligence.  

Key action 12 – To continue to pursue joint working with partners on the use of shared intelligence 
activity to better inform service delivery. Informed by the review of hosting options. 

Key action 13 – Development of phased plan to maximise benefit of data warehouse, and its links to 
organisational portal.  

Key action 14 – (New) To refresh application roadmap, informed by the review of hosting options. 

How is HDC proposing to deliver this activity? 
All of the activity below is captured within the areas Corporate Plan, or service plans. True change 
being something that is embedded with the core ways of working of the organisation. Delivery of 
these is monitored via the Council’s Major Change Board, with onward reporting to Scrutiny and 
Cabinet. All numbers next to the actions relate to the Corporate Plan (CP) or Annual Delivery Plan 
(ADP) unique ref number.  

Business strategy and organisational process 
- Continue our Customer Services improvement programme to ensure that our customers are 

always at the heart of what we do. A fundamental review of customer contact and dedicated 
role. CP53. 

- Deliver an independent Corporate Peer Challenge of the Council that will assess, challenge 
and improve what we do. CP58 

- Deliver a Community Health and Wealth Strategy, to link broader social determinants of 
health with a Community Wealth Building approach. CP1 

- Refresh our Social Value Policy and explore larger opportunities to maximise local benefit 
through a Community Wealth Building approach to procurement and the roles of anchor 
institutions CP4 

- Commence work on a new Housing Strategy for 2025-2030. CP18 
- Refresh the Huntingdonshire Economic Growth Strategy – as a key mechanism for increasing 

employment, and increasing NNDR receipts. CP30 
- Continue the Development Management Improvement programme to improve the 

performance of the planning service. CP54 

Service activity  

- CCTV - Increase revenue from internal and external projects CC001 
- Make commercial waste service more profitable CW001 
- Corporate Plan operational performance indicator target setting and use of benchmarking – 

including DQ Template completion and Member challenge based on analysis of trend/ 
contextual information. BIPM003 

- Continue to develop and formally communicate the results and findings in our Contextual 
Outcomes Dashboard. BIPM004 

- Ongoing monitoring of, and responding to, changes to national performance frameworks 
(e.g. Oflog/DLUHC). BIPM005 

- Support the expansion of unit costs used to demonstrate productivity. BIPM009 

Page 191 of 194

https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/media/vehhxpfr/corporate-plan.pdf
https://councilanywhereorg.sharepoint.com/:x:/s/HDC/EaUHrRge12FHsl1EeFTJSxkBe0d853tFx4_axnelOWoadw?e=FheRJE
https://councilanywhereorg.sharepoint.com/sites/HDC_Complex_Change_SLT/Shared%20Documents/General/SLT%20Meetings/2022/May/Customer%20Complex%20Change%20Workshop%206.pptx?web=1&ct=1708104088368&wdOrigin=OFFICECOM-WEB.MAIN.SEARCH&wdPreviousSession=7af5ef65-394e-4373-b21a-266b0b90da28&wdPreviousSessionSrc=HarmonyWeb
https://councilanywhereorg.sharepoint.com/sites/HDC_CorporateDirectorPeople/Shared%20Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx?id=%2Fsites%2FHDC%5FCorporateDirectorPeople%2FShared%20Documents%2FGeneral%2FStrategy%2FRole%20profile%20%2D%20Customer%20change%20Project%20Director%2DProgramme%20Manager%2Edocx&parent=%2Fsites%2FHDC%5FCorporateDirectorPeople%2FShared%20Documents%2FGeneral%2FStrategy
https://councilanywhereorg.sharepoint.com/sites/HDC_CorporateDirectorPeople/Shared%20Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx?id=%2Fsites%2FHDC%5FCorporateDirectorPeople%2FShared%20Documents%2FGeneral%2FStrategy%2FRole%20profile%20%2D%20Customer%20change%20Project%20Director%2DProgramme%20Manager%2Edocx&parent=%2Fsites%2FHDC%5FCorporateDirectorPeople%2FShared%20Documents%2FGeneral%2FStrategy


10 
 

- Write a new Data Quality Policy. BIPM010 
- Data Warehouse development – potential use for integrating cross-service/system data if 

this aligns with HDC aims, or alternatively as storage for data collected through e-forms 
(with reports to be developed via Power BI). BIPM012 

- Implement the co-location of the CAB and RAI Teams and develop a new working model to 
support residents in need. COS014 

- Publish Procurement Pipeline COA010 
- Restructure of open spaces and countryside is likely to create a financial saving in future 

years and to improve efficiency. ,This change in working methods started in 2023/24with 
integrated,*team meetings and ,*reviewing SLAs ,* reviewing event management,* 
reviewing survey techniques and analysis, In 2024/2025 outline structure options will be 
proposed and discussed with the teams and HR regarding changes. CTRS005 

- Commercial manager will be jointly appointed before new countryside centre opens 
following retirement of Countryside Manager. Funded within the business case for HCP, this 
person will work across all green spaces in time and manage the commercial aspects of 
events, cafes and countryside centre functions CTRS006 

- Complete a further review of the Document Centre following the outsourcing of print to 
save £50k CS011 

- Establish benchmarking with other councils and the private sector. CS014 
- Planning improvements PS009 
- Successful delivery to completion of the One Leisure Programme ID003 
- Defined data analysis tasks to support the defined outputs and outcomes of 

project/programme delivery or BAU; green bins, One Leisure, planning ID004 
- Development of the Portfolio Management Office function to provide a greater level of 

report, using more automated methods and systems. This will be facilitated through the 
appointment of a new role; PMO Manager ID005 

- Development of a more robust process for commissioning work tasks for the service; for 
both PMO and Analysts ID006 

- Development of user-centric service design offering for services through advice & guidance 
as well as tools, templates and training ID008 

- Work schedule planning developed for all members of the team to manage current and 
pipeline work demands ID009 

- Market Operation Efficiency Review (Markets), To understand if resource is appropriate 
whilst maintaining safe operation. PM009 

 

People and Culture 
- Complete the remaining elements of the Workforce Strategy to prepare the Council for the 

changing skills needed in our future workforce and ensure we can continue to attract, retain, 
and nurture talent. CP52 

Service activity  

- Staff Communications Network. Develop stronger processes for embedding communications 
planning in all projects, initiatives and key decisions, making sure we are well-planned and 
face fewer unexpected demands CO026 

Page 192 of 194



11 
 

Technology and data 
- Assess, and where prudent, use the emerging national benchmarking data from the Office of 

Local Government (OFLOG) to improve our performance. CP54 
- Bring forward and expand our use of unit costs to demonstrate productivity within priority 

service areas. CP60 

Service activity  

- Testing of new pilot system in Operations, ahead of retender SP4, SP8, SP49 
- Digitising and mapping of all trees and continue work on waterways AA001 
- Manage and maintain the waste services asset management system. WM006 
- Change over from Gladstone Plus 2 to Gladstone 360 AL008 
- Explore findings from our Data Maturity Assessment (via the LGA Data Maturity Tool) by 

identifying areas to improve and seeking best practices from others. BIPM006 
- Work with colleagues to establish and deliver Data Maturity within the Council. BIPM006 
- Support OPCC SVD project - Police partnership data portal proof of concept (we are only 

expecting to provide internal data and liaise with suppliers and services). BIPM007 
- Roll out mobile working in Environmental Health and Licensing via Tascomi COS012 
- Work on a drones policy within HDC (flagged now for early consideration) CTRS011 
- Storm Enhancements, introduce email handling, Introduce webchat, Improve Reporting 

CS002 
- IEG4 Enhancements. Introduction of IEG4 Data Warehouse reporting. Roll out of new CRM 

Lite application - Customer Excellence Centre. Ability to delete and link customer records to 
each other. Customer timeline history/audit improvements. Business Portal will be available 
where companies can have accounts with multiple staff associated. We need to check if 
there is an additional charge for this. CS003 

- IEG4 – Customer Portal contract review, Establish the strategy across the 3 Councils and 
procurement process. CS004 

- Explore how AI could be used to enhance self-service options and improve efficiency. 
Prepare costs, options and benefits paper for the ideas board. CS009 

- Web content review with high hitting service areas. CS012 
- IMS Procurement input CS018 
- Idox TLC NLIS Level 3 Automation - enabling local land charge searches to be completed via 

the NLIS portal and sent back via the VPN through Idox TLC instead of physically uploading 
ERDS001 

- Consideration of use of gov.notify to communicate with electorate ERDS004 
- Digital Innovation in Leisure OL004 
- Digitisation of Parking Permits (Parking) PM006 

 

  

Page 193 of 194



12 
 

How does these activities relate to each other? Continuous improvement plan on a page.  

Customer Service Change Project
Key action 3 – To deliver the customer change programme, and 
to deliver a long-term strategy for our customer contact. 

To deliver:
- A full review of customer service structure and approach with 

supporting strategy
- Embedding enable and influence as core aspects of our customer 

process, by designing intuitive services, and structuring content around 
user needs. 

- Transfer of tasks to digital channels, and identification of services 
better delivered in the 

- Residual demand to be considered in relation to holistic prevention 
and cost avoidance opportunities.

Service design 
As part of the shared service renewal process, define our long term 
solution to service design, and a decision on the benefits of alignment 
with shared service partners, given common ICT infrastructure. 
To define hard requirements and  whether this is a local or shared 
function. 

Key action 2 – To agree the future service design process with 
specific regard to technology driven processes, as part of the 
renewal of shared service agreement.

Performance and Units costs

- Embedding Performance framework
- Key action 1 – To improve the robustness of our key efficiency metrics – unit 

costs and benchmarking

Governance and process

Key action 5 – To continue the ongoing development of our 
investment portfolio of projects and programmes: annual P3M3 
assessment, PMO role out and improved controls and reporting.

Key action 6 – (New) To better align the activity of support services, by 
producing a corporate support charter, to outline how support 
services will work with operational teams

Information Governance and Data 

Key action 9 – To review and update the objectives and 
delivery plan for the Council’s draft digital strategy

Key action 10 - To undertake further data maturity 
activity, to ensure we are best placed to make use of 
analytics and automation opportunities. 

Key action 13 – Development of phased plan to 
maximise benefit of data warehouse, and its links to 
portal.

Key action 12 – To continue to pursue joint working 
with partners on the use of shared intelligence activity 
to better inform service delivery. 

Culture and capability 

Key action 7 – To deliver the workforce strategy 
and supporting action plan to ensure a clear plan 
for organisational competencies and supporting 
training plan. 

Key action 8 – (New) To review the current 
performance and reward framework in, and 
recognise  increasing number of calls on service 
managers time

Key action 4 – To deliver the Councils 
Community Health and Wealth Building Strategy 
and Economic Growth Strategy, to define clear 
delivery requirements moving forward.

AI & Automation 

Key action 11 – To undertake a 
pilot for realising the opportunities 
of the use of Artificial Intelligence.

Key 

- People and culture
- Business strategy and 
organisational process
- Technology and data

Technology stack

Key action 14 – (New) To refresh 
application roadmap, informed by 
the review of hosting options.

 

P
age 194 of 194


	Agenda
	Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and other Registerable and Non-Registerable Interests.
	Filming, Photography and Recording (including Live Streaming) at Council Meetings

	1 MINUTES
	Minutes

	3 RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS ARISING FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS
	4 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME
	Printed plan 1st July 2024 to 31st October 2024 Notice of Key Executive Decisions

	5 MARKET TOWNS PROGRAMME SUMMER UPDATE
	5. Market Towns Programme Summer Update Report
	1. PURPOSE of the report
	2. RAMSEY TOWN CENTRE ENHANCEMENT
	3. HUNTINGDON AND ST IVES PROGRAMME
	4. SHOP FRONT GRANT SCHEME – ALL MARKET TOWNS
	5. DIGITAL INFORMATION SCREENS – ALL MARKET TOWNS
	6. SMARTER TOWNS – ALL MARKET TOWNS
	7. ST NEOTS
	8. FUNDING
	9. FINANCE UPDATE
	10. COMMENTS OF OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
	11. KEY IMPACTS / RISKS
	LINK TO THE CORPORATE PLAN, STRATEGIC PRIORITIES, AND/OR CORPORATE OBJECTIVES
	12. CONSULTATION
	LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
	RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
	EQUALITIES
	ENVIRONMENTAL
	LIST OF APPENDICES INCLUDED
	BACKGROUND PAPERS

	5. Market Towns Programme Summer Update Appendix A
	5. Market Towns Programme Summer Update Appendix B
	5. Market Towns Programme Summer Update Appendix C

	6 HUNTINGDONSHIRE PLACE STRATEGY UPDATE
	6. Huntingdonshire Place Strategy Update Presentation
	Huntingdonshire Futures
	Agenda
	Background
	Slide Number 4
	Approach
	Slide Number 6
	Looking forward
	Inclusive Economy
	Health Embedded
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Pride in Place
	Celebration of Huntingdonshire - grants
	Outcomes so far
	Lessons learned
	Summary
	Our goals for 2024
	Upcoming opportunities for Member involvement
	Place strategy team


	7 PRODUCTIVITY PLANS
	7. Productivity Plan Report
	1. PURPOSE of the report
	2. Background to this work
	3. ProductivIty plan
	We will review this plan as part of our commitment to develop a transformation plan within the municipal year, building on the work in the continuous improvement plan. It will then form part of the ongoing reporting of this programme. Link to the corp...
	4. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
	5. LIST OF APPENDICES INCLUDED

	7. Productivity Plan Appendix 1
	Purpose of this document

	7. Productivity Plan Appendix 2
	Purpose of this plan
	Why does the Council require a continuous improvement plan?
	What do we mean by Continuous Improvement?
	Transformation is defined as “A marked change in form, nature, or appearance.” In terms of this document, continuous improvement is defined as reviewing the way we work – some of the what, but largely how we do things. The way we deliver activities, p...
	Background
	What is in scope for the continuous improvement plan?
	Actions taken by the Council to date to transform services
	Business strategy and organisational process
	Technology and data

	How is HDC proposing to deliver this activity?
	Business strategy and organisational process
	- CCTV - Increase revenue from internal and external projects CC001
	People and Culture
	Technology and data




